
City of Lowell
Council Meeting Agenda

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM
City Hall
101 W. First Street
Lowell, North Carolina 28098

1: General

1A. Call To Order

1B. Invocation / Pledge of Allegiance

1C. Public Comments

1D. Adoption of Agenda for this Meeting

2: Approval of Minutes

2A. Approval of February 28, 2024 City Council Special Meeting Minutes (p. 3-11)

2B. Approval of Minutes 03-12-2024 (p. 12-22)

3: Special Presentation

4: Consent Agenda

4A. Finance Report (p. 23-24)

4B. Communications Report (p. 25-26)

4C. Planning Report (p. 27)

4D. Public Works Report (p. 28)

4E. Geographic Information System (GIS) Report (p. 29-31)

4F. Police Report (p. 32-33)

4G. Stormwater Department Report (p. 34)

5: Unfinished Business

5A. Public Hearing - Text Amendment ZTA24-01 - Article 17, Sign Regulations (p. 35-43)

6: New Business

6A. Request for Public Hearing: Spencer Ridge Subdivision Development Agreement (p. 44-92)

6B. Request to Set Public Hearing - Map Amendment (General, Rezoning) - 603 Groves Street - JPFJ LLC (p. 93-98)

6C. Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Gaston County for Lowell Elementary Waterline Extension Project (p. 

99-110)

6D. Resolution to Designate Chief Moore as the Official to Make Recommendations to the NC ABC Control Commission 
(p. 111-113)

6E. City of Lowell Façade Grant Application Review and Approval (p. 114-145)

1



6F. Resolutions for Approval of (1) the Inter Local Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the 
Gaston County Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Ordinance; and (2) for the Inter Local Agreement with Gaston 
County for Enforcement Services of the Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance (p. 146-159)

7: Reports / Discussions

7A. City Manager Report

7B. City Attorney Report

7C. Mayor and City Council General Discussion

8: Adjournment

8A. Meeting Adjournment

Date Posted: April 5, 2024

2



4/2/24, 12:44 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/lowellnc/print/draft/65df907dab99630034c5825c 1/9

1. Call to Order

Mayor Simonds called the meeting to order at 4:00pm. City staff present were City Manager Scott
Attaway, City Attorney John Russell, Police Chief Moore, Police Asst. Chief Harrison and City Clerk
Cheryl Ramsey. A quorum was determined at the beginning of the meeting. The meeting was not
teleconferenced on YouTube; however the agenda and meeting materials were made public on the
city's website as well as in person. Members of the public were also in attendance.

2. New Business

2A. Per Councilmembers Smith and Bonham, To Discuss the Role of the Council in Requesting
Information About Personnel Matters and other Department Requests- 4:00 PM

Councilmember Bonham discussed why the meeting was called by him and Councilmember Travis
Smith. He said [primarily to the City Attorney] that there were concerns with how certain members
of council addresses city staff and city positions and he wanted to know if there are any legal
ramifications for doing so. He said there are also procedural matters on where council exists as it
relates to personnel matters and the legal consequences regarding that. He said there were also
some things that had been funded that are now being paused and he wanted an understanding
of the repercussions for them, i.e. the K-9 program and the security checkpoint in the lobby. He
said he wanted to navigate through all of this and get the attorney to explain what needs to be
done in open session vs. closed sessions.

** The following document is a draft of the minutes and the not the official approved minutes
**

Minutes for the Special Called City Council Meeting

101 W. First Street, Lowell, North Carolina 28098

February 28, 2024, 3:56 PM - February 28, 2024, 5:12 PM

Roll Call: (The following members were in attendance)

DeWayne Chitwood, Councilmember
Phil Bonham, Councilmember
Travis Smith, Councilmember
Shane Robinson, Councilmember
Scott Bates, Mayor Pro Tem
Larry Simonds, Mayor

3



4/2/24, 12:44 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/lowellnc/print/draft/65df907dab99630034c5825c 2/9

John Russell said that anything that relates to the form of government, how the council functions
and the relationship between each other [councilmembers] is all open session. He said the
meeting request listed a request to consult with the attorney regarding personnel matters. He said
there is a closed session agenda item if anyone would like to make a motion to do so to discuss.
Questions about risk or discussions about liabilities can be done in closed session under Section 3
of the Closed Session statute to consult with the attorneys. General policy, form of government,
communications, relationships among council is all open session.

Councilmember Bonham asked Mr. Russell to explain our form of government and how we
operate. Mr. Russell first reminded council that his role is strictly to provide legal advice. He said
he does not want to get into policy as he would want council to handle that. He then said "the city
is under a Council-Manager form of government, which in general means that communications on
how to run a city, how to do the affairs of the city, the day-to-day operations, are done by the City
Manager with some direction from council as to how you [council] want the city to operate using
the policies that you are elected to do. So there is a bit of a gray area there because there is
obviously some of what the city does is policy based and that's for you all to decide but generally
the day-to-day is run by the City Manager through the department heads. When there are issues
of how you want the city to function, how you want the City Manager to act. The general rule
Council-Manager form of government is communications to the [City] Manager and instructions
to him as to what information you all need to make decision on policy levels, in other words the
information that is coming back to you all and then some direction to him in respect with specific
policies you've adopted. That is a very high level definition and I hope I've answered any
questions you had." Councilmember Bonham said 'I get it." Councilmember Chitwood said "it
answered mine [questions]."

Councilmember Bonham then asked "under this form of government, what are the draws of
council and mayor? I mean, you've kind of explained it there but what are our limitations. What
can we do, what can't we do?" Mr. Russell said "the roles of council and mayor is defined in the
rules and procedures. There is not like a handbook or statutory guidelines that says 'here is what
everybody does', so there needs to be some consensus of council on 'how do we operate, how do
we communicate together, how do we communicate to the manager' in a way that is functional
and works. Then presumably get that communication back from the manager to each of you
letting you know 'here's what I'm doing, this is how I'm attempting to implement the directives
you're giving me to run the city, if that's wrong or if there's an issue let me know so I can do that
better.' Some lines of communication there. As far as the roles, it's obvious that it is the role of

4



4/2/24, 12:44 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/lowellnc/print/draft/65df907dab99630034c5825c 3/9

council to set policy, to make decisions on spending, where you want to set priorities, that's
absolutely the role of the council to do. There is a little bit of a gray area, obviously as elected
officials you want to be responsible to members of the community and the constituents who
elected you. There is some appropriate and necessary [accountability to the public]." He
continued, "you all can't control people contacting you, when you have your emails published on
the website, people are going to see you out whether you want them to or not and that's certainly
appropriate. So you all need to decide a reasonable agreement once you get that information,
what do you do with it. How do you direct those people to the City Manager, do you take that
upon yourself to discuss with the City Manager... All these things...there's not a specific set of
criteria in your rules and procedures or in the state statutes that is going to cover each thing and
that's why there has to be some communication amongst yourselves on how you're going to
operate. Also some expectations from the City Manager both in terms of what he'll hear from you
and what you need to hear from him with respect to whether it is spending issues, policy issues,
personnel issues, citizen complaints, all those things fall into the realm of communications under
the idea that you all hire the City Manager to run the city as you all vote to run it."

Councilmember Bonham asked "so there is a hierarchy. There is a council-mayor, then City
Manager, and everything filters to the City Manager and down from there. We stop at the City
Manager, correct?" Mr. Russell said that is one way to look at it. "If you put it a corporate setting,
you are the Board of Directors, the City Manager is the CEO, with the qualification as I was trying
to say, that as elected officials, it's absolutely appropriate and expected that you all will hear and
need to communicate with the people that elected you....There is not a line that says your role
stops at the City Manager." Councilmember Bonham asked "in a best practices scenario and I'm
speaking to a taxpayer, my next course of action is to speak with the City Manager and let the City
Manager handle it and not circumvent and go to a department, is that your interpretation?" Mr.
Russell said that is generally how a council-manager form of government would function. He said
in that scenario, you [council] would advise the taxpayer to contact the City Manager or council
can contact the City Manager and ask him to contact the taxpayer but communicate back to
council on the result. He said there will be exceptions to that but as a general practice that is how
the School of Government and most commentators would interpret the Council-Manager form of
government. Councilmember Chitwood asked "so you're saying it's not illegal or against the law
to do that, if somebody had done that?" Mr. Russell said "correct, there's not any statute that says
that they violated something. There is, in general, for you all to decide how to operate, work
together to do that." Councilmember Bonham asked about best practices and what does council
need to do to maintain the integrity of our form of government and if they need some guidelines

5



4/2/24, 12:44 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/lowellnc/print/draft/65df907dab99630034c5825c 4/9

to follow." Councilmember Chitwood added "or is that something we have to make up as a
council." Mr. Russell said "you're starting to get outside of what I think is a legal opinion and I
don't think it's appropriate for me to tell you beyond 'here's the basics' and you all need to decide
within these general confines of council-manager form of government and how you want to..."
Councilmember Chitwood mentioned the Rules of Procedures was adopted when Councilmember
Robinson last served on council. Councilmember Bonham asked what is it [policy] as it relates to
speaking with staff during an open meeting and how they are addressed at the podium? He asked
if there were legal ramifications for belittling them? Mr. Russell said he feels the latter question
should be in closed session when legal questions arise. He said the other question and how to
address staff falls under council asking itself what is the council-manager form of government and
for you all to decide your best practice on if you have an issue with staff and when to take it to the
City Manager. He elaborated further. Councilmember Bonham asked if it was best practice that if
there was an issue about a city employee that that be discussed offline with the City Manager and
not address the employee publicly in front of a City Council meeting. Mr. Russell said it is not up
to him to tell council best practices and council has to decide that. He said "as it relates to the
council-manager form of government that would be the common way to do it but beyond that
again that is for you all to decide."

Mayor Simonds said 'he's listened to what he [Mr. Russell] has said and when you have them boys
in the City Council chambers, and a question comes up, I don't see anything wrong with asking
questions. I think the City Manager should take care of his employees and if they get out of line
he should say 'listen, don't be insubordinate' and that's the way it should be. If you have a
problem with that, he's the City Manager, I'm not." (Inaudible sentence). He went on to say if you
have employees that get out of hand in public open meetings then that is for the City Manager to
address not come to council and express their opinions. He discussed this further stating that
things come up and if he has a question he's going to ask it and also allow the public to talk
about it too. Councilmember Chitwood mentioned that he has mentioned to the Mayor in the
past about sticking to the agenda and not having meetings for 3+ hours. He said we shouldn't
talk about stuff unless it's on the agenda. He agreed disciplining someone should be behind
closed doors. He then said "this meeting, today, was totally uncalled for and could have waited
until Friday at the work session or March the 12th [council meeting]. This could've waited. As
we've stated before, when Mr. Simonds called that meeting [Special meeting on January 3, 2024],
and I agree that meeting shouldn't have been called for a special meeting, this one shouldn't have
been called [either] because we are wasting tax payers money to get the attorney in here. It
could've waited." Councilmember Smith asked "how would you expect us to have this in a City

6



4/2/24, 12:44 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/lowellnc/print/draft/65df907dab99630034c5825c 5/9

Council meeting, where we are letting Larry talk for over 3 hours and doing an hour of business."
Councilmember Chitwood said they've talked about that and how they would correct that. Mayor
Pro Tem Bates said Councilmember Chitwood just addressed that and says they are all in
agreement to stick to the agenda.

Councilmember Bonham said there were a couple reasons to have this discussion now. He said
the attorney would not be at the next council meeting and based on the last meeting where the
Mayor gave employees an undressing and he was not going to go through another meeting of
that to address this. He said we are going to have an exodus coming and going to lose good
people because of the results of this election. Given the reputation now, we are going to have a
hard time filling those positions. He said "you can't recruit and retain if you've got city officials
blowing you up at the podium, just trying to make a presentation, doing your job. Doesn't matter
if you agree with the job or thinking if the position is working, that doesn't matter, you don't treat
people the way that some people are treating these guys standing here just trying to do their
job." Councilmember Chitwood said that he mentioned to Councilmember Bonham before that he
couldn't hear what Mr. Simonds was saying because of the volume issues so he got aggravated
listening to the meeting and cut it off. [Councilmember Chitwood was absent from the last
meeting and there were technical issues during the council meeting. Please refer to the minutes].
Councilmember Bonham said it's not only that. He said "what button do you push, when again,
this may be a closed session issue, but what are we setting ourselves up for? What is harassment
and how many times can you call down here and do this and this and this before it gets out of
hand. You can't just do that anymore, you can't get away with being a bully, so how are we
exposing ourselves with this type of behavior and what are we going to see as a result of it." Mr.
Russell said to answer that, regarding liability, would need to be in closed session.

Councilmember Smith asked how many applications there have been since the Parks and Rec
employee resigned. Mr. Attaway said one in a little over 2 weeks. Councilmember Smith said he
"feels that is a problem and people are not going to want to work for the city when they see how
we have been acting and talking to our staff, just not a good look." Mayor Simonds asked what
was stated to the Recreation Director. Councilmember Smith said he was speaking in general.
Mayor Simonds said he's only "spoken with the Chief and the Zoning guy last meeting and the
questions I asked were legitimate questions and I didn't think I did anything wrong. If you have
ordinance that they were talking about doing, that ordinance should be upheld and if you don't
have an ordinance for that, it shouldn't be allowed. That's just my opinion, and it's just my
opinion. I don't know the law, ya'll do" Councilmember Bonham said to Mayor Simonds, "I think,

7



4/2/24, 12:44 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/lowellnc/print/draft/65df907dab99630034c5825c 6/9

holding your opinion to yourself, in a public setting, given your position, is part of your
responsibility. Secondly, when you sit there and tell a guy 'I don't even think we need this
position" or "you need to do this or that" or calling up to City Hall four and five times a day saying
'I need, this, this, this,this.' If you really wanted the answer to stuff, get your (inaudible) together,
make your list, call the City Manager and say 'hey, I'd like to make an appointment with you on
whatever date you have available and I want to cover these things' so he can prepare and you sit
down and do your deal instead of grandstanding here and showboating doing all the stuff that
you do. You're running off good employees, you're not going to be able to retain..." Mayor
Simonds asked who he has run off. Councilmember Bonham said you have two right now. Mayor
Simonds asked who? Councilmember Bonham said "Sue [Lowe] and Tori [Dellinger]." There was a
debate on when Ms. Lowe left (before or after the election). Mayor Simonds said the only thing he
said to Sue was that she was a tremendous employee. Mayor Pro Temp Bates said he could
address Sue. He said "Sue actually left, not because of the mayor, but because of her and
employees that we have here. Councilmember Bonham said that is a different story that he got."
Councilmember Chitwood said "it's funny how she talked to him [Mayor Pro Tem Bates] and that's
the story she gave him." Mayor Pro Temp Bates agreed and said this was not from a third party
but directly from her explaining why she was leaving and it had nothing to do with the election or
the mayor. Councilmember Bonham said that was a different explanation than she gave him.

Mayor Simonds said "it's a shame and disgrace to have a good employee that can't be replaced
with an Accounting degree and was never (inaudible) for having an Accounting degree. I think it's
sad. That's just life and lack of communication. That's what this whole deal is about. I speak my
mind and didn't run for a popularity contest. I ran to get this town back to where it needed to be
where people can afford to live here. People that pay their taxes and live here and that's who we
need to respect. Not the people that come here (inaudible) with something on their mind. I don't
have a personal vendetta against no one. I think Scott and I...have I ever demanded you to do
anything or you would get fired or try to fire you? Absolutely not. We have discussions but have
you ever felt like I was harassing you by asking you serious questions about what we do, about
what needs to be done every day? I ask you if you can do this, you say yes (inaudible). I can't
make you do anything and I have not tried to." Mr. Attaway asked if the Mayor wanted a
response. Mayor Simonds said yes. Mr. Attaway said "there have been instances where there have
been a lot of requests and some redundant requests that have already been emailed or delivered.
You've asked about your inquiries and yes sometimes there are a lot of inquiries with new boards.
I welcome the communication and the requests for information is fine as public records are public
records and that's fine but I think more of communication would help all the council members. As

8



4/2/24, 12:44 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/lowellnc/print/draft/65df907dab99630034c5825c 7/9

I've stated before, a number of times, I have an open door policy and some exercise that where I
get an appointment request and we go over a project or some of the things...there was a lot that
happened last year, last couple years, and bringing you all up to speed on where things are, I
welcome those communications and meetings." Mayor Simonds said "as far as coming out and
physically attacking you, I always thought we had a good rapport as far as talking (inaudible). I
just tell you the things that I need. I just ask a question. I know you don't have the right to set
policy but when we are talking about different things...my question is like in anything, why didn't
we take bids. I know we're working on the Community Center now, but to my knowledge I didn't
see no bids. I think we'd ask for bids. I know we are the council manager council form of
government but we need to answer to the public. Why are we paying so much money for this or
why don't we...it's just common sense and common sense practices."

Councilmember Bonham said "part of that too is we are working now and trying to find direction
through the budget process on what you want to do with the Boys and Girls Club and how you
want to attack this and at the same time, we've got someone grabbing the Fire Chief to a piece of
dirt that the city is required...and talking to him about it and taking that over and building a new
fire department. You have no idea what's going on there and the process of bringing that back, I
think is extremely premature and taking things by just "oh, I want to do it." He continued "you talk
about communication, there is no communication. It's 'I want to do this, this is what I want and I
don't give a (expletive) on what anybody else says, I'm just going to push this thing through.' It
takes a phone call, 'how does this work, what is the procedure of even trying to accomplish things,
lay this out for me', and you're sitting out there looking at a piece of property saying 'we can do
this.'" Mayor Simonds said that is the most outrageous biggest lie that has ever been told. He said
"the Chief [Fire] contacted me about wanting to find a piece of property where they could build a
new fire department and they needed a new fire truck and they were tying to put that together. I
told him the only piece of property that the Town of Lowell owned was the property beside the
Presbyterian Church. He came up and looked at it, yes, but I can't make a decision."
Councilmember Bonham said no, you can't. Councilmember Chitwood said he "thinks we are
getting off the subject and this can be put on the agenda if you all want to discuss this fire
department or next months agenda. Mr. Attaway said that was to be the fire tax district discussion
during the budget meeting. He said that is the first item on the agenda. Councilmember Chitwood
asked Mr. Attaway if the deed had a restriction by the church saying that it was a City Hall/Police
and that was it. Mr. Attaway said "yes, the contract signed with the church specified that it was to
be a City Hall and or Police Complex built on the property. There was a concern from them, the
City buys their property, then we sell it because we changed our mind, and back out, then

9



4/2/24, 12:44 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/lowellnc/print/draft/65df907dab99630034c5825c 8/9

something else goes there that is not desirable to them. There is a parking agreement with them
too so they can occupy some parking spaces." Councilmember Bonham said "so a phone call
would have helped?" Mayor Simonds said that was good to know since we don't anything about
anything you've bought. He mentioned other projects the previous council voted on but that they
[current council] don't know anything.

With nothing else to discuss in open session, Councilmember Bonham made a motion to go into
closed session to discuss the legal ramifications from staff harassment and potential liabilities for
eliminating the security checkpoints and any financial obligations we may have on terminating the
K-9 program. Mr. Russell said all of this would fall under consulting with the attorney under 143-
318.11 Section 3. It was seconded by Councilmember Smith. The vote was carried with
Councilmembers Bonham, Smith and Robinson voting yay and Mayor Pro Tem Bates and
Councilmember Chitwood voting nay.

The item was motioned Convene into Closed Session by Phil Bonham and seconded by Travis
Smith with a passing result 3-2-0-1 Opposed by Scott Bates, DeWayne Chitwood

3. Closed Session

3A. Closed Session to Discuss Personnel Matters Pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(6)- 4:34 PM

There was a discussion of respect to employees and interfering with their jobs and whether staff
should attend the upcoming budget retreat. There was also discussion regarding keeping the K-9
unit or not as the previous budget and council voted to have one. Lastly, the security checkpoints
were discussed and the legal ramifications or liability if there was not one.

3B. Closed Session to Consult with the City Attorney Pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11(3)- 5:01 PM

See notes above.

The item was motioned ReConvene into Regular Session by Travis Smith and seconded by Phil
Bonham with a passing result 5-0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds

4. Open Session

4A. Possible Action after Closed Session- 5:11 PM

No actions/motions took place.

The item was motioned To Accept by Travis Smith and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing
result 5-0-1-0 Abstained by Larry Simonds
Motion to adjourn

10



4/2/24, 12:44 PM AgendaLink

https://horizon.agendalink.app/lowellnc/print/draft/65df907dab99630034c5825c 9/9

5. Adjourn

The meeting adjourned at 5:11pm

11



1. General

1A. Call To Order- 6:01 PM

Mayor Larry Simonds called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. All Councilmembers were present. City staff

present were City Manager Scott Attaway, City Attorney Jonathan Gonzalez (filling in for John Russell),

Police Chief Moore, Police Asst. Chief Harrison, Planning Director Joe Gates, Public Works Director Thomas

Shrewsbury, Finance Director Lisa Nolen, and City Clerk Cheryl Ramsey. A quorum was determined at the

beginning of the meeting. The meeting was teleconferenced on YouTube for the public and the agenda and

meeting materials were made public on the city's website as well as in person. Members of the public were

also in attendance.

1B. Invocation / Pledge of Allegiance- 6:01 PM

The Invocation was led by Reverend William Calvert from Spencer Mountain Baptist Church. The Pledge of

Allegiance was then led by Mayor Simonds.

Mayor Simonds wanted to honor the Irish with St. Patrick's Day coming up on Sunday with bagpipes

played. Councilmember Chitwood said that in the Manager's report [weekly updates sent to council], it was

noted that the city can be held liable for copyright infringement when playing music on YouTube. He said

he talked to the Mayor about this issue before. He asked if there needed to be a motion to stop all music

being played during the council meeting and that any honor or memorial to anyone would need to be part

of the Invocation. Mayor Simonds says he thinks that is inappropriate right now because of the protocol of

the meeting and said that could be brought up in his [Councilmember Chitwood] comments later.

Councilmember Chitwood said we are not having the music tonight. Councilmember Smith asked the

attorney if there needed to be a motion. Mr. Gonzalez said yes. Councilmember Chitwood made a motion

that "from this day on that we have no music and if we need have a memorial that needs to be done in

prayer or anything other than that needs to be done in prayer. This is for business only, so the motion is

made for no music at any other meetings." It was seconded by Councilmember Smith. Under discussion,

Mayor Simonds said "what we are doing tonight is mindboggling. When I was mayor before, we would have

** The following document is a draft of the minutes and the not the official approved minutes **

Minutes for the Regular City Council Meeting

101 W. First Street, Lowell, North Carolina 28098

March 12, 2024, 6:01 PM - March 12, 2024, 7:21 PM

Roll Call: (The following members were in attendance)

Scott Bates, Mayor Pro Temp
Phil Bonham, Councilmember
DeWayne Chitwood, Councilmember
Shane Robinson, Councilmember
Travis Smith, Councilmember
Larry Simonds, Mayor

12



people come in to sing a song and if that's the case, since you are worrying about someone suing the city,

I want to see what you are speaking about." Councilmember Chitwood reminded Mayor Simonds that

Mayor Pro Tem Bates showed him how to read the emails and that it was in the Manager's report that

YouTube sent him notice of possible copyright infringement when playing music. Mayor Simonds said "to

tell the city that you can't play Amazing Grace on the bagpipes in honor of St. Patrick's Day, along with all

of our soldiers and emergency management people is atrocious." Councilmember Chitwood said that all

can be done in prayer. Mayor Simonds said we took longer for this than the song would've taken.

Councilmember Chitwood said because he keeps talking about it. Mayor Simonds said it still under

discussion. Councilmember Chitwood agreed and said "point of order, please continue."

Mayor Simonds said "in his opinion, you can run God out anywhere you want to, but when something goes

wrong, the first person you call on is the good Lord and I want to be ready when I leave here. I want to

honor all the citizens and emergency management people." He continued stating "we've just been through

some terrible things in the last few days [mentioning the names to two students that recently passed] and

we have to look more forward than with something as trivial as this. The song could've already played."

Councilmember Chitwood called a point of order again to move on [with the vote]. Mayor Simonds asked

for the vote. The vote passed 4-1, with Councilmember Robinson voting nay.

Mayor Simonds asked the attorney what would happen if the song is played anyway? Mr. Gonzalez said he

and John Russell talked about this recently and said Mr. Russell is still looking into legal implications. Mayor

Simonds said that nothing is concrete and this is all alleged to have been brought before the City Manager

as he has not seen anything stating the city is infringing. He said next month, he will just have someone

come in to sing as has been done in the past. He said God needs to be honored wherever we are.

Councilmember Chitwood said the motion was for no music, no singing. Mayor Simonds said if you don't

like music, that's fine. Councilmember Chitwood said he "would prefer the Pastor or Preacher or whoever

comes in, to do it in prayer. I would rather pray for them, than honor over music. I pray all day long, but as

far as music, I don't see it happening anymore and that is the motion we made unless you are going to get

someone to make the motion again." He then called for point of order again and stated that we are here

for business. Mayor Simonds said he likes his meetings run like he wants it and he and Councilmember

Chitwood had inaudible discussion. Councilmember Smith called a point of order again to move on.

Councilmember Bonham said "this is not your meeting, but our meeting." Mayor Simonds said "as long as

I'm mayor, I'm going to say the things that need to be said." Councilmember Chitwood said "that's fine and

you have every right to say what you want to say, but you are not going to take 50 minutes like you did

last month to talk about one subject." Mayor Simonds said he guesses we have to honor what the council

wants but he had no words for this. He then thanked all for coming and his goal in life is to leave things in

a better place than he found it and the only way to do that is not for him, but for God. He thanked Rev.

Calvert for coming. Rev. Calvert then thanked council for allowing him to give the Invocation.

1C. Adoption of Agenda for this Meeting- 6:09 PM

The item was motioned To Approve by Travis Smith and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing result 5-

0-0-0

1D. Public Comments- 6:09 PM

1. Ed Jackson (has property in Lowell but does not live in the city)- spoke of the changes in Lowell. He said

he sat in on part of council's budget session a few weeks ago and commended council for working
13



together. He said he saw a sense of cooperation and heard good discussions, that they came to

conclusions and moved onto the next item. He said they seemed to have learned from each other. He said

we have a lot of good things coming to Lowell and have a good [City] Manager. He said things may be

moving fast but we can't just stand still and go back to the 70's or 80's because things are not as they

were. He said we need to make the things ahead better and encouraged council to keep working together.

He pleaded with them not to just throw these things [future projects] away because it would take a while

before the State and Federal governments would help us again in the future.

2. Tom Lesperance of 721 Overlook, Lowell, NC - talked about his recent arrests that he believed were

wrongful arrests and that he felt the Lowell Police Department is harassing him. He said he just wants

answers to his questions and that the Chief, officers and City Manager have not been very helpful.

3. Darryl Tate of 307 Lynn St, Lowell, NC - discussed the water problems he had in November 2023 and not

getting any relief from the city. He then said he wanted council to look at the process for cutting off people

for nonpayment by calling those with children and elderly people in the home to warn them. He then

thinks deposits should be refunded after a year or so or pay a percentage to owners if they plan on

keeping it. He then asked if the drainage would be cleared on S. Church St. Mr. Attaway said they will be

connecting a new stormwater infrastructure. Mr. Tate asked if the city was going to do anything about the

standing water there. Mr. Attaway was not sure of where Mr. Tate was referring to. Mr. Tate tried to explain

where he was referring to and said that the city is working on a road that doesn't belong to them, that it

was basically a driveway, the way he understood it. He asked Mr. Attaway if that was true. Mr. Attaway said

the city is not working on a road. He said there is a contractor building a road that they will likely bring to

this council. Mr. Tate said the contractor said they worked for Lowell. Mr. Attaway said that is incorrect, but

that we have a construction inspector that works for Lowell through the engineering firm. Mayor Simonds

said to Mr. Attaway "what you told me the other day was that NorthPoint left us money to repair stuff?" Mr.

Attaway said "no, what I told you the other day was that NorthPoint had to pay plan review fees and

construction inspections based off of our fee schedule. On the inspection side of that revenue that we

received, it goes out for the inspections on the road that we pave. We're paying LaBella Engineering to be

the project construction inspector." Mayor Simonds asked "how much money is that, how much money are

they leaving to take care of these inspections?" Mr. Attaway said he does not have those figures in front of

him. Mayor Simonds said that he recalled about two months ago, when he [Mr. Tate] appeared before us,

the city was supposed to get together to talk about his issues. He asked Mr. Tate if he had been contacted?

Mr. Tate said that Thomas [Shrewsbury] called him today and told him the city would not be cleaning his

drain. Mayor Simonds suggested Mr. Tate call the City Manager. Mr. Tate was asking that this all be put on

the agenda for next month. Councilmember Bonham asked if this all falls under the Stormwater policy and

that this is something that would be taken care of by the Stormwater Department? Mr. Attaway said yes

Stormwater and Streets departments. He said "we have a Stormwater Ordinance that prioritizes what gets

fixed in a certain order and I can send that out to the council and refresh everyone on what that looks like

following that adopted ordinance." Mayor Simonds said he "thinks it's wrong when a citizen comes up here

and we instruct you to get together with them and it never takes place. That's been a while now." He then

suggested Mr. Tate come in to speak with the Clerk to get items added to the agenda and to come talk to

the City Manager to rectify his situation.

14



4. Candy Funderburk of 600 Rogosin Blvd, Lowell, NC - thanked Councilmember Chitwood for his motion

earlier [copyright infringement] because they are here to do the business of the city. She said when she

was on council before, they never had to use the point of order because they never had any issues with

the previous mayor. She then said she is concerned about the three councilmembers that voted not to

have the security checkpoint anymore. She said "even though it is not there now, anyone in the room with

a license to carry, and I do but I leave it at home, brings one in and then gets mad...I recall a citizen in a

meeting in December saying 'as long as you're doing your job, you have nothing to worry about it.' Well

that's a threat. So that person, or anyone else in here could feel like you guys are not doing your job, could

pull out their gun and that is the first line of defense." She then talked about the budget and the last

council agreeing on getting the K-9 dog. She said she doesn't think we need it right this second but in the

future and that you have to plan for the future. She said she thinks the contract has been signed and that

it will be $30,000 of taxpayers money that will go down the drain because you guys decided not to have a

dog. Councilmember Chitwood suggested Mrs. Funderburk get with him later on where he could provide

her with the true numbers of what will be done. He also mentioned that it will be on the agenda later today

for discussion. Mrs. Funderburk then mentioned there have been rumors that council will be bringing the

Fire department back and she doesn't know how that is going to work according to the statute. She said

"our citizens pay a $.49 cent tax rate now, the fire rate for the county is 8 and a 1/2 cents, so if you bring

them back, how are you going to pay them? You can't cut taxes and pay them 8 and 1/2 cents because

that would be 57 and 1/2 cents and then if you cut taxes 6 cents, that is still 51 and 1/2 cents but you're

telling everybody in your campaign that you are going to cut taxes, but if you bring the Fire Department

back, I don't understand and maybe you all can explain that to me if you know." Mayor Simonds was about

to talk, Mrs. Funderburk said no that she'll talk to one of the councilmembers.

Councilmember Bonham said although he appreciated Councilmember Chitwood's comments [to Mrs.

Funderburk], he doesn't think there needs to be continued reactions back and forth. He said the public can

speak the way they want to speak but to remember this is a business meeting not a public forum.

5. Wayne Buchanan of 620 Geer St, Lowell, NC - asked how many cops are in Lowell because they aren't in

Lowell. He said he almost got run over by a motorcycle along Spencer Mountain. He said he's seen people

run through lights and asked why are they not patrolling. Mayor Simonds said that we have 11 now and

need more because with the infrastructure in this city, we should have more policemen and we will in the

future and we just have to use our money the right way.

6. Thomas Lesperance (father of Tom Lesperance) - stated he does not live in Lowell but said he spends a

lot of money here. He made complaints against the Police Department practices and violating his son's 1st

amendment rights by denying him the freedom of speech during his protest. He said his son just wanted

some acknowledgement of what was done to him and could have been done different, even if no

wrongdoing on the part of the Police were found. He said everyone had the opportunity to fix this and no

one seemed to want to do it, so now he will go to a higher power.

7. Darryl Tate was allowed to speak again- Mr. Tate asked about the old chemical plant the city recently

purchased where they are cleaning up. He said he would like the council to consider making a permanent

sign stating that it's a waste site to notify people. He said he doesn't know if there is a way to know if

people are 100% protected and people should know this especially when they find different carcinogens

15



every day and it would help protect the children. Mayor Simonds agreed and asked if there were no

trespassing signs out there now or hazardous waste signs. Mr. Attaway said there are in fact no trespassing

signs posted.

Councilmember Bonham said we've done all the testing and there has been no evidence of anything there.

He said "if you want to sit there and say this is a great thing that we've done, we've reclaimed this

property. It's a brownfield agreement and we can explain what a brownfield is but anything less than that,

just puts fear in people's eyes. There is nothing there to suggest that there are any issues. This is asinine,

to just create chaos out of nowhere. What evidence do you have that suggests that anything is there on

site, after all these tests, that says we have a problem?" Mayor Simonds said "you know we have a

problem there. It's going to take a long time to ever clean this mess up." Councilmember Bonham asked

where was the evidence? Mayor Simonds continued and said we've already spent $2 million there and we

have to cover this stuff. He asked Councilmember Bonham if we had insurance if citizens go over there and

die or get sick or hurt? Councilmember Bonham said "we don't have it open to the public right now". Mayor

Simonds said a child could go through the fence and you have to have some kind of warning out there to

protect the people. He asked the City Manager "is the city is not liable if someone were to go over there

and get sick, step in a hole and drown or die, are we not liable?" Councilmember Bonham said "so all the

fencing and keep out signs is not good enough, we need to have armed guards around the fence 24/7,

shoot on sight to keep anyone out of there, I mean come on! Let's move on." Mayor Simonds said "I agree

we should move on but we need to take care of our citizens and they are building houses right beside

there. Mr. Gonzalez what's the rule on..." Councilmember Bonham interrupted and said "point of order". Mr.

Gonzalez asked if Councilmember Bonham was making a motion. Councilmember Bonham said yes, point

of order, seconded by Councilmember Smith. Mayor Simonds continued to ask Mr. Gonzalez about

insurance to protect the citizens. He said he'd follow the point of order but it was a good question.

Councilmember Bonham said "the point of order right now was to follow the agenda item and to keep the

you from going off-base, that's what we are trying to do. There is a motion and a second." Mayor Simonds

said to let's just move on.

2. Approval of Minutes

Motioned to approve by Travis Smith, seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result of 5-0-0-0

2A. Approval of Minutes 02-13-2024- 6:36 PM

3. Special Presentation

4. Consent Agenda

The item was motioned To Approve by Travis Smith and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing result 5-0-

0-0

4A. Planning Report - 6:36 PM

4B. Finance Report- 6:36 PM

4C. Parks & Recreation Report - 6:36 PM

4D. Stormwater Report- 6:36 PM

16



4E. Geographic Information System (GIS) Report- 6:36 PM

4F. Communications Report- 6:36 PM

4G. Police Report- 6:36 PM

4H. Public Works Report- 6:36 PM

5. Unfinished Business

5A. Consideration of Black Mountain Software- 6:37 PM

Presented by Scott Attaway. He said this was discussed in the budget retreat as an opportunity from the

NC League of Municipalities' (NCLM) Municipal Accounting services where they are utilizing some of their

American Recovery Plan Act grant funds to be able to help out some of the smaller municipalities, mostly

populations of 10,000 and under. He said they are going to pay for all of the software turnover from an

existing financial fund, utility billing software and payroll program. In year four, would be when the City of

Lowell begins to pay for the software support. The city will not have to pay for any of the implementation

and it is approximately $157,000 that NCLM are paying out of a grant for us to get this new software

package. He said, as was mentioned in the budget retreat, this software does a lot more than the city

currently have now and is beneficial for the city. Councilmember Chitwood asked if year four means year

2029 and not still not implemented until 2026. Mr. Attaway said correct, it is not implemented until 2026.

Councilmember Smith said "I think to Shane's [Councilmember Robinson] point in the budget retreat,

regardless of the numbers, they're going to continue to add up with who we have now versus this

company and it seems like this company seems to be a lot better for our city staff to get their job done."

Councilmember Robinson asked if this will start right away or 2026. Mr. Attaway said 2026. He added that

they will have some of the work up, where the League will come with their cyber team and go through

security aspects of it to make sure our equipment justifies the new software. The go live is 2026. Mayor

Simonds said so we'll suffer until 2026. Mr. Attaway said yes, the city was one of the later municipalities to

sign up and would have to wait in line for availability to install. He said we would need to adopt this and

get it to the League by the end of March. He said the motion would be to approve the resolution and

associated memorandums.

The item was motioned To Approve by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing

result 5-0-0-0

To approve Black Mountain Software resolution and associated agreements

5B. Consideration to Set Time of March 19, 2024 and April 16, 2024 City Council Work

Sessions- 6:43 PM

Councilmember Chitwood said he sent an email out to everyone stating that it seems like it is easier to do

the meetings on Fridays. Councilmember Bonham said Friday's were better for him. Mr. Attaway is not

available next Friday and the holiday is the following Friday. He offered this coming Friday but

Councilmember Bonham stated he will be out of town. Mayor Simonds asked if the meeting can be

cancelled since there is nothing pressing and just go to April. There was some discussion on the times and

dates for the retreat. It was decided that April 16, 2024 from 1-5pm would be best for all.

The item was motioned To Amend by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing

result 5-0-0-0

17



To skip the March 19th and to keep the April 16the meeting from 1to 5pm, here at City Hall Council

Chambers.

5C. Proposed Code of Ordinances Amendment: Chapter 76- Traffic Schedules and Chapter 72-

Traffic Regulations- 6:47 PM

Presented by Tyler Cobb, Planner. He is proposing an amendment to Chapter 76 Traffic Schedules and

Chapter 72.060 Traffic Regulations of the Code of Ordinances. This would amend weight restrictions at a

portion of Cobb Street between Kenworthy Ave and S. Church St. He said the goal is to restrict heavy traffic

using Cobb St and keep commercial through traffic to Exit 22. Councilmember Chitwood asked if this was

basically saying no large tractor trailer trucks would be going down Cobb St? Mr. Cobb said yes and

directed them to their packets showing the maps. Mayor Simonds asked about the access road when you

turn off Church St and cross over Cobb St and the new street they are doing. Mr. Attaway said that is

Aberdeen Extension and that the new road would be truck traffic going both ways. Mayor Simonds said

that's kind of narrow but said it was good that the city is doing this [proposed amendments] on Cobb St.

The item was motioned To Amend by Phil Bonham and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result 5-0-

0-0

To amend Chapter 76: Traffic Schedules, Schedule XII: Weight Restrictions & Chapter 72, Section 72.060:

Miscellaneous Driving Rules

6. New Business

6A. Resolution #03-2024 - Authorizing the Adoption of the Updated CDBG-I Compliance Plans-

6:50 PM

Presented by Scott Attaway. Mr. Attaway stated this is an update for compliance that the Department of NC

Commerce has given us to maintain compliance with CDBG grants to adopt this resolution. He said we will

get these from time to time to update policies. He mentioned the specific compliance changes. There were

no questions.

The item was motioned To Approve by Travis Smith and seconded by Phil Bonham with a passing result 5-

0-0-0

6B. Request to Set Public Hearing - LDO Text Amendment - Article 17 Sign Regulations- 6:52 PM

Presented by Scott Attaway. The Planning Department has asked the Planning Board to review the sign

regulations that council recommended because they kept getting Master Sign applications to variate the

dimensions, etc. of the sign ordinance. Mr. Cobb discussed the specifics (see packet). He asked council to

set a public hearing on Tuesday, April 9, 2024, for this matter.

Mayor Simonds asked if they have to apply for a permit and get a sign, they can't just put up a sign but

apply, correct? Mr. Cobb said that was correct. Councilmember Smith said it would just keep less of the

things we need to deal with in house. Mr. Cobb said that was correct.

After the motion, at 6:56pm Councilmember Bonham asked Mayor Simonds for a quick break. Council

resumed at 6:57pm.

The item was motioned To Set by DeWayne Chitwood and seconded by Scott Bates with a passing result 5-

0-0-0

To set the public hearing for Tuesday, April 9, 2024

18



6C. Update to Interlocal Agreement for Enforcement Services of Gaston County Soil and

Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance- 6:58 PM

Presented by Scott Attaway. Mr. Attaway said we have some unanswered questions regarding this agenda

item, 6C and the next agenda item, 6D, to the County and would like to move this to the April council

session and to table them until then.

6D. Update to Interlocal Agreement for Enforcement Services of the Gaston County

Stormwater Ordinance- 6:58 PM

See agenda item 6C.

6E. Discussion of Lowell Police K-9 Program- 6:59 PM

Presented by Councilmember Chitwood. Mr. Chitwood said the reason why he is going "to vote to suspend

this program until further notice is that with this Police Department having only 11 officers and tow to

three of them stay in the office with eight on patrol with some at night, working by themselves. If that K-9

position happens to go out and they can go to mutual aid, Ranlo, or a place that does not have a K-9, then

that leaves this city unprotected... When this department grows to a certain amount, at least 15 or 16

[employees], where you can make that position instead of a patrol officer just moving to K-9, you have a

position for just strictly K-9 that does K-9 duties and maybe even have two K-9, one for each shift. As of

right now, as Mrs. Funderburk stated earlier, up to $30,000, well that's not true. I spoke with the K-9

handler in Tennessee and according to her it's only $1000 deposit that was supposed to have been sent

and never got sent. That was supposed to have been sent upon receipt of the invoice. We all got a copy of

it, dated July 13, 2023. As far as up fitting the vehicle, there is no reason to spend $35-37,000 for brand

new vehicles. There's money there but since the K-9 is not going to be here, and as I said, as of right now,

this department is not big enough." He then made a motion to suspend the K-9 program until further

notice, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bates.

Councilmember Bonham asked, to get a better understanding of what Councilmember Chitwood stated, "if

someone were to call for a K-9 and we were here and available and we had one on duty at that time, we

are forced to go out of territory vs. staying in territory and protect our own people?" Councilmember

Chitwood said "what's to say that they are not going to go and help out? I get it, I've been there."

Councilmember Bonham said "I understand, you work here and you can't go but when you have an

opportunity to lend a hand, that's what you do, and if you don't have it, you don't do it. I'm certainly not

questioning your background or yours Mr. Bates. I'm trying to better understand if you think 15,16 is the

number to have one, then maybe tow [K-9 units], we're right around the corner from that." Councilmember

Chitwood said "that's why I put suspended until further notice. I could have said suspended period."

Councilmember Bonham said "as one who has had to use the K-9 in the past, I was very grateful when K-9

showed up and did his/her job. I'm not sure I agree with you on this, I am sure that you and Mr. Bates have

more knowledge in this than I do and for that I respect that and we'll do what we have to do." Mayor

Simonds said the Sheriffs department and County has K-9 and so do other municipalities. Councilmember

Chitwood said the Sherriff's office, the County, City of Gastonia, Belmont, Ranlo have one and they are all

close to us. Mayor Simonds asked if we have spent the money on up fitting the cruiser/SUV?.

Councilmember Chitwood and Scott Attaway said yes. Mayor Simonds asked Councilmember Chitwood

what do you do in that situation? Councilmember Chitwood said you can sale the cage or hold it down in

19



the basement somewhere or turn that patrol car back into something that is used to take people to jail.

There was further discussion of selling the vehicle, availability of the current vehicle. Councilmember

Smith asked if that vehicle can still be used for patrolling even if it is not used for a prisoner. Mr. Attaway

said it would need to be re-out fitted. Councilmember Chitwood and Councilmember Smith said re-out

fitting makes more sense. Mayor Pro Tem Bates said re-out fitting may be way cheaper than trying to sell it

and purchase a new vehicle. There was a brief discussion on this scenario.

Councilmember Smith said he might not agree with this motion but that Councilmember Chitwood and

Mayor Pro Tem Bates have more experience in this than he does and respects their opinion and what you

think is best. Councilmember Bonham said "here is one thing I want to caution us on, we are doing this, we

can rely on Ranlo and Cramerton, we can rely on Gaston County for this, then it comes to something else

and we need to have it here, well where do you draw the line? I don't want to get off subject but you go on

down the road saying I don't want to pull from this resource here on this, but I want it here in my town on

that, how do you make that distinction. That has nothing to do with the K-9 that we are speaking on, but

just my theology." Mayor Pro Tem Bates said "I kind of want to touch on what you're saying, I think in the

future, I don't think Mr. Chitwood is wanting to just do away with it but once this department grows and

gets bigger. I think, me personally with my experience, I think it would be more feasible for the department

to grow and to start out with two K-9's where you'd have one on each rotation that's available. Starting out

with just one, that's what you're going to run into. We're depending on that one on this shift but when the

K-9 is at home on their days off, you don't have it on this other shift. So we're still depending on other

cities." Councilmember Bonham said that makes perfect sense. There was a discussion of the K-9 program

that was had before in 2009 but that was paid for by the officer, not the city and when he left, he took the

dog as well. Mayor Simonds discussed about the problems we have, infrastructure, and have the money to

take care of what we need to do. We don't have sidewalks and no markings on certain streets. He said lets

build Lowell up the right way and stop the spending. There was no further discussion.

The vote passed with Mayor Pro Tem Bates, and Councilmembers Robinson and Chitwood voting yay to

suspend the program, and Councilmembers Smith and Bonham voting nay.

To suspend the K-9 Program

6F. Discussion of Vacant Positions- 7:10 PM

Presented by Scott Attaway. Mr. Attaway said there is a conditional offer for a new Parks and

Recreation/Events Director position. He also wanted to talk to council about the Public Works Director

position that has been advertised. He said the personnel policy does not allow him the latitude to over

hire, where you have a new candidate come on board while the current Director is still a city employee for

a couple weeks so they [new hire] have that institutional knowledge before the current person leaves the

organization. He thinks it would be very beneficial for whoever comes on to that role as Public Works

Director, assuming that happens before our current employee leaves, that he would have the ability to do

that. He said it would be paid for with the salary lag from the department that is already there. He said it

wouldn't be a budget amendment required to do it and he is thinking two weeks of an over hire would help

out tremendously for that position.

Mayor Simonds said his "recommendation to you as City Manager and to the board, is that we have people

out here that's been working for years in these positions and things like that and they need to be

encompassed in to look at them as well as seeking outside. We have to honor the folks that have been
20



working here and at least look at them. I think as a council, we should look at applications as well because

when you hire a Public Works Director or Recreation Director, that's an enormous amount of money and we

need to look at it the way you would want to be treated yourself. Just like when you came on board, they

didn't advertise the position, they just voted to bring you in. Anytime you advertise a public position, it

should be advertised and for all existing employees in that field to have an opportunity as well. It's called

Equal Opportunity Employer, which we should be." Councilmember Bonham said "I think, quite frankly,

that is way out of the scope of City Council. The City Manager is in charge of hiring and recruiting and

doing those things. Any departmental person can apply for any open position. If they meet the

qualifications, then they can be considered for the position. I think we absolutely should have somebody in

here for the two week overlap to understand, get to know the people, the processes, etc. It just makes for

a smoother transition and we're just talking about two weeks. The judgement of not doing that is worse

than two weeks of overlap, monetarily. But to sit there and hold out like you did many years ago when you

hired Green as the City Manager raising hell because he was from Clover and not from Lowell. If you don't

have anyone qualified applying for the job, within the job, then you still have to move forward. That is not

to discount anybody and it's not saying it's not open for interview for anybody, but we're going to hire the

most qualified person for the job in the best interest of the city and it has nothing to do with this council.

That's what we hired this guy to do [pointing at Mr. Attaway]."

Mr. Attaway requested a formality of a motion if the board considers the over hiring of the Public Works

Director because essentially what it's doing is there is one Public Works Director position and you are

temporarily allowing two Public Works Directors for the two week period. Councilmember Smith said he

totally agreed as it is just training for the new Director. Councilmember Bonham made a motion to over

hire for a Public Works Director for two weeks, seconded by Councilmember Smith. The vote was

unanimously in favor.

The item was motioned To Approve by Phil Bonham and seconded by Travis Smith with a passing result 5-

0-0-0

To over hire for a Public Works Director for two weeks

7. Reports / Discussions

7A. City Manager Report- 7:14 PM

1. Council and the Mayor were copied on an email to NC House Rep John Torbett and Senator Overcash

numerous direct funding requests that have been discussed in the budget retreats and various projects for

the City of Lowell. He received a call from NC US House Representative Jeff Jackson letting us know that

the direct funding that we requested for the Lynn St pump station replacement has been secured in the

amount of $800,000 in federal funding. He said we are also going to be working with the current CDBG-I

grant balance to see if Lowell can add this to the expenses of that grant and hopefully use that together

with the federal funding we anticipate receiving.

2. Widening Betterment Agreement meeting is April 12

3. Mayor/Manager meeting in Cramerton on March 19 at 12:15 at Cramerton Town Hall. He said he has

attended a few of these and thinks it is incredibly useful to see how municipalities can work together and

learn from each other.

4. Two Rivers Board meeting is on March 27th. They will be discussing the 7 1/2 percent water/sewer

increase that Two Rivers is going to levy out to all the wholesale customers and their citizens and the City
21



of Gastonia as well. He will get more information out to council after that meeting.

5. Rogosin Blvd speed bump/traffic control - Addresses have been compiled for a mail list and they are

making a call list for a meeting. Will coordinate a date for the meeting and will put up signs in that

neighborhood on both sides of the street to notify residents. This is to see what traffic calming measures

the residents feel are necessary in that area.

6. Security Access to City Hall and the Police department has been finalized as of today. This was through a

League of Municipalities Safety Grant.

7. Citizens Academy is going well. The last one was GIS, Stormwater, and Communications in one night.

Next up is the Planning Department session.

8. Claim on a sewer back up at a local church and we are working with the League of Municipalities with

that .

9. CDBG-NR - thanks to Cheryl Ramsey and the representative with WithersRavenel, the city had a clean

audit when the NC Department of Commerce came recently for their audit review. He will pass along any

documentation received regarding the audit results.

10. CDBG-NR updates - on the last stretch of the 4 homes and the Community Center is finished. We are

just making sure all the small things are done but the contractor is done with it.

7B. City Attorney Report-

None at this time. Mayor Simonds thanked Mr. Gonzalez for filling in for Mr. Russell.

7C. Mayor and City Council General Discussion- 7:19 PM

Mayor Simonds stated that a child was lost at Holbrook recently, Kamarion, and their funeral was this past

Saturday. He said the school principal, Mr. Ross, has applied for some bracelets for the school. Once they

come in Councilmember Smith will give them a plaque and he will provide the money for the kids to have

pizza. This won't be announced until they get the bracelets in and he will let council know. He said we also

lost another child, Saturday, who was 18 years old. He said we have to be there for the citizens. He

thanked Councilmember Smith for going with him to the funeral Saturday representing Lowell.

No one else spoke this evening.

8. Adjournment

8A. Meeting Adjournment- 7:21 PM

Mayor Pro Tem Bates made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Chitwood. The vote was

unanimously approved. The meeting adjourned at 7:21pm.

22



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Finance Report

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4A

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

02-29-2024 Dashboard.pdf

To:  Scott Attaway, City Manager

From:  Lisa Nolen, Finance Director

Date:  4-2-2024

Re:  Finance Update

Utility Billing:

Finance:

Other:

Assist utility billing department daily with posting payments, reconciling, completing deposit, answering phone, and 

other needed tasks due to vacancy in the department.

Answer questions from utility billing staff.

Assist with training of Accounts Payable/Payroll clerk to provide additional assistance for utility billing department due 

to vacancy.

Issue purchase orders for staff.

Process and pay bills via check and online.

Ensure all transactions are entered correctly and reconcile bank accounts.

Complete tasks as needed for the agenda related to Council meetings.

Complete reporting requirements for SCIF grant and update spreadsheet for all SCIF related transactions.

Complete needed documentation and tasks for other grants.

Train Accounts Payable/Payroll clerk on duties to assist Finance Director.

Assist other staff as needed.

Other duties as needed.

Attend Department Head meetings.

Attend meetings with City Manager.

Attend Leadership Gaston classes.

Attend other meetings as needed.

23



City of Lowell, North Carolina
FY 2024 Revenue Dashboard
2/29/2024

Type Budget
YTD thru 

02/29/2024
Budget 

Remaining
Percent 

Remaining
Percent of FY24 

Remaining

General Fund 5,007,973.98  4,638,047.89 369,926.09  7% 33%
Water/Sewer Fund 1,755,709.24  1,429,832.59 325,876.65  19% 33%
Stormwater Fund 423,774.44  261,666.92  162,107.52  38% 33%
Total 7,187,457.66  6,329,547.40 857,910.26  12% 33%

Notes:
None

Funds

City of Lowell, North Carolina
FY 2024 Expense Dashboard
2/29/2024

Department Budget
YTD thru 

02/29/2024
Budget 

Remaining
Percent 

Remaining
Percent of FY24 

Remaining

Administration 2,652,310.85 1,164,624.52  1,487,686.33  56% 33%
Public Safety 1,327,415.47 783,838.51 543,576.96  41% 33%
Public Works-Streets 318,185.88  168,831.17 149,354.71  47% 33%
Sanitation 345,633.72  200,213.12 145,420.60  42% 33%
Parks & Rec 257,188.22  142,541.04 114,647.18  45% 33%
Powell Bill 100,000.04  16,918.30  83,081.74 83% 33%
Total 5,000,734.18 2,476,966.66  2,523,767.52  50% 33%

Water/Sewer 1,380,721.44 884,260.23 496,461.21  36% 33%
Wastewater Treatment 374,987.80  224,136.26 150,851.54  40% 33%
Total 1,755,709.24 1,108,396.49  647,312.75  37% 33%

Stormwater 423,774.44  228,379.28 195,395.16  46% 33%
Total 423,774.44  228,379.28 195,395.16  46% 33%

Notes:
None 

General Fund

Water/Sewer Fund

Stormwater Fund

24



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Communications Report

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4B

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Cristy Cummings, Communications Director

Date: 4-1-2024

Re: March Communications Report

City website updates

Updated Quick Links on the Homepage

Added documents as requested by Department Heads

Completed a new ARPA update page on the website with descriptions and photos of projects

Creation of social media content for Facebook and Instagram

Event promotions

Holiday/office closing posts

Other posts to keep residents in-the-know

CodeRed

Updated CodeRed contacts

Sent out City alerts (phone, email, text)

Easter Egg Hunt

Easter Senior Lunch

Good Friday office closing

Lowell PD's Community Watch meeting

General

Set up agenda link and ran test meetings for Planning Board meeting, Stormwater Commission meeting, and 

regular City Council meeting.

Reformatted Advocacy Agenda report from a 2-page plain text Word document into an 11-page colorful and 

attractive document

Ran agenda link for Planning Board and Stormwater Commission meetings

Monitored video and audio during regular City Council meeting and Special City Council meeting

Coordinated Easter Senior Lunch

Finalized registrations

Ordered food

Purchased prizes

Purchased all supplies

Volunteer coordination
25



Set-up of tables and chairs/tablecloths

Day of coordination

Completed deposit and created a spreadsheet for Finance

Attended meetings with:

Staff Department head meeting

Budget Engagement and AI meeting with staff

Communications Workshop with Centralina

Council meeting

Created and presented Communications presentation to Citizen's Academy

26



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Planning Report

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4C

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager 

From: Tyler Cobb, Planner

Date: 4-4-2024

Re: Monthly Department Update

Code Enforcement: 

Multiple nuisance violation letters issued.

1 Minimum Housing Case 

Enforcement Action:

Contracted nuisance case with Public Works

Zoning:

Processed (6) zoning permits in March. 

Permit count (29) for calendar year 2024 to-date. 

Meeting regarding Spencer Ridge development agreement.

Meeting regarding Spencer Ridge water/sewer line alinements.

Reviewed two recombination plats.

Reviewed Façade grants 

Planning:

Attended Lowell Planning and Zoning meeting, 3/5/2024.

Attended Lowell City Council Meeting, 3/12/2024.

Attended Lowell Community Committee meeting 3/25/2023.

Attended EDC meeting in Dallas 

Other:

Attended monthly department head meeting.

Attended Polimorphic Monthly update meeting.

Attended Budget Meeting. 

Presented at Citizen Academy 

Attended Interlocal Agreement Meeting.

Gaston County GCamp

Attended Advocacy Agenda Meeting

27



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Public Works Report

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4D

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Thomas Shrewsbury, Public Works

Date: 4-3-2024

Re: Public Works Report

        Mulch and pine needles were put out at McCord and Harold Rankin parks.

        In McCord Park, the irrigation system was gone through repairing any leaks that were found

2-inch line break on Hunter Paige Ct.

Repair tapping saddle at 3004 Tolbert Court

6-inch line break on Catawba Run Rd.

2-inch line break on Dogwood Street

1-inch line break on N. Church St.

2-inch line break on Lowell Ave.

Street Department employees continued working to keep catch basin boxes and grates clean. Crews used hydro-vac equipment to 

clean and remove debris from culverts, pipes, and boxes.

City crews worked on spring cleaning in parks and city-owned properties. Staff treated all parks with fire ant control and chemicals 

to help control weeds.

Water Department staff repaired the following leaks:

Water Dept crews worked to replace several broken or damaged water meter boxes that had been discovered while performing the 

Lead and Copper Inventory.

City crews worked to replace water meters in the system that have not been converted to radio read. Meters had not been converted 

due to connection issues or repairs that were needed. City staff made the necessary repairs or changes to allow approximately a 

dozen meters to be switched out. More water meters are planned for conversion in the coming weeks.

Staff continued work on the lead water line identification and inventory. Crews worked to complete numerous more inspections and 

will continue to consistently work towards completion of the state-mandated service line inventory.

Staff worked on preparing a pavement condition study for all Lowell streets. This will be the start of prioritizing resurfacing/ 

paving lists going forward. Streets are being judged based on rideability, alligatoring, potholes, open cuts, and utility indentions. 

28



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Geographic Information System (GIS) Report

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4E

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Todd Stroupe, GIS Analyst

Date: 4-3-2024

Re: Geographic Information System (GIS) Report

GIS and Mapping 

Other Tasks and Assignments

Meetings and Events

Provided Harold Rankin Storm GIS data to WithersRavenal per their request 

Developed City’s minor storm utility and storm drainage improvements projects interactive web map 

Provided Lowell trail GIS Data to Carolina Thread Trail per their request

Replied to citizen’s inquiry about Interstate 85 Widening Gaston County

Worked with Public Works Director to complete a pavement condition survey of Lowell maintained roads.

Generated Choice USA Beverage INC rezoning case map

Worked with Stormwater Administrator to map Holbrook Middle School’s storm system

Continue to work on lead service line inventory

Continue to work on Phase 2 of MS4/stormwater infrastructure mapping

Updated Survey123 online form for 2  Annual Lowell BBQ team sign-upsnd

Created Lowell Branded PowerPoint presentation template

Created community center bathroom remodel project scope document

Attended GCLMPO TCC Meeting

Participated in Harold Rankin PARTF site visit with WithersRavenal

Participated in Aberdeen Blvd Extension site visit with Labella and others

Attended internal FY 25 budget meeting

Attended internal SWMP progress meeting

Attended interlocal agreement meeting with Gaston County Soil and Erosion

Assisted with Easter Senior Lunch

Participated in former Boy’s and Girl’s Club site visit with CRS
29



Edgemont Cemetery Mapping Project

Kicked off the mapping project in October 2023

1,552 graves were collected as of April 3, 2024

Currently working through the final round of information collection.

Currently finalizing public-facing interactive web map that will allow users to click on a grave for names, birth and 

death dates, pictures of headstones, etc.

30



31



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Police Report

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4F

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Jeff Harrison, Assistant Chief of Police 

Date: 4-3-2024

Re: March Police Report

March call log numbers were like months past and close to what we have experienced for past years for March. Special 

checks took a large jump, a result of a police staff meeting called by Assistant Chief Harrison. Traffic stops counts returned 

close to an expected amount after one of our active traffic enforcers returned from leave. The New World changeover is still 

affecting our ability to calculate accurate citation numbers.  

Chief Moore attended an ongoing event at Gaston Early College. The event had him interacting and providing feedback to 

students who were working on several community service projects. Topics the students had been working on include 

Lithium in Gaston, clear-cutting forest for housing, and food gardens for low income. Chief Moore provided information for a 

group of students that was studying the effect after school programs might have deterring juvenile crime. 

A code enforcement issue was identified at 501 S. Church St. This house has caused many problems for police and code 

enforcement for many years. Problems like high grass, junk motor vehicles, minimum housing, and vagrancy are the most 

common. The most recent call for service was for a homeless subject that had taken up residence there. He had lit a fire in 

a barrel inside the abandoned home. Chief Moore contacted Mr. Cobb requesting COL code enforcement to get involved. 

With Jon Fulbright’s recent resignation, one sergeant position is vacant. Police administration consulted with city leadership 

and decided a full promotional process would be utilized to assist Chief Moore with his decision on promotion of an officer. 

The process will consist of officers submitting a letter of consideration for promotion (due on 04-01-2024), a written test of 

the LPD policy manual (scheduled for 04-10-2024), and a day where interview panel members will conduct both a formal 

interview and a scenario-based interview (date TBD). Panel members will be constructed of officers ranked sergeant or 

higher from surrounding agencies, a local community member, and leadership from a surrounding municipality. Panel 

members will score the candidates on a prescribed scale. All the results will be assembled and presented to Chief Moore for 

his selection. 

New World should be running, and the fully operational records management system utilized by the second week in April. 

The Metro-E connection hosted by Spectrum was not fully functional after installation. City of Gastonia IT worked diligently 

with Spectrum to help them identify and resolve the issue that was causing problems. The circuit has been tested and the 

network is live in the police building. The staff is currently testing firewall rules to make sure we can access all needed 

websites and investigating tools, so the conversion goes as smooth as possible. 

32



Assistant Chief Harrison called a department staff meeting on March 20 . The administration staff wanted to discuss a 

recent dip in staff morale that had been brought to our attention. We also discussed the upcoming sergeant’s promotion 

process and a couple corrective issues were presented. The patrol staff was brought up to speed for the current budget year 

and where some budget constraints may be experienced while we finish out the fiscal year. The information was received 

well by the officers, and they appreciated learning where and how budget funds are distributed. 

Yearly calls for March

2022- 750

2023- 798

2024- 976

th

33



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Stormwater Department Report

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Consent Agenda Item: 4G

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Jamie Watkins, Stormwater Administrator

Date: October 4-3-2024

Re: Monthly Department Update

Presented a department overview to members of the Citizen Academy

Participated in a two-day multi-agency Conservation Field Day event held at Gaston County

Investigated and closed out a stormwater complaint

Attended monthly department head meeting

Negotiated edits to the proposed updated inter local agreements with Gaston County for Soil & Erosion Control 

enforcement, and Stormwater plan review services. 

Attended budget meeting

Met with GIS Specialist Todd Stroupe to go over "to-do-list" of tasks to be completed in the next three months as Permit 

Year Three comes to an end.

Updated permit audit and outreach tracking spreadsheets

Attended Women in Government luncheon at the Centralina COG

34



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Joe Gates

Public Hearing - Text Amendment ZTA24-01 - Article 17, Sign Regulations

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

Unfinished Business Item: 5A

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

March 24 CC Meeting Material - Sign Regualtions.pdf

Statements of Consistency.pdf

01-2024 Amending the LDO - Article 17 Sign Regulations.pdf

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager 

From: Tyler Cobb, Planner

Date: April 9, 2024

Re: FILE ZTA24-01: Amending multiple sections of Article 17 - Sign Regulations, of the Lowell Development 

Ordinance to allow for more sign area on wall signs, increased eligibility for Master Sign Plan and modifying 

Section 17.13 Nonconforming Signs 

The Planning Board during their regularly scheduled meeting on March 5th, 2024, reviewed this request. The Planning Board voted 

unanimously to recommend APPROVAL of the proposed text amendments.

STAFF REPORT: On February 6th, 2024, staff expressed a directive from the City Council to revise the Sign Regulations in

the Lowell Development Ordinance, Article 17. After some discussion, the Planning Board made the following 

recommendations for staff to implement in their material in the next meeting (March 5th, 2024). The following areas were 

selected as topics that could be amended to address the desired outcome of the City Council. The attached amendments 

achieve the goals stated by council and accomplish the following:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff and planning board recommend the approval of the proposed text amendment. 

Allow for more wall sign area for larger properties and buildings located in our commercial & industrial districts.

Modify language for nonconforming signs to allow them to be replaced without meeting new/current standards.

Increases the amount of properties that are eligible to use the "Master Sign Plan" process.

35



FILE # ZTA24-01 

17.7 Requirements for Permanent Signs Requiring an Approval of a Zoning Permit 

17.7-1 Permanent sign requirements.  The following tables and text provide the design and 
dimensional requirements for permanent signs that require a permit.  Requirements 
include copy area, number, type of illumination, and letter height for both attached 
and freestanding signs.  Setback and height requirements are established for 
freestanding signs and detailed design requirements are provided for monument and 
pole signs.    

(A.) Only one general attached sign (blade, V-type, or flat) is allowed per street or 
parking frontage. RESERVED 

36



FILE # ZTA24-01 

 

*May encroach into adjoining street right-of-way in the Main Street (MS) and Mixed Use (MU) 
Districts pursuant to an encroachment agreement subject to the provisions of Sections 17.5(G) 
and 17.7-1(I) of this Article.    
**For buildings located in the Mixed-Use District (MU-2), Interstate Highway 85 Commercial 
District (C-85), US Highway 74 Commercial District (C-74) or the Industrial District (IND), 
allowed sign area shall be calculated at 10% of the eligible wall area, not to exceed 100 square 
feet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sign Type  

Sign Copy  
Minimum  

 Area  Sign  
Letter  

Allowance Illumination  
Size 

(sq. ft.)  

Maximum 
Number  

Other 
Requirements  

 Permanent Attached Signs – General   

Blade* (or 
Projecting)  

  

  
32**  

  
  

Ambient  
External  
Internal  

  

6”  
  

One per street 
or parking  

frontage per  
occupancy  

  

Only one sign 
(blade, V-type or flat 

sign) allowed  
per occupancy per  

street or parking 
frontage  

  
 

V-type*  

  

Flat* (or 
Wall)  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  

 

37



FILE # ZTA24-01 

17.10 Master Sign Plan 

17.10-2 Application.  Master sign plans may be submitted for the following types of 
developments: 

(A.) Traditional Neighborhood Development (TNDO) projects, in accordance with the 
provisions of Article 8 of this Ordinance. 

(B.) Commercial, institutional, industrial, or mixed-use developments containing three 
two (2) or more acres in area. 

17.13 Nonconforming Signs 

(C.) A permanent sign which does not comply with one or more of the 
requirements of this Article shall be grandfathered (deemed a vested right) until such 
sign is removed, physically altered beyond maintenance (as defined), relocated, 
damaged or destroyed, after which it shall be brought into compliance with all 
requirements of this Article. Such signs may replaced or modified if such installation 
or modification does not increase the existing nonconformity, as determined by the 
Planning, Zoning & Subdivision Administrator.  Nonconforming temporary signs 
shall not be grandfathered and shall be brought into compliance with all requirements 
of this Article within ten (10) days from the date of notification by the Planning, 
Zoning & Subdivision Administrator or duly authorized code enforcement agent of 
the City.  

38



Statements of Consistency and Reasonableness. Prior to adopting or rejecting any
amendment, the City Council shall approve a statement in accordance with G.S.
160D-605(a) describing whether or not the proposed amendment is consistent with the
“City of Lowell Comprehensive Land Use Plan”, adopted April 13, 2021 including
subsequent amendments adopted by the City Council of the City of Lowell and other
applicable adopted plans. When either adopting or rejecting a zoning map amendment
the Lowell City Council shall approve a statement analyzing the reasonableness of the
proposed amendment in accordance with G.S. 160D-605(b). The statement of
reasonableness may consider, among other factors: (1.) The size, physical conditions,
and other attributes of the area proposed to be rezoned; (2.) The benefits and
detriments to the landowners, the neighbors, and the surrounding community; (3.) The
relationship between the current actual and permissible development on the tract and
adjoining areas and the development that would be permissible under the proposed
amendment; (4.) Why the action taken is in the public interest; and (5.) Any changed
conditions warranting the amendment. Such statements may be combined into a single
statement per G.S. 160D-605(c) and incorporated into ordinances amending either the
text of an ordinance established
Lowell Development Ordinance - Article 5 - Page 7 under the authority of G.S. 160D or,
the Official Zoning Map established under the authority of G.S. 160D-105(a) reflecting
the division of territorial jurisdiction established under authority of G.S. 160D-703.

39



ORDINANCE NO. 1-2024 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE LOWELL DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF LOWELL 

WHEREAS, on May 11, 2021, the Lowell City Council adopted the Lowell Development 
Ordinance, also known as the LDO, to promote the health, safety, and general welfare off the residents of 
the City of Lowell by regulating the use of buildings and land development, planned developments, 
manufactured housing, development of subdivisions, signs, off-street parking and loading, planting yards, 
watershed protection, flood damage protection, and/or undertaking other consistent action as provided in 
the Ordinance; and, 

WHEREAS, Article 5 of the LDO allows the Lowell City Council to amend, supplement, 
modify, or repeal any provision of the Ordinance or to amend the Zoning Map pursuant to the procedures 
established by N.C. Gen Stat, §160D-601 through §160D-605 and upon finding of compliance with the 
City of Lowell Comprehensive Land Use Plan; and,  

WHEREAS, on March 5, 2024, the Lowell Planning and Zoning Board voted in unanimous 
consent to recommend a text amendment to the Lowell Development Ordinance Section 17.7-1 
Requirements For Permanent Signs Requiring Approval Of A Zoning Permit, Table 17.1 - Permanent 
Signs, Section 17.10-12 Master Sign Plan-Application And Section 17.13 Nonconforming Signs 

WHEREAS, the Lowell City Council, after conducting a public hearing which was duly 
advertised as provided by the foregoing status, has found these amendments to be in the public interest, in 
furtherance of the general purpose and objectives of the LDO, and in compliance with the City of Lowell 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council Lowell, North Carolina that: 

Section 1. Amend Section 17.7-1: Requirements for Permanent Signs Requiring Approval of a 
Zoning Permit: 

17.7 Requirements for Permanent Signs Requiring an Approval of a Zoning 
Permit (A) Permanent sign requirements.    

(A.) Only one general attached sign (blade, V-type, or flat) is allowed per street or 
parking frontage. RESERVED 

40



Amend Table 17.1: Permanent Signs 

Sign Type 

Sign Copy 
Minimum 

Area Sign 
Letter 

Allowance Illumination 
Size 

(sq. ft.) 

Maximum 
Number 

Other 
Requirements 

Permanent Attached Signs – General 

Blade* (or 
Projecting)  

32**  
Ambient  
External  
Internal  

6”  

One per street 
or parking  

frontage per  
occupancy  

Only one sign 
(blade, V-type or flat 

sign) allowed  
per occupancy per  

street or parking 
frontage  

V-type*

Flat* (or 
Wall)  

41



*May encroach into adjoining street right-of-way in the Main Street (MS) and Mixed Use (MU)
Districts pursuant to an encroachment agreement subject to the provisions of Sections
17.5(G) and 17.7-1(I) of this Article.
**For buildings located in the Mixed-Use District (MU-2), Interstate Highway 85 Commercial
District (C-85), US Highway 74 Commercial District (C-74) or the Industrial District (IND),
allowed sign area shall be calculated at 10% of the eligible wall area, not to exceed 100
square feet.

Amend Section 17.10-12: Master Sign Plan, Application 

17.10 Master Sign Plan  

17.10-2        Application.  Master sign plans may be submitted for the following types of 
developments: 

(A.) Commercial, institutional, industrial, or mixed-use developments 
containing three two (2) or more acres in area. 

Amend Section 17.13: Nonconforming Signs 

(A.) A permanent sign which does not comply with one or more of the 
requirements of this Article shall be grandfathered (deemed a vested right) until such 
sign is removed, physically altered beyond maintenance (as defined), relocated, 
damaged or destroyed, after which it shall be brought into compliance with all 
requirements of this Article. Such signs may replaced or modified if such installation or 
modification does not increase the existing nonconformity, as determined by the 
Planning, Zoning & Subdivision Administrator.  Nonconforming temporary signs shall not 
be grandfathered and shall be brought into compliance with all requirements of this 
Article within ten (10) days from the date of notification by the Planning, Zoning & 
Subdivision Administrator or duly authorized code enforcement agent of the City.  

42



Section 2. All ordinances of portions of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 3. Should any provision of this ordinance be declared invalid or constitutional by any court 
of competent jurisdiction, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as 
a whole or any part thereof which is not specifically declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from the date of this adoption. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this _____________ day of _________________, 2024. 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 

______________________________ 

Larry Simonds, Mayor 

43



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Request for Public Hearing: Spencer Ridge Subdivision Development Agreement

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6A

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Tyler Cobb, Planner

Date: 4-9-2024

Re: Request to Set Public Hearing for Spencer Ridge Subdivision Development Agreement 

STAFF REPORT 

Spencer Ridge Development Agreement 

Planning Board Meeting 4/2/2024

 

Overview:

As part of our ongoing efforts to promote responsible growth and development within our community, we have been in 

negotiations with LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC regarding a proposed project within our jurisdiction. This project has 

reached a critical stage where a formal development agreement is necessary to outline the terms, conditions, and 

responsibilities of both the developer and the city.

Purpose:

The purpose of this development agreement is to establish a clear framework for the project, ensuring that it aligns with 

our community's values, goals, and regulatory requirements. By formalizing our expectations and commitments, we can 

effectively manage the development process and mitigate any potential risks or conflicts that may arise.

Key Components:

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

Next Steps:

Carefully review the draft development agreement provided alongside this memorandum. Your input, feedback, and insights 

are invaluable as we work towards finalizing a mutually beneficial arrangement. 

Please request the Lowell City Council to set a public hearing on May 14, 2024 at 6:00 p.m.

Project Description: The agreement will define the scope and nature of the proposed development, including the 

type of structures, their intended use, and any associated amenities or infrastructure.

Timeline: A detailed timeline for the project will be outlined, specifying milestones, deadlines, and key deliverables to 

ensure timely completion and adherence to established schedules.

Responsibilities: Clear description of responsibilities between the developer and the city will be established, covering 

areas such as construction, maintenance, compliance with regulations, and provision of necessary services.

Compliance and Enforcement: Provisions for monitoring, compliance, and enforcement mechanisms will be included 

to uphold the terms of the agreement and address any deviations or non-compliance issues.

44



Attachments

Spencer Ridge - Development Agreement v5.pdf

Version 2.0 202022-08-30 - Spencer Mountain - Rezoning Plan.pdf

Development Agreement Guide.pdf

45



  

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Drawn by and mail to: 

 

St. Amand & Efird PLLC (JSE)  

Lincoln at Belle Grove  

3315 Springbank Lane, Suite 308   

Charlotte, North Carolina 28226 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF GASTON 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), is made and entered into this 

____ day of ____, 202___4 (the “Effective Date”), by and among LENNAR CAROLINAS, 

LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Lennar” or “Developer”), the COUNTY OF 

GASTON, a North Carolina County, a body politic and corporate (hereinafter sometimes also 

referred to as “Gaston County” or the “County”) and THE CITY OF LOWELL, a municipal 

corporation, created, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of North 

Carolina (the “City”).  Developer, the County and the City may be collectively referred to herein 

as “Parties.” 

AUTHORITY 

 

The North Carolina General Statutes ("N.C.G.S.") §l60D-l001 through §l60D-1012, as it 

exists on the Effective Date of this Agreement (the "Development Agreement Act"), enables 

cities and towns to enter into binding development agreements with entities intending to develop 

real property under certain conditions set forth in the Development Agreement Act.  

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001(a)(l) provides that "Development projects often occur in multiple 

phases over several years, requiring a long-term commitment of both public and private resources." 

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001(a)(3) provides that "Because of their scale and duration, such 

projects often require careful coordination of public capital facilities planning, financing, and 

construction schedules and phasing of the private development." 

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 (a)(4) provides that "Such projects involve substantial commitments 

of private capital, which developers are usually unwilling to risk without sufficient assurances that 

development standards will remain stable through the extended period of development." 

46



  

2 

N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 (a)(6) provides that "To better structure and manage development 

approvals for such developments and ensure their proper integration into local capital facilities 

programs, local governments need flexibility to negotiate such developments." 

In view of the foregoing, N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 through §160D-1012 expressly authorize 

local governments and agencies to enter into development agreements with developers pursuant 

to the procedures and requirements of N.C.G.S. §160D-1001 through 1012. 

In addition to the authority under the N.C.G.S, Sections 7.15-1 through 7.15-4 the Lowell 

Development Ordinance as adopted on May 11, 2021 (the “LDO”) authorize and require the City 

to enter into development agreement for any development project (i) that will be classified as 

Traditional Neighborhood Development Overlay (TNDO) District, Main Street (MS) District, and 

Mixed Use (MU-1 and MU-2) District or (ii) Major Subdivisions in any district where new street 

infrastructure will be developed. 

Section 7.15-2 of the LDO sets forth the contents of any development agreement entered 

into the by the City, in addition to any requirements under the N.C.G.S., including the time period 

for completion, the description of the property subject to the development agreement, all terms 

and conditions for development that differ from the LDO, and the delivery date of public facilities. 

The City on April 13, 2021 adopted its comprehensive land use plan (the “CUP”) to 

promote orderly growth within the City. 

In addition to the CUP, on August 10, 2021 and later amended on March 14, 2023, the City 

adopted its policy for managing utility allocations and extensions to establish sound policy for the 

management of water and sewer capacity (the “Utility Allocation Policy”), the terms of which are 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. 

In addition to any force of law conferred upon this Agreement by North Carolina law 

related to local governments, the terms of this Agreement are also contractual in nature, are a result 

of good and valuable consideration and mutual covenants, and may be enforced as contractual 

terms. 

W I T N E S E T H: 
 

WHEREAS, Developer has entered into a purchase and sale agreement to acquire from 

Belmont Land and Investment Company, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company 

(“BLIC”) that certain real property located in Gaston County, North Carolina as more particularly 

described on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”).  Following Developer’s acquisition of 

the Property, Developer intends to develop the Property into a single-family residential community 

(the “Intended Development”), subject to Developer’s receipt of all required permits and 

approvals from applicable governmental authorities (collectively, the “Approvals”). 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop the Intended Development in phases (each a 

“Phase” and collectively the “Phases”) according to the phase schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 

B. 

47



  

3 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 

and construct an amenity center to serve the Intended Development (hereinafter, the “Amenity 

Center”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 

and construct a landscape buffer around the Intended Development as required by the LDO 

(hereinafter, the “Landscape Buffers”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 

and construct stormwater control measures within the Intended Development as required by the 

LDO (hereinafter, the “SCMs”). 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals for Phase 4 (the “Phase 4 Approvals”), 

Developer has agreed to plan, engineer and construct a waterline to serve Phase 4 (hereinafter, the 

“Phase 4 Waterline”). 

WHEREAS, the Phase 4 Waterline requires an easement from the adjacent property 

owner, Gaston County (herein the “County”) for the development and installation of the same. 

WHEREAS, the Phase 4 Waterline requires the County grant Developer an easement for 

to allow for the extension of an existing waterline (the “Existing County Waterline”) through 

Gaston County PID # 148012, commonly known as “George Poston Park.” 

WHEREAS, the County has agreed to grant Developer County Easement (as defined 

herein) as necessary for Developer to extend the Existing County Waterline . 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Approvals, Developer has agreed to plan, engineer 

and construct an easement for access to the Carolina Thread Trail (the “Trail”) within the Intended 

Development (hereinafter, the “Trail Easement”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants 

contained herein, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

1. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the later of (i) the date on 

which this Agreement is executed by the City and Developer or (ii) Developer’s acquisition of the 

Property (the “Commencement Date”), and shall terminate on the date which is ___ (__) years 

thereafter (the “Term”).  Notwithstanding such termination date, provided that the Developer is 

not in default of this Agreement, Developer has pursued the Intended Development, and the 

Intended Development has not been completed, at the conclusion of five years from the 

Commencement Date the termination date of this Agreement shall automatically be extended for 

one (1) additional five (5) year term.  At the conclusion of the initial five (5) year extension of the 

Term, provided that the Developer is not in default of this Agreement, Developer has pursued 

development of the Property, and the Intended Development has not been completed, the 

termination date of this Agreement shall automatically be extended for a second and final 

additional five (5) year term. 

2. Construction of the Amenity Center.  Following Developer’s acquisition of the 

Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall complete the Amenity 

Center which shall include: (i) a pool and clubhouse and (ii) any required environment permits to 

48

JaGalloway
Callout
6?

JaGalloway
Callout
INstead of adding timeline to each section below, could we add a general schedule? (approximate and based off 9/24 plan approval):Phase 1 - 4/26Phase 2 - 2/27Phase 3 - 2/28Phase 4 - 2/30

JaGalloway
Arrow



  

4 

complete the project (collectively, the “Amenity Center Improvements”). The construction of 

the Amenity Center Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plansapproved in accordance 

with the Rezoning Plan (the “Amenity Plans”) as prepared by Developer’s project engineer 

(“Project Engineer”).  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this Agreement, 

pursue the substantial completion of the Amenity Center Improvements prior to that date which is 

the later of (i) the date on which the two hundred fiftieth (250th) certificate of occupancy (“CO”) 

is issued for the Intended Development or (ii) the date on which the first CO is issued for Phase 

4(the “Amenity Completion Deadline”).  The substantial completion of the Amenity Center 

Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the certification of substantial 

completion from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same are substantially complete in 

accordance with the Amenity Plans.  

3. Installation of Landscape Buffers.  Following Developer’s acquisition of the 

Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall install Landscape 

Buffers around the Property which shall include: (i) code required plantings and (ii) any required 

environmental permits to complete the same (collectively, the “Landscape Buffer 

Improvements”) (iii) any related rezoning conditions. The installation of the Landscape Buffer 

Improvements shall occur in accordance with theplans approved in accordance with the Rezoning 

Plan, (the “Buffer Plans”) as prepared by the Project Engineer and approved/stamped by City 

Staff.  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this Agreement,  complete the 

Landscape Buffer Improvements prior to that date on which the final CO is issued for the 

respective Phase in which the Landscape Buffer Improvements are located  (the “Buffer 

Completion Deadline”).  The completion of the Landscape Buffer Improvements shall be 

evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the certification of completion from the Project 

Engineer, certifying that the same are complete in accordance with the Buffer Plans. Following 

completion of the Landscape Buffer Improvements, Developer shall be permitted in accordance 

with the rezoning conditions and the Lowell Development Ordinance (“LDO”) (see open space 

requirements and Article 2) without consent of the City to convey its rights and obligations for the 

maintenance of the Landscape Buffer Improvements to a property owners association established 

for the ownership, maintenance, and upkeep of common area facilities located on the Property (the 

“Property Owners Association”). Upon such conveyance or designation, all duties and 

obligations of Developer hereunder shall transfer to the Property Owners Association and 

Developer shall be released from the rights, duties and obligations assigned immediately upon 

such assignment. 

4. Construction of Stormwater Control Measures. Following Developer’s acquisition 

of the Property and in connection with the development thereof, Developer shall install SCMs 

around the Property which shall include: (i) those stormwater control measures as designed and 

approved on the construction drawings for each Phase of the Intended Development (ii) any 

required environment permits to complete the same (collectively, the “SCM Improvements”). 

The installation of the SCM Improvements shall occur in accordance with the plans approved in 

accordance with the City, County and NCDEQ Requirements (the “SCM Plans”) as prepared by 

the Project Engineer.  Developer shall in good faith, subject to the terms of this Agreement, pursue 

the substantial completion of the SCM Improvements prior to that date on which is the later of (i) 

twelve (12) months following the issuance of the final CO for the respective Phase in which the 

SCM Improvements are located  or (ii) twelve (12) months following the issuance of the final CO 

for the respective drainage area in which the SCM Improvements are located (the “SCM 

Completion Deadline”).  The substantial completion of the SCM Improvements shall be 

49



  

5 

evidenced by Developer’s delivery to City of the certification of substantial completion from the 

Project Engineer, certifying that the same are substantially complete in accordance with the SCM 

Plans. Following completion of the city/plan approved SCM Improvements, Developer shall be 

permitted, in compliance with in compliance with the LDO and without consent of the City to 

convey its rights and obligations for the maintenance of the SCM Improvements to a Property 

Owners Association. Upon such conveyance or designation, all duties and obligations of 

Developer hereunder shall transfer to the Property Owners Association and Developer shall be 

released from the rights, duties and obligations assigned immediately upon such assignment. 

5. The Developer agrees to use good faith efforts to procure all offsite easements from 

the owners of Gaston County Parcel IDs# 136566, 136565, 136563, 136562, 136561, 136560, 

136558, 136557 and 136559 as necessary for the installation of the utilities, including waterline 

extension through “George Poston Park” and force main along Lowell Spencer Mountain Road to 

serve the Intended Development (collectively, the “Offsite Easements”). In the event that 

Developer successfully acquires all Offsite Easements, Developer shall notify the City and County 

in writing of the same (each an "Easement Acquisition Notice"). In the event that the Developer 

is unable to obtain any of the Offsite Easements within forty-five (45) days following recording of 

this Agreement (the “Offsite Easement Deadline”) in the Office of the Gaston County Register 

of Deeds, the Developer shall notify the City and County in writing of the same (each an "Offsite 

Easement Notice").  

6. Construction of Waterline; Phase 4 Waterline; Extension of Utilities. Following 

Developer’s acquisition of the Property and in connection with the development of Phase 1, 

Developer shall complete the following improvements: installation of approximately 6500 linear 

feet of 12” waterline. In connection with the development of Phase 4, Developer shall complete 

the following improvements: (i) installation of utilities in accordance with either Section 6(a), 6(b) 

or 6(c), as applicable and (iii) any other encroachment or third party agreements as necessary along 

with any required environment permits to complete the Phase 4 Waterline (collectively, the 

“Waterline Improvements”). The construction of the Waterline Improvements shall occur in 

accordance with the plans h approved in accordance with the City, County and NCDEQ 

Requirements (the “Waterline Plans”) as the Project Engineer.  Developer shall in good faith, 

subject to the terms of this Agreement, pursue the substantial completion of the Waterline 

Improvements, including acquisition of the County Easement, prior to that date on which the first 

(1st) CO is issued for Phase 4 (the “Waterline Completion Deadline”).  The substantial 

completion of the Waterline Improvements shall be evidenced by Developer’s delivery to Town 

of the certification of substantial completion from the Project Engineer, certifying that the same 

are substantially complete in accordance with the Plans. 

a. In the event that Developer acquires all the Offsite Easements prior to the Offsite 

Easement Deadline, as evidenced by Developer’s delivery of the Easement Acquisition 

Notice, then within  one (1) month of receipt of the Easement Acquisition Notice, the 

County shall grant and convey to Developer an easement over and upon the property of the 

County, including George Poston Park,  as necessary for the construction of utilities, 

including without limitation, waterline and force main, as well as to tie into Existing 

County Waterline, together with all necessary temporary construction and grading 

easements to complete the utility work, as more particularly shown and depicted on that 

drawing entitled “ “ attached hereto as Exhibit “D” and incorporated herein by reference 

(collectively,  “County Easement Option A”).  

50

JaGalloway
Callout
or X months following plan approvals, whichever is later.



  

6 

b. In the event that Developer is unable to acquire all the Offsite Easements prior to 

the Offsite Easement Deadline, as evidenced by Developer’s delivery of the Offsite 

Easement Notice, then within  one (1) month of receipt of the Offsite Easement Notice, the 

County shall grant and convey to Developer an easement over and upon the property of the 

County, including George Poston Park,  as necessary for the construction of utilities, 

including without limitation, multiple waterlines and force main, as well as to tie into 

Existing County Waterline, together with all necessary temporary construction and grading 

easements to complete the utility work, as more particularly shown and depicted on that 

drawing entitled “ “ attached hereto as Exhibit “E” and incorporated herein by reference 

(collectively,  “County Easement Option B”). 

c. In the event that Developer acquires all the Offsite Easements prior to the Offsite 

Easement Deadline, and acquires record title to Gaston Parcel #136558, as evidenced by 

Developer’s delivery of the Easement Acquisition Notice and recording of a deed vesting 

title in Developer for Gaston Parcel #136558, then within one (1) month of receipt of the 

Developer’s written notice it has acquired Gaston Parcel #136558 and delivery of the 

Offsite Easement Notice, the County shall grant and convey to Developer a temporary 

construction easement and sight triangle easement over and upon the property of the 

County, including George Poston Park,  as necessary for the construction of a right-of-way 

connection from the Intended Development to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, as more 

particularly shown and depicted on that drawing entitled “ “ attached hereto as Exhibit 

“F” and incorporated herein by reference (collectively,  “County Easement Option C”) 

7. Grant of Trail Easement. Following Developer’s acquisition of the Property and in 

connection with the development thereof, Developer shall design and plan a location for access to 

the Trail, including having the Trail Easement surveyed or platted (the “Trail Survey”). Developer 

shall deliver a copy of the Trail Survey to the City for City’s written approval and consent to the 

location, and City shall approve the location of the Trail Easement within ten (10) days of receipt 

of the Trail Survey, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Parties shall enter 

into a written easement for the Trail Easement in the location as approved on the Trail Survey.  

The Parties agree that the Trail Easement shall be granted prior to that date on which the fiftieth 

(50th) CO is issued for the applicable Phase in which the Trail Easement is located (the “Easement 

Grant Deadline”).  The completion of the Trail Easement shall be evidenced by Developer’s 

recording of an easement agreement in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Gaston County in 

favor of the City for access to the Trail. 

8. Provision of Potable Water by City. Subject to the Preliminary Capacity Assurance 

Review (“PCAR”), Full Capacity Assurance Review (“FCAR”) and all applicable fees paid in 

association with the granting of the utility allocation with the required deadline stated in the City 

of Lowell Utility Allocation and Reservation Policy, as those procedures are described and detailed 

in the Utility Allocation Process, potable water will be supplied to the Property by the City upon 

request of the Developer and subject to the provisions of this Section 7. Developer will construct 

or cause to be constructed at Developer’s cost all necessary water service infrastructure to, from, 

and within the Property per City specifications which will be maintained by City or the provider. 

The Developer shall be responsible for maintaining all related internal water infrastructure until 

offered to, and accepted by, the City for public ownership and maintenance. To the extent 

easements are required to connect the improvements within the Property to the City’s existing 

improvements, the Developer will be responsible for providing such easements.  Upon final 

51

JaGalloway
Callout
or X months following plan approvals, whichever is later.



  

7 

inspection and acceptance by the City, the Developer shall provide a twelve (12) month warranty 

period for all water infrastructure constructed to serve the Intended Development. 

9. Provision of Sewage Treatment and Disposal by City. Subject to the PCAR and 

FCAR, as those procedures are described and detailed in the Utility Allocation Process, sewage 

treatment and disposal will be supplied to the Property by the City upon request of the Developer 

and subject to the provisions of this Section 8. Developer will construct or cause to be constructed 

at Developer’s cost all necessary sewer service infrastructure to, from, and within the Property per 

City specifications which will be maintained by it or the provider. The Developer shall be 

responsible for maintaining all related internal sewer infrastructure until offered to, and accepted 

by, the City for public ownership and maintenance. To the extent easements are required to connect 

the improvements within the Property to the City’s existing improvements, the Developer will be 

responsible for providing such easements.  Upon final inspection and acceptance by the City, the 

Developer shall provide a twelve (12) month warranty period for all sewer infrastructure 

constructed to serve the Intended Development. 

The City covenants that it has, will have, will construct or will acquire sufficient additional 

capacity so as to meet all reasonably foreseeable needs of current and projected future customers 

of the sewage system. 

 

10. System Development Fees/. Within forty-five (45) days following FCAR approval 

Developer shall pay all “System Development Fees” imposed by the City at the time of this 

Agreement, or following the date of this Agreement, provided such fees are applied consistently 

and in the same manner to all similarly-situated property within the City limits.. In particular, the 

Developer agrees that it shall not seek any exemptions for any portions of the Property from any 

current development impact fees (so long as such development impact fees are applied consistently 

and in the same manner to all similarly-situated property within the City limits) for any reason. 

11. The delivery date of such public facilities as may be provided by Sections 7 and 8 

above shall be conditioned on the successful performance by the Developer in implementing the 

proposed development and compliance with all terms of this Agreement.  

12. Sidewalks. As a public benefit, Developer shall install a sidewalk, as required by 

the LDO, along Lowell Spencer Mountain Road in accordance with the approved site plan. In the 

event that the Sidewalks are required to be installed within the margin of or within the North 

Carolina Department of Transportation maintained portion of Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, the 

City agrees to accept the Sidewalks for maintenance. 

13. Terms and Conditions that differ from the provisions of the LDO, provide however, 

that any plans or construction drawings once approved by the City shall be deemed to have met all 

applicable requirements. [We need a paragraph incorporating any additional terms set out in the 

conditional zoning approval.]  

a. Only the uses appearing in Table 8.1 of the Lowell Development Ordinance 

(LDO) shall be allowed in the “Single Family Residential 4 District Conditional 

Zoning” (SFR-4/CZ) created herein. 

52



  

8 

b. Minimum lot widths shall not be less than sixty linear feet (60’) in width as 

measured at the minimum required setback line per LDO Art./Sect. 8.4-2.  This 

condition exceeds the minimum requirement of the LDO art. Sect. 8.4-2. 

c. All applicable standards and specifications of the LDO shall be met. 

d. Stormwater conditions for design and post construction stormwater 

containment on this project: 

i. 200 Feet or 100-year Floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface 

waters. 

ii. For all projects with >10% BAU, Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) 

capable of treating the greater of 1.5” or the difference in stormwater 

runoff from pre-development and post-development conditions for the 

1-yr, 24-hour storm. 

iii. SCMs capable of limiting peak flow from the site at each point of 

discharge to the predevelopment conditions for the 1- and 10-yr, 24hr 

storm events.   

iv. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) 

used.   

v. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-yr design storm.   

vi. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans should be 

clearly explained to the responsible party.   

vii. Developer shall use commercially reasonable efforts to minimize BUA 

and runoff through site design and Low Impact Development (LID) 

measures such as downspout disconnection. 

e. Stormwater conditions for active construction: 

i. The use of high hazard and/or double row silt fencing along surface 

water bodies. 

ii. Retention basins capable of conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall 

sized to maximize drawdown time. 

iii. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains within 7 days after 

grading. 

iv. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10’. 

v. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site. 

vi. Implementation of devices on the two main tributaries running through 

the property before they enter the South Fork River to numerically 

53



  

9 

monitor turbidity during construction and provide alerts to regulators 

and site operators when turbidity levels exceed action levels. 

vii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the 

designers and owners, as needed.    

f. The general schematic development plan sheet RZ.01 appearing below 

establishes general layout and connectivity patterns. 

14. Cooperation.  The City agrees to cooperate with Developer in connection with the 

construction of the Improvements, including without limitation, including executing, within three 

(3) business days after Developer’s written request therefor, any and all documents, easements, 

encroachment agreements, instruments and plats, which are required to be executed by the City. 

15. Costs and Bond.  Developer shall be solely responsible for the expenses to construct 

the Improvements. As guaranty and security for performance of its obligations under this 

Agreement, Developer shall deposit with the City a bond or letter of credit covering the estimated 

cost of the Improvements (“Bond”). This Bond shall be posted with the City within five (5) 

business days of the date on which the first plat of the Intended Development is recorded. The 

Bond may be used to pay for completion of the Improvements as the sole and exclusive remedy of 

the City in the event of default by Developer under this Agreement.  The Bond shall auto-renew 

yearly. 

16. Engineers, Contractors and Consultants.  The parties acknowledge that Developer 

shall have the right to engage, consult and otherwise use engineers, contractors and consultants, 

including but not limited to the Project Engineer, without the consent or release of the City, in 

order to complete the Improvements.  

17. Development Standards.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, City 

acknowledges and agrees that Developer’s completion of the Improvements in accordance with 

the Plans, shall be subject to all faults and defects and without any expressed, implied or statutory 

warranties or representations of any kind, and Developer hereby disclaims any such 

representations and warranties.   

18. Notices. All notices required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be 

in writing and either (a) hand-delivered, (b) sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, (c) sent 

via FedEx or similar overnight service, or (d) sent via electronic mail, so long as notice is also 

provided through either method (a), (b) or (c) as herein described.  All notices shall be addressed 

to the party being noticed, and shall be deemed to have been given (i) when delivered, if by hand 

delivery, (ii) three (3) business days after deposit in a U.S. Post Office or official letter box, if sent 

by certified mail, (iii) one (1) business day after timely deposited in a FedEx or similar overnight 

service depository, or (iv) upon transmission by sender if sent via electronic mail. All notices shall 

be delivered or sent prepaid for the specified service by the party giving notice, and shall be 

addressed as follows: 

CITY: City of Lowell 

 ____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

54



  

10 

____________________ 

 

COUNTY: County of Gaston 

 ____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

____________________ 

 

 

LENNAR:  LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC 

6701 Carmel Road, Suite 425 

Charlotte, NC 28226  

Attn: Mark Henninger 

E-Mail: mark.henninger@lennar.com  

 

Copy To: LENNAR CORPORATION  

700 NW 107th Avenue - 4th Floor 

Miami, Florida 33172 

Attn: General Counsel 

E-Mail: mark.sustana@lennar.com  

 

Copy To: ST. AMAND & EFIRD, PLLC 

3315 Springbank Lane, Suite 308 

Charlotte, NC  28226 

Telephone No.:  (704) 837-2670 

Attn:  Scott Efird 

E-Mail:  sefird@stamand-efird.com  

19. Other Approvals. To the extent that any county or other local government, state or 

federal approvals are required in connection with the Improvements, City and County shall use 

reasonable efforts to assist Developer in obtaining such approvals. 

20. Inspection, Default and Remedies. During the Term of this Agreement the City 

shall have the right to enter the premises in order to conduct reasonable inspections, including 

inspections necessary to confirm or assure Developer’s compliance with the terms of this 

Agreement. In addition to any other remedies provided herein, the City shall have the right to 

withhold permit or other approvals in the event of material noncompliance with the terms of this 

Agreement. City shall take no action with respect to a default by Developer until the non-defaulting 

party has given written notice to the defaulting party and the defaulting party has failed to cure the 

default within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice (the “Cure Period”). 

21. Relationship of the Parties. This Agreement creates a contractual relationship 

between the parties. This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to create the relationship 

of master/servant, principal/agent, association, partnership, joint venture, or any other relationship 

where one party may be held responsible for acts of the other party. This Agreement does not 

impose any partnership obligation or liability upon either party. Further, this Agreement is not 

intended to create, nor does it create, a relationship whereby the conduct of Developer constitutes 

55



  

11 

"state action" for any purposes. The Parties agree and acknowledge that pursuant to N.C. Gen. 

Stat. § 160D-1006(c), the City will be responsible for the overall administration of the Agreement. 

22. Acquisition Contingency. The Parties hereby acknowledge, affirm and understand 

that as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Developer has not yet acquired the Property and 

is not the record owner thereof. As a result, the Parties hereby agree, covenant, and acknowledge 

that the obligations of the Parties hereunder shall be expressly conditioned upon Developer’s 

acquisition of the Property and taking record title thereto. In the event that the purchase and sale 

agreement is terminated and Developer does not acquire the Property, then Developer shall deliver 

written notice to the County the City and upon delivery thereof, this Agreement shall automatically 

terminate and the Parties shall be released from any obligations hereunder and any Bond paid shall 

be promptly returned to Developer.  

23. Official Act. This Agreement constitutes an official act of the County and the City 

and has been adopted following procedures required by applicable law. 

24. Enforceability. The unenforceability or invalidity of any particular provision of this 

Agreement, in whole or in part, shall not affect the enforceability and validity of the remainder of 

this Agreement. 

25. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with other writings signed by the 

parties expressly stated to be supplementary hereto and together with any instruments to be 

executed and delivered pursuant to this Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement between the 

parties and supersedes all prior understandings and writing, and may be changed only by a writing 

signed by the parties hereto. 

26. Applicable Laws. This Agreement shall be governed and construed under the laws 

of the State of North Carolina. 

27. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall run with title to the Property and shall be 

binding on all persons having any right, title or interest therein.  ESTABLISH TIME PERIOD 

FOR COMPLETION  AND CONSTRUCTION PER 7.15-2 (A) 

28. Estoppel. Each party agrees, from time to time, within thirty (30) days after request 

of another party, to deliver to the requesting party or such party's designee, an estoppel certificate 

stating that this Agreement is in full force and effect, the unexpired term of this Agreement, and 

whether or not, to such party's knowledge, there are any existing defaults or matters which, with 

the passage of time, would become defaults under this Agreement. It is understood and agreed that 

the party's obligations to furnish such estoppel certificates in a timely fashion is a material 

inducement for execution of this Agreement. 

29. Assignment. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the Parties agree that Developer, or any 

subsequent developer, shall be entitled to assign and delegate the rights and duties of the Developer 

under this Agreement (the “Developer Rights”) to a subsequent purchaser of all or any portion of 

the Property. Such assignment shall be evidenced by a recorded assignment and assumption of 

development rights (the “Assignment of Developer Rights”), executed by the Parties and the 

subsequent purchaser, and shall be effective as the date of recording in the Office of the Register 

of Deeds for Gaston County. The Parties acknowledge and agree that any such assignment or 

transfer by the developer of the Developer Rights shall be non-recourse as to the assigning 

56



  

12 

developer. From and after the effective date of the Assignment of Developer Rights, the assigning 

developer shall be released from all responsibility or liability under this Agreement. 

30. Waiver.  No waiver of any breach of any covenant or provision herein contained 

shall be deemed a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach thereof, or of any other covenant 

or provision herein contained.  No extension of time for performance of any obligation or act shall 

be deemed an extension of time for performance of any other obligation or act. 

31. Severability.  If any term, covenant or condition of this Easement Agreement or the 

application thereof to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be illegal, invalid or 

unenforceable, the remainder of this Easement Agreement shall not be affected thereby and shall 

be valid and enforceable to the full extent permitted by law. 

32. Force Majeure.  In the event that the performance by either party of any of its 

obligations hereunder is delayed by natural disaster, adverse weather, acts of God, terrorist activity, 

war, labor dispute, pandemic, epidemic, governmental delay or other matter beyond the control of 

such party, without such party’s fault or negligence, (“Force Majeure”) then the deadline for 

completion of such obligation shall be extended by a like number of days.  

 

33. Execution of Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in multiple parts as 

originals or by facsimile or scanned copies of executed originals and may further be executed by 

counterpart signature pages. 

30. Recordation. Pursuant to NCGS §160D- 1011 and Section 7.15-3(F) of the LDO, 

this Agreement shall be recorded by the Developer with the Gaston County Register of Deeds 

within 14 days of the date of execution by the Developer, the City and the County.  

57



  

13 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed 

and sealed pursuant to proper authority as of the day and year first above written. 

LENNAR CAROLINAS, LLC,  

a Delaware limited liability company 

 

By:       

Name: Mark Henninger 

Title: Vice President 

 

 

  

  
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
  
COUNTY OF __________________ 
 
 I certify that the following person personally appeared before me this day, each 
acknowledging to me that he or she voluntarily signed the foregoing document for the purpose stated 
therein and in the capacity indicated: Mark Henninger as Vice President of Lennar Carolinas, LLC. 
         
 

Date:              
 Official Signature of Notary Public 
 

  
Notary printed or typed name 

  
[OFFICIAL SEAL]     My commission expires:________________ 

 

 

58



  

14 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City caused this Agreement to be duly executed and 

sealed pursuant to proper authority as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF LOWELL, 

NORTH CAROLINA 

 

BY: ______________________________ 

 

Name: ____________________________ 

 

Title: _____________________________ 

 

 

ATTEST 

 

 

BY: ______________________________ 

 

Name: ____________________________ 

 

Title: _____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF       

 

 I, a Notary Public of such County and State, certify that _________________________ 

and ____________________ personally appeared before me this day, each acknowledging to me 

that they are the _____________________ and ___________________, of the City of Lowell, 

North Carolina, and that by authority duly given and as the act of the City of Lowell, North 

Carolina, the foregoing document was signed in the City’s name by such 

_____________________, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by such 

___________________________. 

 

Date:              

 Official Signature of Notary Public 

 

  

Notary printed or typed name 

 

[OFFICIAL SEAL/STAMP]    My commission expires:________________ 

  

59



  

15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County caused this Agreement to be duly executed and 

sealed pursuant to proper authority as of the day and year first above written. 

 

COUNTY OF GASTON 

 

BY: ____________________________ (SEAL) 

PRINT NAME: ___________________ 

Title:_____________________________ 

 

STATE OF       ) 

       )  

COUNTY OF       ) 

I, the undersigned Notary Public for ________________________________ County, do hereby 

certify that ______________, the ____________ of the Gaston County Board of Commissioners, who 

is personally known to me, or who was proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person 

who executed the foregoing instrument, appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution 

of the foregoing instrument. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal this _______ day of __________________, 2023. 

 

 

(affix notarial stamp below)           

      Notary Public 

 

              

      Print Name 

 

      My Commission Expires:     

  

60



  

16 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

PROPERTY 

 

BEING ALL OF “TRACT 1” as shown on that plat entitled “SPENCER MOUNTAIN 

RECOMBINATION PLAT”  prepared ty The John R. McAdams Company, Inc. , dated  ____ , 

2023 and recorded  ______, 2023 in Book ___ , Page ____ , in the Office of the Register of Deeds 

for Gaston County, North Carolina.

61



LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING DISTANCE
L1 N 29°53'39" W 59.76'
L2 N 29°49'55" W 48.73'
L3 N 29°54'31" W 50.34'
L4 N 29°42'17" W 50.31'
L5 N 29°17'54" W 50.80'
L6 N 28°46'35" W 53.91'
L7 N 27°24'28" W 51.45'
L8 N 25°38'08" W 49.05'
L9 N 23°49'46" W 43.56'

L10 N 41°45'57" E 20.81'
L11 N 42°32'52" W 24.67'
L12 N 61°48'27" E 11.49'
L13 N 64°13'14" E 28.20'
L14 N 57°09'18" W 20.00'
L14 N 58°39'26" E 20.00'
L14 N 23°19'42" E 180.78'
L15 N 23°13'21" E 48.27'
L16 N 22°59'18" E 48.74'
L17 N 22°48'34" E 50.03'
L18 N 22°58'34" E 49.38'
L19 N 23°03'52" E 48.31'
L20 N 23°33'01" E 45.71'
L21 N 23°48'17" E 47.49'
L22 N 24°12'57" E 47.67'
L23 N 24°53'21" E 48.47'
L24 N 26°13'23" E 48.23'
L25 N 27°22'02" E 50.57'
L26 N 28°53'39" E 99.00'
L27 N 29°34'28" E 95.35'
L28 N 29°21'54" E 45.31'
L29 N 29°17'23" E 49.61'
L30 N 29°05'53" E 47.63'
L31 N 29°20'31" E 46.62'
L32 N 28°58'27" E 46.31'
L33 N 28°39'54" E 48.44'
L34 N 27°56'43" E 42.61'
L35 N 27°05'37" E 46.40'
L36 N 25°39'37" E 46.48'
L37 N 24°21'15" E 46.33'
L38 N 21°18'08" E 47.38'
L39 N 17°06'02" E 45.64'
L40 N 12°01'44" E 46.14'
L41 N 29°02'02" E 91.95'
L42 N 42°16'25" E 176.93'
L43 N 54°51'57" E 122.35'
L44 N 54°51'57" E 111.20'
L45 N 67°13'03" E 117.69'
L46 S 63°08'32" W 55.29'

20
'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE LENGTH RADIUS CHORD BEARING CHORD

C1 310.39' 494.45' N 05°43'36" W 305.31'
C2 129.47' 491.70' N 19°41'04" E 129.10'
C3 154.37' 1330.62' N 26°22'30" E 154.28'
C4 108.46' 112.14' S 77°59'19" E 104.28'
C5 119.61' 181.79' S 22°19'22" E 117.47'

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293

Charlotte, NC 28203

OWNER

REVISIONS

1-6

PROJECT NO. PLT21001

FILENAME PLT21001-F1

CHECKED BY KSB

DRAWN BY BEH/JPM/PAS/jc

SCALE 1" = 300'

DATE

N0. DATE

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

RE
CO

M
BI

N
AT

IO
N

 P
LA

T
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
GA

ST
O

N
, N

O
RT

H 
CA

RO
LI

N
A 

28
05

6

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY
PO BOX 1939
McADENVILLE, NC 28101-1939

PLAT
RECOMBINATION

11.13.2023

300 0 150 300 600

1 inch = 300 ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE

NEW TRACT 1
NEW TRACT 2

LO
W

EL
L S

PE
NC

ER

M
OU

NT
AI

N 
RO

AD

SHEET 6

SHEET 5

SHEET 3

SHEET 2

SHEET 4

SOUTH FORK

CATAWBA RIVER

VICINITY MAP
NTS

LOWELL SPENCER

MOUNTAIN RD

SOUTH FO
RK

CA
TA

W
BA

RI
VE

R

SPENCER

 MOUNTAIN RD

LO
W

ELL SPENCER

M
O

UNTAIN RD

MAIN ST

SITE

1.) THIS IS A SURVEY OF EXISTING PARCELS OF LAND. THIS IS A RECOMBINATION SURVEY.

2.) BEARINGS ARE RELATIVE TO NC GRID NORTH NAD 83 (2011).

3.) ZONING: SFR-4 (CZ 2022-08) PER CITY OF LOWELL PLANNING.

4.) FLOOD NOTE: THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD ZONE. IT IS LOCATED
IN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "AE" AS DEFINED BY FEMA F.I.R.M. MAP NO. 3710357600J, DATED
09/28/2007 AND FEMA F.I.R.M. MAP NO. 3710357700J DATED 09/28/2007.

5.) REFERENCES: AS SHOWN, OF THE GASTON COUNTY REGISTRY.
PARCEL NUMBERS OF SUBJECT PROPERTY: 136564, 202774, 210660, 135144, 202166 AND
202167.

6.) UTILITY STATEMENT: THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM
FIELD SURVEY INFORMATION AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO
GUARANTEE THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN
THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT
WARRANT THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION
INDICATED ALTHOUGH HE DOES CERTIFY THAT THEY ARE LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS
POSSIBLE FROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE. THE SURVEYOR HAS NOT PHYSICALLY LOCATED
THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

NORT H CA ROL I NA

KEV I N S. B AU C OM

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS, CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP WAS
DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION AND THE FOLLOWING
INFORMATION WAS USED TO PERFORM THE SURVEY:
(1)CLASS OF SURVEY: CLASS A
(2)POSITIONAL ACCURACY: < 0.100'
(3)TYPE OF GPS FIELD PROCEDURE: VRS
(4)DATE OF SURVEY: 09/16/2021
(5)DATUM/EPOCH: NAD 83(2011)
(6)PUBLISHED/FIXED-CONTROL USED: GAST
(7)GEOID MODEL: GEOID12A
(8)COMBINED GRID FACTOR(S): 0.999835694
(9)UNITS: METERS CONVERTED TO US SURVEY FEET

SHEET INDEX
Point of localization
Calculated corner
Set 1/2" iron pipe

Concrete monument
Found property corner

LEGEND

Surveyed property line
Property line not surveyed

Fence line

GENERAL NOTES

 I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT IS OF THE FOLLOWING TYPE: G.S. 47-30
(f)(11)(d). THIS SURVEY IS OF ANOTHER CATEGORY, SUCH AS THE
RECOMBINATION OF EXISTING PARCELS, A COURT-ORDERED SURVEY, OR OTHER
EXCEPTION TO THE DEFINITION OF SUBDIVISION.

____________________________________________
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM
AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN
BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED
AND DRAWN FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE RATIO OF
PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; AND THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE
NUMBER, AND SEAL THIS

_______ DAY OF ___________________________________ , A.D. 2023.

____________________________________________
KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS  L-4275

THE PURPOSE OF THIS PLAT IS TO RECOMBINE PARCELS 202774, 136564, 202166, 202167, 135144, 210660 INTO FOUR TRACTS;
TRACT 1 BEING ALL OF PARCELS 136564 AND 210660 AND PORTIONS OF PARCELS 202774, 202166, AND 135144; TRACT 2 BEING
ALL OF PARCEL 202167, A PORTION OF PARCEL 202774, AND THE REMAINING PORTIONS OF PARCELS 202166 AND 135144;
TRACT 3 BEING A PORTION OF PARCEL 202774; TRACT 4 BEING A PORTION OF PARCEL 202774.

TRACT 1 CONTAINS A TOTAL AREA OF 9,348,485 SQ. FT. (214.612 ACRES) INCLUDING AREA WITHIN THE RIGHT OF WAY OF
LOWELL SPENCER MOUNTAIN ROAD.

TRACT 2 CONTAINS A TOTAL AREA OF 2,244,132 SQ. FT. (51.518 ACRES).

TRACT 3 CONTAINS A TOTAL AREA OF 287,942 SQ. FT. (6.610 ACRES)

TRACT 4 CONTAINS A TOTAL AREA OF 949,873 SQ. FT. (21.806 ACRES)

NO NEW RIGHTS OF WAY ARE DEDICATED BY THIS PLAT. NO EXISTING RIGHTS OF WAY ARE CHANGED BY THIS PLAT.

PURPOSE OF PLAT

THIS PLAT MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF LOWELL DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE AS OF

THIS _______ DAY OF _______________________, 20______ AND IS HEREBY APPROVED
CONDITIONED UPON THE PLAT BEING REGISTERED IN THE OFFICE OF THE GASTON COUNTY
REGISTER OF DEEDS WITHIN SIXTY (60) DAYS OF SUCH APPROVAL AND RECEIPT OF RECORD
ACCOMPANIED BY A PLAT PRESENTED TO THE CITY OF LOWELL PLANNING SERVICES DEPARTMENT.

______________________________________________________
 PLANNING, ZONING & SUBDIVISION ADMINISTRATOR

ZONING ADMINISTRATOR CERTIFICATION

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF GASTON

I, _________________________________________ , REVIEW OFFICER OF GASTON COUNTY,
CERTIFY THAT THE MAP OR PLAT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATION IS AFFIXED MEETS ALL THE
STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDING AS OF

THIS __________ DAY OF ________________________________ , 20____ .

__________________________________________________________
GASTON COUNTY REVIEW OFFICER

CERTIFICATE OF REVIEW OFFICER

PARCEL TABLE
PARCEL NO. OWNER DEED REFERENCE AREA

202774 BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY DB 466, PG 144 8,231,699 SQ. FT. (188.974 ACRES)

136564 BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY DB 3253, PG 175 3,417,484 SQ. FT. (78.455 ACRES)

202166 BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY DB 3397, PG 130 611,261 SQ. FT. (14.033 ACRES)

202167 BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY DB 3397, PG 130 324,132 SQ. FT. (7.441 ACRES)

135144 BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY DB 3397, PG 134 174,305 SQ. FT. (4.001 ACRES)

210660 BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY DB 4214, PG 2394 71,552 SQ. FT. (1.643 ACRES)

TOTAL AREA: 12,830,433 SQ. FT. (294.546 ACRES)

Abandoned line

80d nail

SO
U

TH
 F

O
RK

CA
TA

W
BA

 R
IV

ER

NC GRID (NAD83)

NEW TRACT AREA TABLE
TRACT NO. AREA

1 9,570,846 SQ. FT. (219.72 ACRES)

2 2,021,771 SQ. FT. (46.41 ACRES)

3 287,942 SQ. FT. (6.61 ACRES)

4 949,873 SQ. FT. (21.81 ACRES)

TOTAL AREA: 12,830,432 SQ. FT. (294.546 ACRES)

PARCEL NO. 202166

PARCEL NO. 135144

PARCEL NO. 202167

PARCEL NO.
210660

PARCEL NO. 202774

PARCEL NO. 136564

PARCEL NO. 202774

PARCEL NO. 202774

PARCEL NO. 202774

NEW TRACT 3

I (WE) HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM (WE ARE) THE OWNER(S) OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN AND DESCRIBED HEREON, THAT I
(WE) HEREBY ADOPT THIS PLAN WITH MY (OUR) FREE CONSENT AS OF

THIS ______ DAY OF _____________________________ , 20_____ .

______________________________________  _______________________________________
PROPERTY OWNER NAME (TYPED OR PRINTED)  PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE

_____________________________________  _______________________________________
PROPERTY OWNER NAME (TYPED OR PRINTED)  PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE

OWNER CERTIFICATION

NEW TRACT 4

PRELIMINARY

62



#3 REBAR

N
 0

6°
05

'5
6"

 E
36

2.
54

'

N
 0

4°
08

'5
0"

 E
  1

25
6.

93
'

(1
27

6.
93

' T
O

TA
L)

S 85°03'56" E  742.33'(762.33' TOTAL)

S 85°38'51" E
579.11' S 85°39'00" E

146.67'
S 85°38'49" E

594.23'

N 21°09'21" W

230.62'

S 81°31'26" W

74.91'

69.28'

L12

#8 REBAR

#8 REBAR

#3 REBAR
#8 REBAR

20.00'

20.00'

WBTV INC
PARCEL 135153

DB 4380, PG 2304

HAZEL M. EMMERLING
PARCEL 203363

DB 1426, PG 0759

CATHY J. SNYDER &
EUNICE H. CARPENTER

PARCEL 135132
DB 4963, PG 0030

FREIDA DIANE GOLDNER &
DANIEL A. DAVIS
PARCEL 135141

DB 4684, PG 0697

TAMMY SUZANNE SCHRONCE
DEBORAH RENEE PACE

PARCEL 135134
DB 5335, PG 2116

TAMMY SCHRONCE
PARCEL 135133

DB 4693, PG 2468

REUBEN JUDSON  &
RACHEL  M. MOORE

PARCEL 135138
DB 2286, PG 0634

ERIC EUGENE COSTNER
PARCEL 135130

DB 4484, PG 0657

DONALD TERRY SUTTON
PARCEL 135135

DB 2375, PG 0896

36"
CHESTNUT

OAK

#3 REBAR

BENT
#5 REBAR

CONCRETE R/W
MONUMENT

S 73°44'09" E
99.29' (TIE)

S 20°17'54" E

190.75'

S 81°31'26" W

199.97'

BENT
#4 REBAR

N 66°55'45"
31.07' (TIE)

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012

DB 2030, PG 246

CONCRETE
MONUMENT

N 43°06'33" W
137.79'

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

10' ABANDONED
LOGGING ROAD

PB 54, PG 73

LO
W

ELL SPEN
CER

M
O

U
N

TAIN
 RO

AD

S.R. #2201

RO
W

 U
N

KN
O

W
N

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 202774
DB 466, PG 144

BELMONT LAND &
INVESTMENT COMPANY, LLC

PARCEL 210660
DB 4214, PG 2394

LINE BEING ABANDONED (TYP)

WBTV INC
PARCEL 135153

DB 4380, PG 2304

WETLAND
2000-2004

WETLAND
1100-1105

WETLAND
1000-1006

END NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 1-B END NON-WETLAND

WATERS TRIBUTARY 1

END NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 1

END NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 2

END WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 1-A

LINEAR WETLAND 1

ACCESS
EASEMENT

MB 49, PG 93

#4 REBAR

#4 REBAR #4 REBAR

L11

L13

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 202774
DB 466, PG 144

S 66°07'19" E
43.52' (TIE)

L1
0

DISK

LINE BEING ABANDONED (TYP)

LINE BEING ABANDONED (TYP)

NEW TRACT 1
9,570,846 SF
219.72 AC.

L3
7

L3
8

L3
9

L4
0

S 86°46'02" E   185.56'

N 
22

°1
2'

55
" E

   
31

3.
05

'

TAMMY SUZANNE SCHRONCE
& DEBORAH RENEE PACE

PARCEL 135137
DB 4514, PG 2463
DB 5406, PG 402

NEW TRACT 1
9,570,846 SF
219.72 AC.

LINE TABLE
LINE BEARING DISTANCE
L1 N 29°53'39" W 59.76'
L2 N 29°49'55" W 48.73'
L3 N 29°54'31" W 50.34'
L4 N 29°42'17" W 50.31'
L5 N 29°17'54" W 50.80'
L6 N 28°46'35" W 53.91'
L7 N 27°24'28" W 51.45'
L8 N 25°38'08" W 49.05'
L9 N 23°49'46" W 43.56'

L10 N 41°45'57" E 20.81'
L11 N 42°32'52" W 24.67'
L12 N 61°48'27" E 11.49'
L13 N 64°13'14" E 28.20'
L14 N 57°09'18" W 20.00'
L14 N 58°39'26" E 20.00'
L14 N 23°19'42" E 180.78'
L15 N 23°13'21" E 48.27'
L16 N 22°59'18" E 48.74'
L17 N 22°48'34" E 50.03'
L18 N 22°58'34" E 49.38'
L19 N 23°03'52" E 48.31'
L20 N 23°33'01" E 45.71'
L21 N 23°48'17" E 47.49'
L22 N 24°12'57" E 47.67'
L23 N 24°53'21" E 48.47'
L24 N 26°13'23" E 48.23'
L25 N 27°22'02" E 50.57'
L26 N 28°53'39" E 99.00'
L27 N 29°34'28" E 95.35'
L28 N 29°21'54" E 45.31'
L29 N 29°17'23" E 49.61'
L30 N 29°05'53" E 47.63'
L31 N 29°20'31" E 46.62'
L32 N 28°58'27" E 46.31'
L33 N 28°39'54" E 48.44'
L34 N 27°56'43" E 42.61'
L35 N 27°05'37" E 46.40'
L36 N 25°39'37" E 46.48'
L37 N 24°21'15" E 46.33'
L38 N 21°18'08" E 47.38'
L39 N 17°06'02" E 45.64'
L40 N 12°01'44" E 46.14'
L41 N 29°02'02" E 91.95'
L42 N 42°16'25" E 176.93'
L43 N 54°51'57" E 122.35'
L44 N 54°51'57" E 111.20'
L45 N 67°13'03" E 117.69'
L46 S 63°08'32" W 55.29'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE LENGTH RADIUS CHORD BEARING CHORD

C1 310.39' 494.45' N 05°43'36" W 305.31'
C2 129.47' 491.70' N 19°41'04" E 129.10'
C3 154.37' 1330.62' N 26°22'30" E 154.28'
C4 108.46' 112.14' S 77°59'19" E 104.28'
C5 119.61' 181.79' S 22°19'22" E 117.47'

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

RE
CO

M
BI

N
AT

IO
N

 P
LA

T
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
GA

ST
O

N
, N

O
RT

H 
CA

RO
LI

N
A 

28
05

6

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PLAT
RECOMBINATION

11.13.2023

NC GRID (NAD83)

PRELIMINARY

OWNER

REVISIONS

2-6

PROJECT NO. PLT21001

FILENAME PLT21001-F1

CHECKED BY BEH

DRAWN BY BEH/JPM/PAS/jc

SCALE 1" = 100'

DATE

N0. DATE

1 inch = 100 ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE
100 0 50 100 200

NORT H CA ROL I NA

KEV I N S. B AU C OM

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM
AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN
BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED
AND DRAWN FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE RATIO OF
PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; AND THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE
NUMBER, AND SEAL THIS

______ DAY OF _______________________________ , A.D. 2023.

____________________________________________
KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS  L-4275

BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY
PO BOX 1939
McADENVILLE, NC 28101-1939

Point of localization
Calculated corner
Set 1/2" iron pipe

Concrete monument
Found property corner

LEGEND

Surveyed property line
Property line not surveyed

Fence line

Abandoned line

80d nail

FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 4

FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 3

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293

Charlotte, NC 28203

63



#3 REBAR

S 85°38'51" E
579.11' S 85°39'00" E

146.67'
S 85°38'49" E

594.23'

N 21°09'21" W

230.62'

S 81°31'26" W

74.91'

69.28'

N 61°06'31" E    2
26.99'

296.27' (TOTAL)

N 61°03'19" E

138.64'

N 74°02'06" E

541.15'

S 44°49'49" E

103.58'

S 20°46'01" E

221.63'

S 14°21'24" E

164.94'
S 75°10'22" W

757.05'

N 74°33'01" E

744.41'

S 
14

°0
3'

02
" W

22
4.

99
'

S 
19

°4
2'

53
" W

28
3.

10
'

S 81°22'48" W

334.12'
N 81°05'28" W235.72'

N 31°49'27" W

83.83'

N 87°53'46" W
144.87'

S 08°13'18" E

206.87'

S 24°48'03" E

102.57'

N 82°32'41" E

138.35'

S 56°29'17" E
63.06'

S 35°29'46" E

115.78'

S 66°39'22" E85.88'

S 08°18'37" E

105.55'

S 11°33'30" E

94.53'

S 68°58'46" E80.25'

S 2
6°

51
'5

8"
 W

15
2.

18
'

S 49°01'45" W

83.45'

S 89°27'42" W
177.96'

N
 01°52'30" W

169.78'
N 21°19'48" W

77.87'

N 27°47'02" W

135.33'

N 52°58'07" W
246.66'

S 53°46'02" W

102.29'

S 25°22'12" E

92.11'

S 33°24'10" E

120.95'

S 23°33'36" E

100.91'

S 55°19'52" W

77.26'

S 
03

°4
6'

21
" W

88
.9

1'

S 70°07'54" E186.92'

S 52°36'23" E
238.54'

S 85°46'37" W
177.98'

L12 AXLE

#6 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#4 REBAR

#4 REBAR

#8 REBAR

#3 REBAR
#8 REBAR

S 12°01'00" E
61.62'

S 21°17'31" W
61.72'

S 80°56'53" W
75.21'

N 53°33'24" W
47.42' S 58°11'22" E

68.88'

S 21°10'44" E
58.93'

CATHY J. SNYDER &
EUNICE H. CARPENTER

PARCEL 135132
DB 4963, PG 0030

FREIDA DIANE GOLDNER &
DANIEL A. DAVIS
PARCEL 135141

DB 4684, PG 0697

TAMMY SUZANNE SCHRONCE
DEBORAH RENEE PACE

PARCEL 135134
DB 5335, PG 2116

TAMMY SCHRONCE
PARCEL 135133

DB 4693, PG 2468

REUBEN JUDSON  &
RACHEL  M. MOORE

PARCEL 135138
DB 2286, PG 0634

ERIC EUGENE COSTNER
PARCEL 135130

DB 4484, PG 0657

CHARLES FRANKLIN
& MARSHA B. MORROW

PARCEL 135129
DB 2371, PG 0490

EDITH C. MAY HEIRS
PARCEL 135128

WILL BK 0010, PG 0551

DORORTHY M. & ROBERT C. BROWN
PARCEL 135127

DB 1432, PG 0802

GERALD THOMAS &
TERI L. FLOWERS
 PARCEL 135108

DB 4467, PG 1512

JULIA B. LLOYD,
CURTIS R. BARR,

EDWIN T. BARR, SR
& TERESA B. MOORE

PARCEL 135146
DB 2737, PG 0814

DONALD TERRY SUTTON
PARCEL 135135

DB 2375, PG 0896

#8 REBAR

#3 REBAR

BENT
#5 REBAR

CONCRETE R/W
MONUMENT

S 73°44'09" E
99.29' (TIE)

S 20°17'54" E

190.75'

S 81°31'26" W

199.97'

BENT
#4 REBAR

N 66°55'45"
31.07' (TIE)

S 06°01'42" W
54.90'

CATAWBA LANDS CONSERVANCY
PARCEL 202165
DB 3396, PG 195

CATAWBA LANDS CONSERVANCY
PARCEL 200893

DB 3397, PG 136

CATAWBA LANDS CONSERVANCY
PARCEL 200893

DB 3397, PG 136

CATAWBA LANDS CONSERVANCY
PARCEL 202165
DB 3396, PG 195

N 43°06'33" W
137.79'

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

S 4
8°18'42" W

10' ABANDONED
LOGGING ROAD

PB 54, PG 73

LO
W

ELL SPEN
CER

M
O

U
N

TAIN
 RO

AD

S.R. #2201

RO
W

 U
N

KN
O

W
N

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 202774
DB 466, PG 144

BELMONT LAND &
INVESTMENT COMPANY, LLC

PARCEL 210660
DB 4214, PG 2394

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 135144
DB 3397, PG 134

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 202166
DB 3397, PG 130

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 202167
DB 3397, PG 130

ZO
NE

 X
 0

.2
%

ZO
NE

 A
E 

1%

SO
UT

H 
FO

RK
CA

TA
W

BA
 R

IV
ER

END NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 1

END NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 2

ACCESS
EASEMENT

MB 49, PG 93

#4 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#4 REBAR #4 REBAR

N 74°02'42" E

227.04'

N 74°02'42" E

840.33'

L11

L13

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 202774
DB 466, PG 144

N
 0

7°
33

'2
4"

 W

10
26

.3
9

N 
30

°0
9'

56
" E

17
3.

06
'

N 
17

°3
5'

10
" E

29
6.

97
'

N
 0

7°
07

'4
1"

 E
40

8.
88

'
37

1.
60

'

S 66°07'19" E
43.52' (TIE)

L1
0

DISK

LINE BEING ABANDONED (TYP)

LINE BEING ABANDONED (TYP)

LIN
E B

EIN
G A

BA
NDONED

 (T
YP

)

N
EW

 L
IN

E

N
EW

 L
IN

E

N
 0

7°
33

'2
4"

 W

NEW TRACT 1
9,570,846 SF

TAMMY SUZANNE SCHRONCE
& DEBORAH RENEE PACE

PARCEL 135137
DB 4514, PG 2463
DB 5406, PG 402

S 55°20'50" E
62.39'S 34°25'24" W

83.15'

N
 0

1°
29

'5
6"

 W

NEW TRACT 1
9,570,846 SF
219.72 AC.

NEW TRACT 2
2,021,771 Sq.Ft.

46.41 Acres

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

RE
CO

M
BI

N
AT

IO
N

 P
LA

T
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
GA

ST
O

N
, N

O
RT

H 
CA

RO
LI

N
A 

28
05

6

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PLAT
RECOMBINATION

11.13.2023

NC GRID (NAD83)

PRELIMINARY

OWNER

REVISIONS

3-6

PROJECT NO. PLT21001

FILENAME PLT21001-F1

CHECKED BY BEH

DRAWN BY BEH/JPM/PAS/jc

SCALE 1" = 100'

DATE

N0. DATE

1 inch = 100 ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE
100 0 50 100 200

NORT H CA ROL I NA

KEV I N S. B AU C OM

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM
AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN
BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED
AND DRAWN FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE RATIO OF
PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; AND THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE
NUMBER, AND SEAL THIS

______ DAY OF _______________________________ , A.D. 2023.

____________________________________________
KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS  L-4275

BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY
PO BOX 1939
McADENVILLE, NC 28101-1939

Point of localization
Calculated corner
Set 1/2" iron pipe

Concrete monument
Found property corner

LEGEND

Surveyed property line
Property line not surveyed

Fence line

Abandoned line

80d nail

FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 5

FO
R 

CO
N

TI
N

U
AT

IO
N

 S
EE

 S
HE

ET
 2

FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 2

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293

Charlotte, NC 28203

64



POINT OF LOCALIZATION
NAD83(2011)
N: 567596.78'

E: 1369367.99'
Z: 776.43' (NAVD88)

CGF: 0.999835694

NOW OR FORMERLY
PLATO EDWARDS &

WIFE, LILLIE MAY EDWARDS
DB 454, PG 459

N 58°39'26" E    1
552.87'

1572.87' (T
OTAL)

S 4
2°2

7'28" W

382.59'

N 44°53'26" W

236.70'

S 54°17'08" W

443.99'

N 44°42'47" W

200.67'

N 84°21'23" W
164.85'

1670.91 (TOTAL)

#4 REBAR #4 REBAR

EYEBOLT

#4 REBAR

DOYLE D. & DORIS B.
TALLENT

PARCEL 136565
DB 2411, PG 0777

TALLENT DRUM CO., INC.
PARCEL 136557

DB 1891, PG 0116

DOYLE D. & DORIS TALLENT

PARCEL 136558

DB 1454, PG 0363

DORIS TALLENT
PARCEL 136563

DB 1052, PG 0046

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136562

DB 003E, PG 1247

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136561

DB 1310, PG 0358

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136560

DB 1306, PG 0068

JAMES A. GOODSON

PARCEL 136559

DB 5265, PG 1632

1/2" PIPE

N 45°01'48" W

242.00' (TIE)

N 49°33'42" W

675.34' (TIE)

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012

DB 2030, PG 246

LOWELL SPENCER

MOUNTAIN ROAD

S.R. #2201

ROW UNKNOWN

N 57°09'18" W  1650.91'

SEE DETAIL "A"

CONCRETE
MONUMENT

20' AT&T EASEMENT

DB 1983, PG 313

68' DUKE EASEMENT

DB 890, PG 138

S 75°04'48" W

562.16'

20.00'

20.00'

POB
22" POST

OAK

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 136564
DB 3253, PG 175

68
'

68
'

20' AT&T EASEMENT

DB 1959, PG 203

20
'

CREEK

APPROXIMATE

LOCATION

15' TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

DB 1959, PG 203

ZONE AE 0.2%

OLD HOME SITE

#6 REBAR

CELL
SITE

20' AT&T EASEMENT

DB 1983, PG 313

68' DUKE EASEMENT

DB 890, PG 138

WETLAND
3200-3201

WETLAND
3100-3103

WETLAND
4000-4007

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3-B

END NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY

3-B

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3

END NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3-A

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3

15'

DOYLE D. & DORIS B.
TALLENT

PARCEL 136566
DB 2133, PG 0708

LINE BEING ABANDONED (TYP)

LINE BEING ABANDONED (TYP)

DOYLE D. & DORIS B.
TALLENT

PARCEL 136565
DB 2411, PG 0777

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

#5 REBAR
20

'

20
'

NEW TRACT 1
9,570,846 SF
219.72 AC.

NEW TRACT 1
9,570,846 SF
219.72 AC.

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

22" POST OAK

#4 REBAR

#4 REBAR 20.00'

20.00'

N 57°09'18" W

N 49°33'42" W

675.34' (TIE)

N 58°39'26" E

S 65°58'04" E  16.05' (TIE)

S 45°12'45" E

3.62' (TIE)

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

RE
CO

M
BI

N
AT

IO
N

 P
LA

T
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
GA

ST
O

N
, N

O
RT

H 
CA

RO
LI

N
A 

28
05

6

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PLAT
RECOMBINATION

11.13.2023

NC GRID (NAD83)

FO
R 

CO
N

TI
N

U
AT

IO
N

 S
EE

 S
HE

ET
 6

OWNER

REVISIONS

4-6

PROJECT NO. PLT21001

FILENAME PLT21001-F1

CHECKED BY BEH

DRAWN BY BEH/JPM/PAS/jc

SCALE 1" = 100'

DATE

N0. DATE

DETAIL SCALE 1" = 5'
DETAIL "A"

NC GRID (NAD83)

1 inch = 100 ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE
100 0 50 100 200

NORT H CA ROL I N A

KEV I N S. B AU C OM

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM
AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN
BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED
AND DRAWN FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE RATIO OF
PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; AND THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE
NUMBER, AND SEAL THIS

______ DAY OF _______________________________ , A.D. 2023.

____________________________________________
KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS  L-4275

BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY
PO BOX 1939
McADENVILLE, NC 28101-1939

Point of localization
Calculated corner
Set 1/2" iron pipe

Concrete monument
Found property corner

LEGEND

Surveyed property line
Property line not surveyed

Fence line

Abandoned line

80d nail

FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 2

FO
R 

CO
N

TI
N

U
AT

IO
N

 S
EE

 S
HE

ET
 5

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293

Charlotte, NC 28203

PRELIMINARY

65



S 85°46'37" W
177.98'

S 66°44'28" E75.13' S 77°08'11" E116.61' S 70°01'07" E108.82' S 87°28'23" E
112.16' S 77°24'15" E155.73' S 88°18'10" E

72.35' S 26°02'23" E

93.14'

S 06°04'41" E
171.78'

S 09°59'20" E

88.64'

S 61°29'45" W

127.37'

S 2
9°

03
'5

1"
 W

76
.4

7'

S 58°52'19" E
69.36'

S 38°33'46" E

150.17'

S 3
5°

30
'33

" W
57

.8
8'

S 
14

°0
4'

13
" W

79
.4

0'

S 
02

°3
0'

00
" E

91
.1

1'

265.89'

S 63°08'32" W

460.16'

253.10'

S 74°45'21" W

245.18'

131.65'

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

N 10°20'27" W
53.55'

S 23°03'09" W
65.44'

S 23°00'09" W
65.57'

S 32°24'21" W
49.37'

S 14°40'06" W
54.55'

S 02°56'04" E
37.13'

S 22°02'21" W
54.71'

CATAWBA LANDS CONSERVANCY
PARCEL 200893
DB 3397, PG 136

(TIE)
BENT 1" PIPE TO

CONCRETE MONUMENT
S 77°54'58" W

0.85'

CATAWBA LANDS CONSERVANCY
PARCEL 202775

DB 3673, PG 236

S 75°04'48" W

562.16'

S 4
8°18'42" W

94.37'

S 30°06'46" E
66.46'

LO
W

EL
L S

PE
NC

ER

M
OU

NT
AI

N 
RO

AD

S.R
. #

22
01

RO
W

 U
NK

NO
W

N

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 202774
DB 466, PG 144

20' AT&T EASEMENT

DB 1959, PG 203

20
'

ZONE X 0.2%

ZONE AE 1%

ZO
N

E 
X 

0.
2%

ZO
N

E 
AE

 1
%

ZO
N

E X 0.2%

ZO
N

E AE 1%

ZONE X 0.2%ZONE AE 1%

ZONE X 0.2%

ZONE AE 1%

SOUTH FORK

CATAWBA RIVER

CONCRETE
MONUMENT

CR
EE

K
AP

PR
O

XI
M

AT
E

LO
CA

TI
O

N

CREEK

APPROXIM
ATE

LOCATION

15' TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

DB 1959, PG 203

ZONE AE 0.2%

S 3
9°

32
'55

" W

S 66°58'03" W

S 10°20'27" E
45.80' (TIE)

WETLAND
1100-1105

WETLAND
1000-1006

WETLAND
3000-3005

END WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 1-A

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 1

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3

LINEAR WETLAND 1

S 83°05'44" W

333.47'
115.94'

15'

DOYLE D. & DORIS B.
TALLENT

PARCEL 136566
DB 2133, PG 0708

CONCRETE
MONUMENT

BENT
1" PIPE

N
 10°16'53" W

24
2.2

9'

LINE BEING ABANDONED (TYP)

N
EW

 L
IN

E
N

 0
7°

33
'2

4"
 W

10
26

.3
9

S 83°05'44" W

NEW TRACT 1
9,570,846 SF
219.72 AC.

NEW TRACT 2
2,021,771 Sq.Ft.

46.41 Acres

S 59°44'26" W

L1
4

L1
5

L1
6

L1
7

L1
8

L1
9

L2
0

L2
1

L2
2

L2
3

L2
4

L2
5

L2
6

L2
7

L2
8

L2
9

L3
0

L3
1

L3
2

L3
3

L3
4

L3
5

L3
6

L3
7

L3
8

L3
9

L4
0

S 86°46'02" E   185.56'

N 
22

°1
2'

55
" E

   
31

3.
05

'

NEW TRACT 3
287,942 Sq.Ft.

6.61 Acres

DOYLE D. & DORIS B.

#5 REBAR

NEW TRACT 4
949,873 Sq.Ft.

21.81 Acres

S 75°04'48" W
43.08'

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 1
APPROXIMATE LOCATION

N
 0

0°
02

'5
8"

 E
   

36
2.

35
'

L4
1

L4
2

L43

L44

L45

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

S 38°21'41" E   145.46'

S 01°58'25" E   456.44'

L46

FILL AREA

S 65°01'41" E   397.48'

S 
15

°4
3'

32
" W

   
37

6.
86

'

S 69°33'57" W   191.26'

S 42°05'23" E   143.22'

S 42°05'23" E   130.03'

NEW TRACT 1
9,570,846 SF
219.72 AC.

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

RE
CO

M
BI

N
AT

IO
N

 P
LA

T
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
GA

ST
O

N
, N

O
RT

H 
CA

RO
LI

N
A 

28
05

6

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PLAT
RECOMBINATION

11.13.2023

NC GRID (NAD83)

PRELIMINARY

OWNER

REVISIONS

5-6

PROJECT NO. PLT21001

FILENAME PLT21001-F1

CHECKED BY BEH

DRAWN BY BEH/JPM/PAS/jc

SCALE 1" = 100'

DATE

N0. DATE

1 inch = 100 ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE
100 0 50 100 200

NORT H CA ROL I NA

KEV I N S. B AU C OM

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM
AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN
BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED
AND DRAWN FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE RATIO OF
PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; AND THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE
NUMBER, AND SEAL THIS

______ DAY OF _______________________________ , A.D. 2023.

____________________________________________
KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS  L-4275

BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY
PO BOX 1939
McADENVILLE, NC 28101-1939

Point of localization
Calculated corner
Set 1/2" iron pipe

Concrete monument
Found property corner

LEGEND

Surveyed property line
Property line not surveyed

Fence line

Abandoned line

80d nail

FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 6

FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 3

FOR CONTINUATION
SEE SHEET 6

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293

Charlotte, NC 28203

66



NOW OR FORMERLY
PLATO EDWARDS &

WIFE, LILLIE MAY EDWARDS
DB 454, PG 459

253.10'

S 74°45'21" W

245.18'

131.65'

S 4
2°2

7'28" W

382.59'

N 44°53'26" W

236.70'

S 54°17'08" W

443.99'

N 44°42'47" W

200.67'

N 84°21'23" W
164.85'#4 REBAR #4 REBAR

EYEBOLT

#4 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

N 10°20'27" W
53.55'

S 23°03'09" W
65.44'

S 23°00'09" W
65.57'

DOYLE D. & DORIS B.
TALLENT

PARCEL 136565
DB 2411, PG 0777

TALLENT DRUM CO., INC.
PARCEL 136557

DB 1891, PG 0116

DOYLE D. & DORIS TALLENT

PARCEL 136558

DB 1454, PG 0363

DORIS TALLENT
PARCEL 136563

DB 1052, PG 0046

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136562

DB 003E, PG 1247

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136561

DB 1310, PG 0358

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136560

DB 1306, PG 0068

JAMES A. GOODSON

PARCEL 136559

DB 5265, PG 1632

1/2" PIPE

(TIE)
BENT 1" PIPE TO

CONCRETE MONUMENT
S 77°54'58" W

0.85'

N 45°01'48" W

242.00' (TIE)

LOWELL SPENCER

MOUNTAIN ROAD

S.R. #2201

ROW UNKNOWN

CATAWBA LANDS CONSERVANCY
PARCEL 202775

DB 3673, PG 236

20' AT&T EASEMENT

DB 1983, PG 313

68' DUKE EASEMENT

DB 890, PG 138

S 75°04'48" W

562.16'

68
'

68
'

20' AT&T EASEMENT

DB 1959, PG 203

20
'

20' EASEMENT
DB 1976, PG 267

20
'

FLOODWAYZONE AE 1%

ZO
N

E X 0.2%

ZO
N

E AE 1%

ZONE X 0.2%ZONE AE 1%

ZONE X 0.2%

ZONE AE 1%

CONCRETE
MONUMENT

CR
EE

K
AP

PR
O

XI
M

AT
E

LO
CA

TI
O

N

CREEK

APPROXIM
ATE

LOCATION

15' TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

DB 1959, PG 203

OLD HOME SITE

#6 REBAR

S 10°20'27" E
45.80' (TIE)

CELL
SITE

20' AT&T EASEMENT

DB 1983, PG 313

68' DUKE EASEMENT

DB 890, PG 138

NON-WETLAND
WATERS TRIBUTARY 3

S 83°05'44" W

333.47'
115.94'

15'

DOYLE D. & DORIS B.
TALLENT

PARCEL 136566
DB 2133, PG 0708

N
 10°16'53" W

S 83°05'44" W

S 59°44'26" W

L1
4

DOYLE D. & DORIS B.
TALLENT

PARCEL 136565
DB 2411, PG 0777

DOYLE D. & DORIS B.
TALLENT

PARCEL 136566
DB 2133, PG 0708

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012
DB 2030, PG 246

#5 REBAR

#5 REBAR

20
'

20
'

SOUTH FORK
CATAWBA RIVER

S 75°04'48" W
43.08'

N
 0

0°
02

'5
8"

 E
   

36
2.

35
'

NEW TRACT 1
9,570,846 SF
219.72 AC.

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

RE
CO

M
BI

N
AT

IO
N

 P
LA

T
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 C
O

U
N

TY
 O

F 
GA

ST
O

N
, N

O
RT

H 
CA

RO
LI

N
A 

28
05

6

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PLAT
RECOMBINATION

11.13.2023

NC GRID (NAD83)

OWNER

REVISIONS

6-6

PROJECT NO. PLT21001

FILENAME PLT21001-F1

CHECKED BY BEH

DRAWN BY BEH/JPM/PAS/jc

SCALE 1" = 100'

DATE

N0. DATE

1 inch = 100 ft.

GRAPHIC SCALE
100 0 50 100 200

PRELIMINARY

NORT H CA ROL I NA

KEV I N S. B AU C OM

I, KEVIN S. BAUCOM, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM
AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN
BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED
AND DRAWN FROM INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK AND PAGE SHOWN; THAT THE RATIO OF
PRECISION AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+; AND THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE, LICENSE
NUMBER, AND SEAL THIS

______ DAY OF _______________________________ , A.D. 2023.

____________________________________________
KEVIN S. BAUCOM, PLS  L-4275

BELMONT LAND AND INVESTMENT COMPANY
PO BOX 1939
McADENVILLE, NC 28101-1939

Point of localization
Calculated corner
Set 1/2" iron pipe

Concrete monument
Found property corner

LEGEND

Surveyed property line
Property line not surveyed

Fence line

Abandoned line

80d nail

FO
R 

CO
N

TI
N

U
AT

IO
N

 S
EE

 S
HE

ET
 4

FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 5FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET 4

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293

Charlotte, NC 28203

67



  

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

PHASE SCHEDULE 

 

 
 

  

68



  

 

EXHIBIT C 

 

UTILITY ALLOCATION PROCESS 

 

  

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



  

 

EXHIBIT D 

 

COUNTY EASEMENT OPTION A 

 

 

  

81



T

T

T

T

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136566

DB 2133, PG 0708

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136565

DB 2411, PG 0777

TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
PARCEL 136557

DB 1891, PG 0116

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012

DB 1578, PG 2030

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136558

DB 1454, PG 0363

DORIS TALLENT
PARCEL 136563

DB 1052, PG 0042

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL#148012
DB 2030, PG 246

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136562

DB 003E, PG 1247

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136561

DB 1310, PG 0358

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136560

DB 1306, PG 0068

JAMES A. GOODSON

PARCEL 136559

DB 5265, PG 1632

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136565

DB 2411, PG 0777

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 136564
DB 3253, PG 175

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136566

DB 2133, PG 0708

SOUTH FORK
CATAWBA RIVER

ZONE X 0.2%ZONE AE 1%

ZONE X 0.2%

ZONE AE 1%

ZONE AE 0.2%

POINT OF LOCALIZATION
NAD83(2011)
N: 567596.78'

E: 1369367.99'
Z: 776.43' (NAVD88)

CGF: 0.999835694

30'
30'

FO

FO

S 75°04'48" W

562.16'

LEN-23006
LEN23006-OAS2 

MDD

JMG

03. 26. 2024

SP
EN

CE
R 

RI
DG

E
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
RA

W
IN

GS
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\L
EN

\L
EN

23
00

6\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\2
02

4-
02

-2
2 

Se
w

er
 R

el
oc

at
io

n\
LE

N
23

00
6-

O
AS

2.
dw

g,
 3

/1
5/

20
24

 1
1:

02
:0

1 
AM

, J
am

es
 G

ilk
es

so
n

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

SCALE

DATE

N0. DATE

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

CONSTRUCTION DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28203

JASON GALLOWAY
LENNAR
6701 CARMEL ROAD SUITE 245
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

EXISTING LEGENDSITE LEGEND

EX-1
UTILITY

OPTION A

WOODLAWN MILL DRIVE

SUFFOLK DRIVE

WESTFORD AVENUE

PAWTUCKET STREET
LIBERTY LANE

PAWTUCKET STREET

WOODLAWN MILL DRIVE

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

S.R. 2201
NCDOT MAINTAINED

45MPH POSTED SPEED LIMIT

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 50 100 200

1 inch = 100 ft.

1" = 100'

82

JaGalloway
Contractor
20' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT FOR WATERLINE CONNECTION. ROUTE TO BE COORDINATED WITH GASTON COUNTY



  

 

EXHIBIT E 

 

COUNTY EASEMENT OPTION B 

 

 

  

83



S 75°04'48" W

562.16'

T

T

T

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136566

DB 2133, PG 0708

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136565

DB 2411, PG 0777

TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
PARCEL 136557

DB 1891, PG 0116

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012

DB 1578, PG 2030

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136558

DB 1454, PG 0363

DORIS TALLENT
PARCEL 136563

DB 1052, PG 0042

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL#148012
DB 2030, PG 246

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136562

DB 003E, PG 1247

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136561

DB 1310, PG 0358

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136560

DB 1306, PG 0068

JAMES A. GOODSON

PARCEL 136559

DB 5265, PG 1632

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136565

DB 2411, PG 0777

BELMONT LAND AND
INVESTMENT COMPANY

PARCEL 136564
DB 3253, PG 175

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136566

DB 2133, PG 0708

SOUTH FORK
CATAWBA RIVER

ZONE X 0.2%ZONE AE 1%

ZONE X 0.2%

ZONE AE 1%

ZONE AE 0.2%

POINT OF LOCALIZATION
NAD83(2011)
N: 567596.78'

E: 1369367.99'
Z: 776.43' (NAVD88)

CGF: 0.999835694

30'
30'

LEN-23006
LEN23006-OAS1 

MDD

JMG

03. 26. 2024

SP
EN

CE
R 

RI
DG

E
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 D
RA

W
IN

GS
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\L
EN

\L
EN

23
00

6\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Ex
hi

bi
ts

\2
02

4-
02

-2
2 

Se
w

er
 R

el
oc

at
io

n\
LE

N
23

00
6-

O
AS

1.
dw

g,
 3

/1
5/

20
24

 1
0:

56
:3

4 
AM

, J
am

es
 G

ilk
es

so
n

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

SCALE

DATE

N0. DATE

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

CONSTRUCTION DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

2100 South Tryon Street
Suite 400

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28203

JASON GALLOWAY
LENNAR
6701 CARMEL ROAD SUITE 245
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

EXISTING LEGEND

1" = 100'

SITE LEGEND

EX-2
UTILITY

OPTION B

WOODLAWN MILL DRIVE

SUFFOLK DRIVE

WESTFORD AVENUE

PAWTUCKET STREET
LIBERTY LANE

PAWTUCKET STREET

WOODLAWN MILL DRIVE

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

S.R. 2201
NCDOT MAINTAINED

45MPH POSTED SPEED LIMIT

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 50 100 200

1 inch = 100 ft.

84

JaGalloway
Contractor
20' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT FOR WATERLINE CONNECTION. ROUTE TO BE COORDINATED WITH GASTON COUNTY

JaGalloway
Contractor
30' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT FOR WATERLINE CONNECTION AND FORCE MAIN. ROUTE TO BE COORDINATED WITH GASTON COUNTY



  

 

EXHIBIT F 

 

COUNTY EASEMENT OPTION C 

 

 

85



T

T
NOW OR FORMERLY
PLATO EDWARDS &

WIFE, LILLIE MAY EDWARDS
DB 454, PG 459

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136565

DB 2411, PG 0777

TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
PARCEL 136557

DB 1891, PG 0116

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012

DB 1578, PG 2030

DORIS TALLENT
PARCEL 136563

DB 1052, PG 0042

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136562

DB 003E, PG 1247

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136561

DB 1310, PG 0358

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136560

DB 1306, PG 0068

JAMES A. GOODSON

PARCEL 136559

DB 5265, PG 1632

LOWELL SPENCER

MOUNTAIN ROAD

NOW OR FORMERLY
PLATO EDWARDS &

WIFE, LILLIE MAY EDWARDS
DB 454, PG 459

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136565

DB 2411, PG 0777

TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
PARCEL 136557

DB 1891, PG 0116

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012

DB 1578, PG 2030

DORIS TALLENT
PARCEL 136563

DB 1052, PG 0042

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136562

DB 003E, PG 1247

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136561

DB 1310, PG 0358

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136560

DB 1306, PG 0068

JAMES A. GOODSON

PARCEL 136559

DB 5265, PG 1632

LOWELL SPENCER

MOUNTAIN ROAD

DORIS B. TALLENT
PARCEL 136565

DB 2411, PG 0777

TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
PARCEL 136557

DB 1891, PG 0116

GASTON COUNTY
PARCEL 148012

DB 1578, PG 2030

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136558

DB 1454, PG 0363

DORIS TALLENT
PARCEL 136563

DB 1052, PG 0042

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136562

DB 003E, PG 1247

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136561

DB 1310, PG 0358

DORIS B. TALLENT

PARCEL 136560

DB 1306, PG 0068

JAMES A. GOODSON

PARCEL 136559

DB 5265, PG 1632

FO

S 4
2°2

7'28" W
382.59'

N 44°53'26" W

236.70'

S 54°17'08" W

443.99'

N 44°42'47" W

200.67'

N 84°21'23" W
164.85'

N 45°01'48" W

242.00'

S 4
2°2

7'28" W
382.59'

N 44°53'26" W

236.70'

S 54°17'08" W

443.99'

N 44°42'47" W

200.67'

N 84°21'23" W
164.85'

N 45°01'48" W

242.00'

86

Duval, Michael
Area
2,218.9 sf

Duval, Michael
Callout
~2,270 sf of Temp Construction Easement

JaGalloway
Polygon

JaGalloway
Callout
~1,500 sf of Permanent Sight Distance Easement



20
'

T

T

T

T

TT

CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:3
0:

25
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

1" = 300'

SITE LEGEND
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

OWNER
DORIS B TALLENT
DORIS B TALLENT
TALLENT DRUM COMPANY
DORIS B TALLENT
EUNICE H CARPENTER & CATHY J SNYDER
GAIL REDDICK BARKER
DANIEL A DAVIS
JEFFREY A LITTLE
TAMMY S SCHRONCE
RACHEL MANN MOORE
FRANKLIN CHARLES & MARSHA B MORROW
EDITH C MAY HEIRS
DOROTHY MAY BROWN
THOMAS GERALD & TERI LYN FLOWERS

PARCEL
136566
136565
136557
136558
135132
135137
135141
135134
135133
135138
135129
135128
135127
135108

DEED
2133-708
2411-777
1891-116
1454-363
4963-030
4514-2463
4684-697
4975-2031
4693-2468
2286-634
2371-490
0010-551
1432-802
4467-1512

NOTE: PROPERTY INFORMATION BASED ON GASTON COUNTY GIS

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS
ZONING
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
RS-20
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
C-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1
R-1

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 150 300 600

1 inch = 300 ft.

NC GRID (NAD83)

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

STREAM FEATURE

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

EXISTING
LOWELL SPENCER
MOUNTAIN ROAD

(NCDOT MAINTAINED)

68' OVERHEAD
POWER EASEMENT

SOUTH FORK CATAWBA RIVER

SO
U

TH FO
RK CATAW

BA RIVER

AMENITY
AREA

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

PLANNED CAROLINA
THREAD TRAIL. FINAL
LOCATION TBD

SWMF
± 1.02 AC

SWMF
± 0.94 AC

SWMF
± 2.55 AC

SWMF
± 1.41 AC

SWMF
± 0.64 AC

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

SITE DATA

TAX PARCEL NUMBER:

PROPOSED ZONING:

136564, 210660 + PORTIONS OF 135144,
202166, 202774
SFR-4 (CZ)

PREPARED BY:
MCADAMS

3430 TORINGDON WAY, SUITE 110
CHARLOTTE, NC 28277

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT
AREA:
PERIMETER BUFFER:
PUBLIC ROW WIDTH:
SINGLE FAMILY (60' x 130')
DENSITY:
OPEN SPACE REQUIRED (5% OF SITE AREA):

NATURAL OPEN SPACE PROVIDED:
STORMWATER DETENTION PROVIDED:
TREE SAVE REQUIRED (6% OF EXISTING TREES):
TREE SAVE PROVIDED:

± 226.29 AC
20'
60'
422 LOTS
1.86 LOTS/AC
11.31 AC

7.71 AC
± 9.16 AC
13.58 AC
13.58 AC

NOTES:
1. ALL INTERNAL STREETS WILL BE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAYS

20' AT&T EASEMENT

20' AT&T
EASEMENT

SWMF
± 0.43 AC

PHASE #
1
2
3
4
TOTAL

LOT COUNT
99
133
101
89
422

POCKET
PARK

+/- 1.0 AC TO BE SUBDIVIDED
TO ADJACENT PROPERTY
OWNER

RZ.01
REZONING PLAN

AMENITY
AREA

ROAD 'G'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'E
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'E'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'G'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'A'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'A
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'A'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'B'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'C'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'C'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'D
'

(6
0'

 P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

ROAD 'D'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'H'(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'F
'

(6
0'

 P
U

BL
IC

 R
/W

)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD 'I'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

RO
AD 'J'

(60' PU
BLIC R/W

)

ROAD 'K'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W
)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'D'

(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'L'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

ROAD 'M'
(60' PUBLIC R/W)

RO
AD

 'P
'

(6
0' 

PU
BL

IC
 R

/W
)

RO
AD 'Q

'
(60' PUBLIC R/W

)

13
0'

 L
O

T 
DE

PT
H

60' LOT WIDTH

RIGHT-OF-WAY

5' SIDE YARD5' SIDE YARD

5' REAR SETBACK

20' FRONT BUILDING
SETBACK

TYPICAL LOT DIMENSIONS
SCALE: 1' = 40'

23.5' GARAGE
SETBACK

NOTE: CORNER LOTS REQUIRE A 10' SIDE
YARD SETBACK WITH AN 11.5' GARAGE
SETBACK.

PHASE 1
± 55.12 AC

PHASE 2
± 59.99 AC

PHASE 3
± 47.38 AC

PHASE 4
± 63.80 AC

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

100' STREAM BUFFER

7,800 SF MIN. LOT

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: 3.60 AC

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF
TERMINATING VISTA.
PROGRAMMING TBD

LOCATION OF TERMINATING
VISTA. PROGRAMMING TBD

SWMF
± 1.74 AC

20' PERIMETER BUFFER

CREEK CROSSING B

CREEK CROSSING A

IN THE EVENT POTENTIAL
PHASE 4 CONNECTION.
REFER TO DEVELOPMENT
STANDARDS

POCKET PARK

PROPERTY LINE TO BE VACATED
THROUGH SUBDIVISION PROCESS

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

PROPOSED PARCEL BOUNDARY

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
PROPOSED PUMP STATION. FINAL
LOCATION TO BE DETERMINED
DURING CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

87



CLIENT

REVISIONS

PROJECT NO.

FILENAME

CHECKED BY EM

DRAWN BY JDS

SCALE

DATE 12.10.2021

N0. DATE

M
:\

Pr
oj

ec
ts

\P
LT

\P
LT

21
00

1\
04

-P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

En
gi

ne
er

in
g\

Re
zo

ni
ng

\P
LT

21
00

1-
RZ

1-
al

t2
-6

0f
t.d

w
g,

 8
/3

0/
20

22
 3

:2
0:

52
 P

M
, D

re
w

 S
in

gl
et

on

The John R. McAdams Company, Inc.

www.mcadamsco.com

3430 Toringdon Way
Suite 110

phone 704. 527. 0800
fax 919. 361. 2269

license number: C-0293, C-187

Charlotte, NC 28277

SHEET

PLAN INFORMATION

PRELIMINARY DRAWING - NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

SP
EN

CE
R 

M
O

U
N

TA
IN

SI
N

G
LE

 F
AM

IL
Y

RE
ZO

N
IN

G 
PL

AN
LO

W
EL

L 
SP

EN
CE

R 
M

O
U

N
TA

IN
 R

O
AD

LO
W

EL
L,

 N
O

RT
H 

CA
RO

LI
N

A,
 2

80
98

PLT21001

PULTE HOMES
11121 CARMEL COMMONS BLVD.
SUITE 450
CHARLOTTE, NC 28226

1 07. 12. 2022 REVS PER SELLER COORDINATION
2 08. 30. 2022 PER CITY COMMENTS

PLT21001-RZ1

RZ.02
REZONING NOTES

Pulte Lowell
Development Standards

July 12, 2022
Spencer Mountain Rezoning Petition

Post Planning Committee

Post Adjusted Site Boundary

Site Development Data:

--Acreage: ± 226.29 acres
--Tax Parcel #:  136564 and 210660
--Tax Parcel #:  135144, 202166, and 202774 NOTE WHICH ARE “A PORTION OF”
--Existing Zoning:  SFR-3 and SFR-2
--Proposed Zoning:  SFR-4(CZ)
--Existing Uses:  Vacant
--Proposed Uses:  Up to 422 single-family detached dwelling units as allowed by right and under
prescribed conditions in the SFR-4 zoning district as further described in Section 2 below.

1. General Provisions:

a. Site Location. These Development Standards form a part of  the Rezoning Plan associated with the
Rezoning Petition filed by Pulte (“Petitioner”) to accommodate the development of  up to four hundred
and twenty-two (422) single-family detached dwelling units as generally depicted on the Rezoning Plan.
The proposed development will be on an approximately 226.29 acre site located on Spencer Mountain
Road (the "Site").

b. Zoning Districts/Ordinance.  Development of  the Site will be governed by the Rezoning Plan as
well as the applicable provisions of  the Lowell Land Development Code (the “Ordinance”).  Unless the
Rezoning Plan establishes more stringent standards, the regulations established under the Ordinance for
the SFR-4 zoning classification shall govern.

c. Graphics and Alterations.  The schematic depictions lots, sidewalks, structures and buildings,
building elevations, driveways, streets and other development matters and site elements (collectively the
“Development/Site Elements”) set forth on the Rezoning Plan should be reviewed in conjunction with the
provisions of  these Development Standards. The layout, locations, sizes and formulations of  the
Development/Site Elements depicted on the Rezoning Plan are graphic representations of  the
Development/Site elements proposed. Changes to the Rezoning Plan not anticipated by the Rezoning Plan
will be reviewed and approved as allowed by Section 5.4-3(F) of the Ordinance. 

Since the project has not undergone the design development and construction phases, it is intended that
this Rezoning Plan provide for flexibility in allowing some alterations or modifications from the graphic
representations of  the Development/Site Elements.  Therefore, there may be instances where minor
modifications will be allowed per the Ordinance.  These instances would include changes to graphics if
they are minor and don't materially change the overall design intent depicted on the Rezoning Plan.

The Planning Director will determine if  such minor modifications are allowed and if  it is determined that
the alteration does not meet the criteria described above, the Petitioner shall then follow the Ordinance; in
each instance, however, subject to the Petitioner's appeal rights set forth in the Ordinance.

2. Permitted Uses & Development Areas:

a. The Site may be developed with up to four hundred twenty-two (422) single-family detached
dwelling units to the west side of  the ultimate drainage line.  The ultimate drainage line location will be
determined as part of the overall grading plan during the land development process.

3. Transportation and Connectivity:

a. A Transportation Impact Analysis shall be provided if  required by Ordinance.  Any required
improvements to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road shall be as required by NCDOT.

b. In the event a direct connection is provided from Phase 4 to Lowell Spencer Mountain Road, Creek
Crossing B may be eliminated.

c. The Petitioner shall improve Lowell Spencer Mountain Road to the Rural Cross Section per the
most recently adopted version of  the North Carolina Complete Streets Planning and Design Guidelines
subject to the recommendations of the Traffic Impact Analysis and NCDOT approval.

4. Architectural Standards:

a. The building materials used on the principal buildings constructed on Site will be a combination of
portions of  the following: brick, stone, precast stone, precast concrete, synthetic stone, cementitious fiber
board, cementitious fiber shake, stucco, decorative block and/or wood.

b. Vinyl or Aluminum shall not be used as a primary siding material however it may be used on
windows, soffits, fascia and/or similar roof  overhang elements, handrails/railings, and/or other
miscellaneous trim elements.

c. The proposed roofing materials will be architectural shingles, slate, tile and/or metal.

d. All residential units shall include the following garage door treatments:

i. wall sconce lighting on at least one side of  the garage door or one large wall sconce above the
garage door,

ii. windows and/or a vent detail above the garage door,

iv. a minimum of two siding materials on the façade, and

vi. windows

5. Environmental Features and Open Space:

a. The Site shall comply with the minimum Stormwater and Water Quality requirements as set forth in
the Land Development Ordinance and municipal code.

b. The location of  the proposed stormwater areas are conceptual in nature and the exact size and
location of  these areas are subject to change depending upon final layout, product allocation, and/or other
site plan elements.  The overall layout and unit count may be altered as a result of  final stormwater
locations.

c. The Petitioner shall implement the following design and post construction stormwater containment
measures subject to the provisions set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. 200 or 100-year floodplain (whichever is greater) buffer on surface waters.

ii. A maximum built upon area (BUA) under 10% in the Protected Watershed.

iii. In areas where the BUA is greater than 10%, Stormwater Control Measures (SCMs) capable of

treating the greater 1.5” or the difference in stormwater runoff  from pre-development and post
development conditions for the one-year, twenty-four-hour storm.

iv. SCMs capable of  limiting peak flow from the site at each point of  discharge to the predevelopment
conditions for the 1 and 10 years, twenty-four-hour storm events

v. A total phosphorus (TP) removal rate of at least 70% for all SCM(s) used.

vi. SCMs capable of conveying the 25-year design storm.

vii. SCM Operation and Maintenance Agreements and Plans should be clearly explained to the
responsible party.

viii. To the greatest extent possible, BUA and runoff  should be minimized through site design and Low
Impact Development (LID) measures such as downspout disconnection, permeable pavements, green
roofs, planter boxes, etc.

d. The Petitioner shall implement the following active construction measures subject to the provisions
set forth herein and subject to approval by Gaston County:

i. The use of high hazard or double row silt fencing along surface water bodies.

ii. Stop valves and additional filtration at the outlet discharges.

iii. Retention basins capable of  conveying the 25-year storm with an outfall sized to maximize
drawdown time.

iv. Installation of temporary seeding and slope drains within 7 days after grading.

v. Installation of natural fiber matting on slopes greater than 10'.

vi. Third party sediment and erosion control monitoring of the site.

vii. Implementation of  devices downstream to numerically monitor turbidity during construction and
provide alerts to regulators and site operators when turbidity levels exceed action levels.

viii. Additional measures such as polyacrylamides, proposed by the designers and owners.

ix. Bathymetic survey and core samples of  any downstream coves before and after construction to
document off-site sedimentation.

e. The developer shall adhere to the LDO and only plant native plant materials on the Site.

f. A minimum of two (2) ten (10) foot wide access easements shall be provided as follows:

i.  One shall be located between lots on Road I or Road J.

ii. One shall be located along Spencer Lowell Mountain Road.

The exact location of the access easements shall be determined during the permitting process.  It is
understood the easements may be used to provide access to future amenities to be provided by others.

g. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum twenty (20) foot buffer behind the lots west of  the drainage
divide line.  Such buffers shall be maintained by the homeowner's association.  Land disturbance is
permitted within the buffer during development of the site.

6. Miscellaneous Provisions

a. The Petitioner shall provide a minimum of  three license plate readers to be operated for a minimum
of five years unless otherwise agreed to by the City Manager.  The license plate readers shall be installed
at the primary entrance for each phase prior to the last certificate of occupancy for the respective phase.

7. Amendments to the Rezoning Plan:

a. Future amendments to the Rezoning Plan (which includes these Development Standards) may be
applied for by the then Owner or Owners of  the applicable portion of  the Site affected by such
amendment in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance.

8. Binding Effect of the Rezoning Application:

a. If  this Rezoning Petition is approved, all conditions applicable to the development of  the Site
imposed under the Rezoning Plan will, unless amended in the manner provided under the Ordinance, be
binding upon and insure to the benefit of  the Petitioner and subsequent owners of  the Site and their
respective heirs, devisees, personal representatives, successors in interest or assigns.

88



CITY OF LOWELL - DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT GUIDE 
 

 
WHAT IS A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT? 

 
An agreement between the City of Lowell and a developer pursuant to Article 10 of G.S. 160D 
for a large-scale development with a lengthy build-out period and having a public-private 
partnership component involving mutual financial interests. 
 

 

7.15-1 Development Agreements: Authorization and Applicability 

(A.) The North Carolina General Statutes authorize the use of Development Agreements for the 
development of land in accordance with the criteria and procedures established in sections G.S. 
160D-1001 through G.S. 160D-1012.  

(B.) In addition to any Development Agreement proposed for an eligible project, a Development 
Agreement, established pursuant to Sub-section 7.15-3 of this Ordinance, shall be required as 
part of all applications for the following:  

(1.) Traditional Neighborhood Development Overlay (TNDO) District, Main Street (MS) 
District, and Mixed Use (MU-1 and MU-2) District and apply to all new development 
projects within the TNDO, MS, MU-1, and MU-2 Districts.   

(2.) Major Subdivisions in any district where new street infrastructure will be developed. 

7.15-2 Content of Development Agreement  

(A.) The development agreement shall establish the period of time for completion of the 
development and construction of the project subject to the agreement.  

(B.) The development agreement shall establish the property to which the agreement shall apply 
by metes and bounds description attached to the agreement as “Exhibit A”.  

(C.) The development agreement shall cite all terms and conditions applicable to the 
development of the land subject to the agreement including standards and/or specifications 
that differ from the provisions of this Ordinance.  

(D.) The development agreement shall provide that the delivery date of such public facilities will 
be tied to successful performance by the developer in implementing the proposed 
development. 

 

7.15-3 Procedures for Entering into Development Agreements  

(A.) The development agreement shall be drafted in a format as directed by the Planning, Zoning 
& Subdivision Administrator.  The development agreement shall then be presented to the 
Planning Board for a formal recommendation at a regularly scheduled meeting.  Said meeting 
shall be held prior to notification for a legislative hearing by the City Council.  

89



CITY OF LOWELL - DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT GUIDE 
 

(B.) The development agreement and the Planning Board recommendation shall be published 
for public inspection and notification shall be made in accordance with the provisions of G.S. 
160D-601.   

(C.) The notice for the legislative hearing must specify the location of the property subject to the 
development agreement, the development uses proposed on the property, and must specify a 
place where a copy of the proposed development agreement can be obtained. 

(D.) The development agreement shall be presented at a legislative hearing allowing an 
opportunity for the public to comment on the proposed development agreement.  The 
information presented at the legislative hearing shall be considered by the City Council in 
formulating its decision on the approval of an ordinance authorizing approval of said agreement. 

(E.) Upon finding that said agreement is in the best interest of the City of Lowell, the City Council 
may by adoption of an ordinance adopting the development agreement and authorizing it’s 
execution by the Mayor, approve such agreement to be administered in full force and effect by 
the Planning, Zoning & Subdivision Administrator.   

(F.) The development agreement shall be recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds of the 
county in which the subject property is located within fourteen (14) days of execution and prior 
to the issuance of any development permits authorizing development activities to commence. 

7.15-4 Administration of Development Agreements and Termination for Material Breach  

(A.) The development agreement shall run with the land obligating the parties to the agreement 
to any and all stipulations therein and may only be amended in accordance with the laws of 
North Carolina governing such agreements as stipulated in section 7.15-1 herein. 

(B.) The Planning, Zoning & Subdivision Administrator shall conduct a periodic review at least 
every 12 months, at which time the developer is required to demonstrate good faith compliance 
with the terms of the development agreement.  If, as a result of a periodic review, the Planning, 
Zoning & Subdivision Administrator finds and determines that the developer has committed a 
material breach of the terms or conditions of the agreement, the Planning, Zoning & Subdivision 
Administrator shall serve notice in writing, within a reasonable time after the periodic review, 
upon the developer setting forth with reasonable particularity the nature of the breach and the 
evidence supporting the finding and determination, and providing the developer a reasonable 
time in which to cure the material breach.    

(C.) If the developer fails to cure the material breach within the time given, then the City of 
Lowell may unilaterally terminate or modify the development agreement.  In accordance with 
G.S. D 160 appealed to the Board of Adjustment in the manner provided by G.S. 160D-405. 

(D.) A development agreement adopted pursuant to this Section shall not exempt the property 
owner or developer from compliance with the State Building Code or State or local housing 
codes that are not part of this Ordinance.  

 

 

90



CITY OF LOWELL - DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT GUIDE 
 

 

 

Phase 1: Project Evaluation 

Concept Plan/Application Submitted 

Facilitated City Technical Review of Proposed Development 

Considerations:  Submitted site plans, application, comprehensive land use plan, small area 
plans, LDO, engineering data, public works data, fire/police/safety data, school enrollment data, 
any other data that staff feels is necessary to evaluate the project. 

Who Is Involved:  Staff led technical review may include city planning staff, city engineer, city 
manager, police chief, fire marshal office representative, public works department, legal 
counsel, any other person(s) staff sees as necessary for review of the project. 

Outcome:  Written comments/information provided to applicant to start discussion of 
development agreement.  

Phase 2:  Staff Agreement Negotiations* 

Staff Level Negotiations with Applicant 

Begin negotiation of an agreement for long-term trade-offs and benefits of a development 
with Staff.  

Considerations:  Comments/Considerations from Phase 1, developers’ comments/response to 
phase 1 requests, discussion of requested items/improvements 

Who Is Involved:  Planning Staff, City Engineer, City Manager, Applicant, Legal Counsel and Land 
Use Consultant as necessary 

Outcome:  Draft Development Agreement 

*May require multiple meetings 

Phase 3:  Planning Board Review 

Planning Board Level Negotiations with Applicant 

Presentation of Draft Agreement to the Planning Board 

Considerations:  Draft Development Agreement 

Who Is Involved:  Planning Staff, City Engineer, City Manager, Applicant, Legal Counsel and Land 
Use Consultant as necessary 

Outcome:  Draft Development Agreement Recommendation 

 

91



CITY OF LOWELL - DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT GUIDE 
 

Phase 4:  City Council Sets Public Hearing (First Reading) 

Presentation of Draft Agreement to entire Council.  The council receives draft agreement and 
may have comments. If the Council decides to move forward, they will set the public hearing 
date to hear the Develop Agreement in a legislative hearing. 

Who Is Involved:  Entire City Council, Applicant, Planning Staff, City Manager, Legal Counsel and 
Land Use Consultant as necessary. 

Outcome:  Set public hearing date to vote on final draft of the proposed development 
agreement. 

Phase 5:  Public Hearing 

Public Hearing/Council Decision 

Presentation of Draft Agreement to entire Council.  Council receives draft agreement and may 
negotiate directly with the applicant. Required public hearing held and negotiated agreement 
adopted by City Council. 

Who Is Involved:  City Council, Applicant, Planning Staff, City Manager, Legal Counsel 

Outcome: Council Decision/Finalized Agreement 

  

Additional Resources: 

Article 7 Permits and Procedures 

 

 

92

https://www.lowellnc.com/documents/article-7-permits-and-procedures/


City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Joe Gates

Request to Set Public Hearing - Map Amendment (General, Rezoning) - 603 Groves Street - JPFJ LLC

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6B

Reference File Presented By

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Tyler Cobb, Planner

Date: April 9, 2024

Re:  File #ZMA24-01, General Rezoning Request, 603 Groves Street, Lowell, NC - Parcel 302742

STAFF REPORT 

Rezoning File # ZMA24-01 

Planning Board Meeting 4/2/2024

 

OWNER(S): JPFJ LLC 

APPLICANT: JPFJ LLC

PROPOSED ZONING ACTION: CHANGE TO INDUSTRIAL (IND) ZONING CLASSIFICATION

LOCATION: (ADDRESS AND PID) 603 Groves St. Lowell, NC, Parcel 302742

TOTAL TRACT SIZE: 18.79

AREA TO BE REZONED: 5.03

EVALUATION:

The applicant has submitted a rezoning request to have the property rezoned from (MU-2) Mixed Use to (IND) Industrial . 

Industrial zoning  is being requested to facilitate an expansion of the existing business. 

Site Description and Background

The subject property includes one tax parcel, currently located in Lowell's jurisdiction, zoned MU-2 (Mixed Use) . A rezoning 

application has been filed by the applicant. The current site has two zoning districts. The front of the property is zoned IND. 

The back of the property is currently zone MU-2. The overall site of the property is 18.79 acres, the applicant is asking for a 

rezoning of 5.03 acres. 

Proposed Zoning Conditions (if applicable)

N/A. 

Adjoining Properties and Land Use Trends

Adjoining properties are a combination SFR-3 (Single Family Residential), MU-2 (Mixed Use) and VSR (Vehicle Service and 

Repair).

Available Public Facilities

Public utilities (water & sewer) are existing on the site. 

93



Attachments

Town of Lowell_20240328_100850.pdf

Rezoning_ChoiceUSABeverageINC_2024March28.pdf

Consistency with Adopted Plans

The Future Land Use Map in the 2040 Land Use Plan indicates Employment/Manufacturing uses for the subject property

Conclusion

The request includes an rezoning and assignment of zoning from MU-2 to IND to facilitate an expansion of the existing 

business. . Based on the 2040 Land Use Plan, the submitted site plan, and proposed conditions, staff recommend approval 

of the request as presented. 

Statement of consistency and reasonableness (motion to approve): The proposed zoning is consistent with the City 

of Lowell 2040 Comprehensive Land Use Plan and will result in the development of a IND. The Planning and Zoning Board 

considers an affirmative vote to be reasonable and in the public's interest.

Statement of inconsistency  (motion to deny): The Planning and Zoning Board considers an affirmative vote to not be 

reasonable and not to be in the public interest.

94



95



96



97



98



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Gaston County for Lowell Elementary Waterline Extension Project

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6C

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

Interlocal Water Agreement Lowell Elementary Waterline_4_5_24.pdf

Program Income Memo.pdf

To: Lowell Mayor and City Council

From: Scott Attaway, City Manager

Date: 4-5-2024

Re: Consideration of Interlocal Agreement with Gaston County for Lowell Elementary Waterline Extension 

Project

Please see the attached interlocal agreement for the County to fund an extension of Lowell's water system for the purpose 

of supplying clean and reliable water flow to Lowell Elementary. This agreement shall supersede any other agreement 

between Gaston County and the City of Lowell pertaining to the Lowell Elementary Waterline Project. 

Staff recommends approval of this agreement.

99



NORTH CAROLINA 

GASTON COUNTY 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 

WATER INFRASTRUCTURE 

This Agreement, made and entered into this the _____ day of _____________________, 2024 by and 
between Gaston County, a body politic and corporate, and a political subdivision of the State of North 
Carolina (hereinafter referred to as the “County”) and the City of Lowell, a North Carolina municipal 
corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “City”).  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Lowell Elementary School receives water service from Town of McAdenville, North Carolina; 
and, 

WHEREAS, Lowell Elementary School water service line is corroding, causing water quality and water 
pressure to be compromised; and,  

WHEREAS, City cannot monitor the water from Town of McAdenville or make repairs if there is a 
problem; and, 

WHEREAS, the City through its Utilities Department (hereinafter “Utilities”) has available water system 
capacity to support Lowell Elementary School’s critical water need; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C.G.S. §§ 153A-164 and 160A-461, units of local government are authorized to 
enter into interlocal agreements for any undertaking; and, 

WHEREAS, the City and County desire to jointly extend City water infrastructure to serve Lowell 
Elementary School (hereinafter referred to as the “Project”); and, 

WHEREAS, the County has been awarded Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds established 
in S.L. 2021-180 as part of the American Rescue Plan Act (hereinafter referred to as the “Grant”) to 
provide funding to cover a portion of the costs of the Project as set forth herein; and, 

WHEREAS, the County has agreed to provide gap funds as available to cover the remainder of the costs 
of the Project as set forth herein or alter or cancel the Project if sufficient funding is not available; and,  

WHEREAS, the County has agreed to construct or let for construction the Project pursuant to all 
applicable State, Federal, and local rules and regulations; and, 

WHEREAS, the project must be completed during the Grant’s period of performance; and, 

WHEREAS, the period of performance is defined as the total time interval between the start of an initial 
Federal award and the planned end date, which may include one or more funded portions, or budget 
periods; and, 

100



WHEREAS, per the Grant Award Terms and Conditions, the period of performance for this Grant ends on 
December 31, 2026. As set forth in Treasury’s implementing regulations, Recipients using award funds 
must obligate eligible costs prior to December 31, 2024; and, 

WHEREAS, upon Project completion and acceptance, City will assume operation and maintenance of the 
Project from County through an operating agreement and comply with US Treasury Terms and 
Conditions of Program Income requirements through the end of the period of performance; and, 

WHEREAS, upon the end of the period of performance of the Grant, the County will transfer ownership 
of Project to City as a part of its municipal water system. City is responsible for meeting all Federal, 
State, and Local requirements for operating and maintaining Project. 

WHEREAS, the City of Lowell and the Town of McAdenville will determine if there are any implications 
for a change in use of the property currently operating as Lowell Elementary. The County will have no 
interest in agreements between The City of Lowell and the Town of McAdenville that are independent 
from the scope of the Project. The City of Lowell will not form any agreements that contradict the 
requirements of this interlocal agreement.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, and covenants contained herein, it is 
agreed between the parties hereto as follows: 

1. PURPOSE:   The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions under which
County will construct, and City will operate and maintain the water infrastructure described herein.
The above recitals are hereby incorporated into this agreement between the parties.

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The scope of work includes construction of approximately 420 LF of 8-inch
waterline and related appurtenances to serve Lowell Elementary School. This new infrastructure will
run along Saxony Drive, from the City’s water main between Riverview Dr and Beaunitt Rd to Lowell
Elementary School.

3. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS: The infrastructure shall be engineered, designed, and constructed in
accordance with the specifications of the City.  City shall have the right to review and inspect all
engineering, design, and construction to ensure all work meets City specifications.  City shall not be
obligated to accept or maintain the Project if any material portion thereof fails to meet City
specifications as determined by the City. The engineering and surveying work is to be completed by
the County or such other licensed service provider as County shall select, at no cost to the City.
Upon completion of the Project, County shall provide to City a set of as-built drawings in accordance
with City Policy.

4. CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT:  The County agrees to construct or let a contract for the
construction of the Project in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations, and ordinances.  County agrees to contract with a professional Construction Engineer
and Inspections Firm, and County shall require and conduct all commercially standard inspections
and testing (and such others as may be necessary), during construction.  City agrees to coordinate
independent inspections of the waterline construction. Upon project completion, the City shall
operate and maintain the waterline infrastructure as part of the City water system.

101



5. PROJECT COSTS:  The cost of the Project is to be funded by the County using the secured Grant
funds and local funds to cover any remaining costs. Costs unilaterally incurred by the City shall not
be included in Project costs, shall be paid by the City and shall not be a liability of the County (e.g.,
City inspections, consultant costs, etc.).

The referenced Grant and local funds shall be applied to the costs of construction of the Project.  In
the event the referenced Grant and local funds are not secured, and suitable replacement funding is
not secured, the Project shall not proceed, and this Agreement shall terminate.  In the event there
are not sufficient Grant and local funds to cover the bid on the contract for the construction, and the
parties are unable to agree on a mutually satisfactory arrangement to cover the costs, the Project
shall not proceed, and this Agreement shall terminate.

In anticipation of the extension of the water system and in preparation for the construction of the
Project, the County has procured Armstrong Glen PC (hereinafter referred to as “Engineer”) to
provide professional services for the Project.

The County shall act as lead agency and project manager for the construction of the Project and in
the administration of all Grant and local match funds.

All Grant funding shall be administered by the County in accordance with the rules, laws,
regulations, terms, and directives of the administering agencies that are applicable to or govern the
Grant set forth above.

6. PROGRAM INCOME OBLIGATIONS:

DEFINITION: Program Income refers to gross income earned by the non-Federal entity that is
directly generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of the Federal award during the
period of performance except as provided in § 200.307(f). Program income includes but is not
limited to income from fees for services charged to new customers, or increased user fees for
current customers due specifically to the Project. Program income also includes the use or rental of
real or personal property acquired under Federal awards, the sale of commodities or items
fabricated under a Federal award, and principal and interest on loans made with Federal award
funds. Program income does not include special assessments, tax revenues, system development
fees, availability fees, regulatory fees, contractual charges for infrastructure, charges to other local
governments to reserve capacity, and penalty charges.

The City shall provide the County with an estimate of Program Income that they expect to generate
during the period of performance, based on the total potential customer connections and expected
project completion date. This estimate must be provided in order for the County to obligate these
expected funds prior to 12/31/2024. The City understands that the estimated and obligated
program income does not determine the amount of funds available for use during the period of
performance and instead, determines the maximum amount of funds available for reconciliation
and use during the period of performance. The City understands that any program income received
beyond the amount obligated prior to 12/31/2024, will be paid to the Treasury.

REPORTING AND DOCUMENTATION: The County and City shall maintain accurate records of all
program income generated, including the source, amount, dates of receipt, and use of funds. The
City will report program income to the County, with supporting documentation, on a monthly basis.

102

https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/section-200.307#p-200.307(f)


USE OF PROGRAM INCOME: The City shall establish appropriate accounting procedures to track and 
retain program income in a special revenue fund separate from other operating revenue. The 
County will work to reconcile and appropriate program income on a quarterly basis. Provided that 
appropriate documentation has been submitted by the City, reconciliation will then require approval 
from the County’s Commission. Once approval is received, the County will notify the City of the 
amount of program income that is authorized for use from its special revenue fund. All unreconciled 
program income must remain in the special revenue fund until authorization for use has been 
granted. Any unreconciled program income remaining after the period of performance will be paid 
to the Treasury. There is no further obligation to track and report program income after the period 
of performance.  

COMPLIANCE AND AUDITING: The County and the City shall comply with all program income 
requirements imposed by the granting agency, including reporting, recordkeeping, and use of funds. 
Failure to comply with program income requirements may result in penalties or the need for 
repayment of funds to the granting agency. Any current regulations or updates from Treasury after 
the effective date of this Agreement, shall supersede any conflicting provisions found herein.  

RETENTION AND ACCESS OF RECORDS: Records shall be maintained for a period of five (5) years 
following the end of the grant’s period of performance. The Treasury Office of Inspector General and the 
Government Accountability Office, or their authorized representatives, shall have the right of access to 
records (electronic and otherwise) in order to conduct audits or other investigations. The City shall make 
available to the County, all reports and documentation related to program income to ensure 
compliance with the Federal Award.  

7. PROPERTY MANAGEMENT:
Any purchase of equipment or real property with grant funds must be consistent with the Uniform
Guidance at 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart D. Equipment and real property acquired under this program
must be used for the originally authorized purpose. Consistent with 2 CFR 200.311 and 2 CFR
200.313, any equipment or real property acquired using SLFRF funds shall vest in the non-Federal
entity. Any acquisition and maintenance of equipment or real property must also be in compliance
with relevant laws and regulations.

8. OPERATION, MAINTENANCE AND EXTENSIONS:  Upon project completion, City shall operate and
maintain the same as part of its municipal system per the terms that will be agreed to in the
operating agreement that the Parties shall negotiate and execute prior to project completion.  Upon
the end of the period of performance, all rights, title, and interest in Project, including, but not
limited to, utility infrastructure, easements, and rights of way, shall be transferred to City and City
shall operate and maintain the same as part of its municipal system from that point forward.

WARRANTY: The City shall be covered by any warranties provided by manufacturers or suppliers of
components or materials, as well as workmanship as outlined in the construction contract. In the
event of defects or deficiencies discovered during the warranty period, the City shall promptly notify
the County in writing of such defects or deficiencies.

City shall not deny connection to the Project by a potential customer requesting service so long as
City has sufficient water capacity to support new customers in the Project area and the customer
otherwise complies with City requirements, including the requirement to petition for voluntary

103



annexation in exchange for receiving City services.  No service tap or connections shall be made to 
Project except under the supervision and inspection of the City and upon payment by the property 
owner to the City of required water connection charges and availability fees of the City and County. 
By execution of this Agreement, City acknowledges its continuing obligation to provide services to 
the specified Project area upon customer compliance with all City requirements.  

9. RIGHTS OF WAY:  County shall be responsible for the acquisition and creation of all easements, 
rights of way, and encroachment agreements and permits necessary for the construction of the 
Project.  The costs of such acquisition shall be paid out of the Project funds provided by the County 
as set forth above.  The City agrees to provide easements and/or rights of way across any City 
owned property, to the extent necessary for building the Project. Conveyances of easements and 
rights of way shall be in a form acceptable to the County and the costs for preparation, surveying, 
recording and related costs shall be paid by the County.  
 

10. LEAD AGENCY:  The County shall serve as the lead agency for the Project and shall commence and 
complete the Project within a reasonable time after the execution of this Agreement, subject to 
securing the necessary funds.  The schedule for the Project shall be established by the County. 
Project dates shall be specified in the construction contract entered into between the County and 
the contractor(s) engaged to construct the Project.  Completion of the Project in accordance with 
the contract schedule is contingent upon weather and/or other factors that might necessitate a 
delay in the construction schedule provided for in said construction contract. 
 

11. ACCESS:  City shall have the right to inspect and copy documents, materials, papers, and other 
related items at any point in the Project, with proper notification to County.  Further, City shall have 
access, at all times, to the construction site for the purpose of construction observation.  City shall 
have the right to notify County of any construction that does not meet City specifications or the 
engineering and design of the Project.  Upon receipt of such notification County shall take every step 
necessary to ensure the construction of the Project meets City specifications. 
 

12. INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY: During construction, County shall provide the public liability insurance 
coverage and, to the extent permitted by North Carolina law, indemnify the City against any and all 
damages to persons or property that may be incurred through injury or accident by reason of the 
County’s negligent construction Project. 
 
After project acceptance and execution of the operating agreement, and during the period of 
performance of the Grant which shall end 12/31/2026, City shall maintain and operate the system, 
provide the public liability insurance coverage and, to the extent permitted by North Carolina law, 
indemnify the County against any and all damages that may be incurred through injury or accident 
by reason of the City’s negligent operation of Project. City shall name County as an additional 
insured. 
 

13. SERVICE CHARGES:  County shall install a water connection to Lowell Elementary School which shall 
be an eligible project cost. Upon completion and acceptance of the Project, the City shall thereafter 
have the sole and exclusive right to charge and collect for water service furnished to any consumer; 

104



and the County shall have no right or interest therein with the exception of managing the Program 
Income requirements set forth. 

14. SERVICE PROVIDERS:  City shall be the exclusive provider of water services within the water service
area of this project.

15. NO JOINT AGENCY ESTABLISHED:  No joint agency is to be established as a result of the execution of
this Interlocal Agreement, and each party shall manage its own personnel, respectively, as necessary
for the execution of this undertaking.

16. DUPLICATE ORIGINALS:  This Agreement shall be executed by the parties hereto in duplicate
originals, each of which when executed shall constitute one and the same Agreement.

17. INVALID TERMS:  Should any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement be held
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the
remaining provisions contained in this Agreement shall not in any way be affected or impaired
thereby, and this Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect.  If any such provision is
held to be invalid or unenforceable, then upon the request of either party, the City, and the County
shall attempt in good faith to negotiate and agree upon a replacement provision.

18. COUNTERPARTS:  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which
when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original.

19. NOTICES:  Any notices required or permitted in this Agreement, including address changes, shall be
made in writing and shall be made either by mailing registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested, and postage prepaid, to the other party at the address shown herein for that party or at
such different address for that party, notice of which has been properly given hereunder, or by
personally delivering such notice to an officer or other party.  The notice, if mailed as provided for
herein, shall be deemed given on the day of receipt or refusal to accept receipt, and if personally
delivered, on the date of delivery.  The addresses are as follows:

TO THE COUNTY: 

Infrastructure and Asset Manager 

P.O. Box 1578 

Gastonia, NC  28053 

TO THE CITY OF LOWELL: 

Scott Attaway, City Manager 

101 W. First Street 

Lowell, NC 28098

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This instrument contains the entire Agreement between the parties, and no
statement, oral or written, made by either party or agent of either party that is not contained in this
Agreement shall be valid or binding.  This contract may not be enlarged, modified, or altered, except
in writing signed by the parties and endorsed hereon.

21. AMENDMENT OR TERMINATION:  This Agreement may be amended or terminated only by an
instrument in writing executed by all parties hereto.

105



22. REMEDIES IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT:  In the event of Default by a party to this Agreement, the
other party may exercise all legal and equitable remedies to which it is entitled.

23. WAIVER:  No delay or omission by either party to exercise any right or power it has under this
Agreement shall impair or be construed as a waiver of such right or power.  A waiver by either party
of any covenant or breach of this Agreement shall not constitute or operate as a waiver of any
succeeding breach of that covenant or of any other covenant.  No waiver of any provision of this
Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and signed by the party waiving the rights.

24. BINDING NATURE AND ASSIGNMENT:  This Agreement shall bind the parties and their successors
and permitted assigns.  Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent
of the other party.  Any assignment attempted without the written consent of the other party shall
be void.

25. GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION:  North Carolina law shall govern the interpretation and
enforcement of this Agreement, and any other matters relating to this Agreement (all without
regard to North Carolina conflicts of law principles).  All legal actions or other proceeding relating to
this Agreement shall be brought in a court sitting in Gaston County, North Carolina.  By execution of
this Agreement, the parties submit to the jurisdiction of said courts and hereby irrevocably waive
any and all objections that they may have with respect to venue in any court sitting in Gaston
County, North Carolina.

26. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: In addition to and prior to litigation, the parties shall endeavor to settle
disputes first by negotiation between the parties, and, if negotiation is unsuccessful, then by non-
binding mediation. Demand for mediation shall be filed in writing with the other party to this
Agreement. A demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time after the claim,
dispute, or other matter in question has arisen. In no event shall the demand for mediation be made
after the date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute, or
other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of repose or limitations.

27. TITLES OF SECTIONS:  The section headings inserted herein are for convenience only and are not
intended to be used as an aid to interpretation and are not binding on the parties.

28. NO DOCTRINE OF CONSTRUCTION AGAINST THE DRAFTER:  All parties acknowledge and stipulate
that this Agreement is the product of mutual negotiation and bargaining and that it has been
drafted and reviewed by Counsel for all parties.  As such, the doctrine of construction against the
drafter shall have no application to this Agreement.

29. FORCE MAJEURE:  Neither party to this Agreement shall be liable for any claims or damages if such
claims or damages result or arise out of a failure or delay that is due to any act beyond the control of
the party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned municipal corporations and governmental entities have caused 
this Agreement to be executed on their behalf by their duly authorized representatives, having hereunto 
affixed their signatures and seals, the day and year first above written.  

106



CITY OF LOWELL 

By: _______________________________   (seal) 

City Manager 

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ _____________________________ 

City Clerk City Attorney 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF GASTON 

I, _______________________________, a Notary Public of the aforesaid County and State, do hereby 
certify that __________________________  personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged 
that he/she is the Clerk of the City of Lowell and that by authority duly given and as the act of the 
municipal corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its City Manager, sealed with 
its corporate seal and attested by him/her as its Clerk. 

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal, this the _____ day of _______________, 2024.

___________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: ___________________ 

107



GASTON COUNTY 

By: _______________________________   (seal) 

County Manger or Designee 

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________ ___________________________________ 

Clerk to the Board County Attorney 

This document has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act 

_________________________________ 

Finance Director/Deputy finance Director 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF GASTON 

I, _______________________________, a Notary Public of the aforesaid County and State, do hereby 
certify that __________________________  personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged 
that he/she is the (Deputy) County Manager/Assistant County Manager and that by authority duly 
given as the act of the municipal corporation, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by the 
designated party, sealed with its corporate seal and attested by him/her as its (Deputy) County Clerk. 

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal, this the _____ day of _______________, 2024. 

___________________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: ___________________ 

108



 

  Memo 
To: City of Lowell – Scott Attaway 

From: Gaston County – Asia Stone  

Date: 11/08/2023 

Re: Lowell Elementary Waterline - Program Income Requirements 

  
 
 
 
This memo is to serve as an explanation of requirements of Treasury and Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds as it relates to program income.  
 
Federal regulations applicable to the use of funds, as outlined in the grant award terms and conditions, include 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. 
Part 200, other than such provisions as Treasury may determine are inapplicable to this Award and subject to 
such exceptions as may be otherwise provided by Treasury. 
 

2 CFR 200.1 defines program income as: gross income earned by the non-Federal entity that is directly 
generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of the Federal award during the period of 
performance except as provided in § 200.307(f). (See the definition of period of performance in this 
section.) Program income includes but is not limited to income from fees for services performed, the 
use or rental or real or personal property acquired under Federal awards, the sale of commodities or 
items fabricated under a Federal award, license fees and royalties on patents and copyrights, and 
principal and interest on loans made with Federal award funds. Interest earned on advances of Federal 
funds is not program income. Except as otherwise provided in Federal statutes, regulations, or the 
terms and conditions of the Federal award, program income does not include rebates, credits, 
discounts, and interest earned on any of them. See also § 200.407. See also 35 U.S.C. 200–212 
“Disposition of Rights in Educational Awards” applies to inventions made under Federal awards. 

 
Funding from the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds are also subject to the requirements 
specified in the U.S. Department of Treasury’s Final Rule, which was released on January 6, 2022. Treasury has 
published a variety of documents that offer additional guidance and further explain the terms and conditions of 
the CSLFRF award. These documents are listed on Treasury’s CSLFRF webpage. Such documents include the 
Overview of the Final Rule and Final Rule FAQs. 

 

Gaston County       Public Works Department 

109



2 

13.11 of the 2022 Final Rule FAQs: Per 2 CFR 200.307, Treasury specifies here that recipients may add 
program income to the Federal award. Any program income generated from SLFRF funds must be used 
for the purposes and under the conditions of the Federal award.  

 
The Treasury’s Compliance and Reporting Guidance for SLFRF funds directs recipients to calculate, document, 
and record the organization’s program income. Additional controls include written policies that explicitly 
identify appropriate allocation methods, accounting standards and principles, compliance monitoring checks for 
program income calculations, and records. 
 

 

110



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Resolution to Designate Chief Moore as the Official to Make Recommendations to the NC ABC Control

Commission

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6D

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

RS04-2024 Resolution to Designate Police Chief to Make Recommendations to the NC Acoholic Beverage

Control Commission.pdf

To: Scott Attaway

From: Chief Moore

Date: 3-22-2024

Re: Designated Official to notify ABC Commission 

This is to allow the Chief of Police to have the ability to notify the NC Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission 

recommendations of the City of Lowell regarding the suitability of persons and locations for ABC permits within the city 

jurisdiction.  The Chief will be the designated official for signing the Local Government Opinion for Alcohol Beverage 

Permits.

111



 
 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL COMMISSION 

(919) 779-0700 
Location: 400 E. Tryon Road   Mail: 4307 Mail Service Center 

                    Raleigh, NC 27610    Raleigh, NC 27699-4307 
 

RESOLUTION #04-2024 
 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF _____LOWELL_________, COUNTY OF ___GASTON__, 
REGARDING THE DESIGNATION OF AN OFFICIAL TO MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS 
TO THE NORTH CAROLINA ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL COMMISSION ON 
ABC PERMIT APPLICATIONS. 
 
WHEREAS G.S.18B-904(f) authorizes a governing body to designate an official, by name or by 
position, to make recommendations concerning the suitability of persons or locations for ABC 
permits; 
and 
WHEREAS the City of _______LOWELL_________, County of__GASTON______, wishes to 
notify the NC ABC Commission of its designation as required by G.S.18B-904(f); 
 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that __ CARL MOORE_____, _CHIEF OF POLICE___, 

(Name of Official)   (Title or Position) 
 

is hereby designated to notify the North Carolina Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission of the 
recommendations of the City of ___LOWELL_____, County of __GASTON_____, regarding 
the suitability of persons and locations for ABC permits within its jurisdiction. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT notices to the City of _LOWELL____, County 
of _____GASTON_____, should be mailed or delivered to the official designated above 
at the following address: 
 

Mailing address: ____102 E FIRST ST__________ 
Office location: _________________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City: _LOWELL_________, NC 
Zip Code: _28098____ Phone #: ___704-824-8540__________ 

 
This the __9th____ day of ___April______, 2024. 
 

_________________________________________ 
(Mayor/Chairman) 

112



 
 
 
 
 
Sworn to and subscribed before me this the _9th___ day of ___April___, 2024_. 
 
_________________________________________ 

(Clerk) 

 

Adopted this 9th day of April, 2024. 

 
   

    Larry Simonds, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 
  
Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 

 
 

113



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

City of Lowell Façade Grant Application Review and Approval

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6E

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

FG2024 - 4322 Wilkinson Blvd Shops.pdf

FG2024 - Beauty Shop.pdf

FG2024 - Back of the Moon.pdf

FG2024 York Properties.pdf

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Tyler Cobb, Planner 

Date: April 9, 2024 

Re: Review and approval of grant funding for eligible façade grant applications as recommended by the 

Lowell Community Committee.

Staff Report

I am pleased to announce the applicants of the Facade Grant Awards for the 2024 cycle that have submitted a full and complete application. After careful 

review and consideration of all applications, the LCC has identified and selected the following projects for funding:

MEM Investments : The updating of the paint will be compatible with the neighboring properties and updated colors.  

Grant Amount: $2,500

Vera Floyd Beauty Salon : New front door will be purchased and installed

Grant Amount: $1,170

Back of the Moon: Improving and painting the trim/moldings to match the connecting building

Grant Amount: $2,406.03

York Properties: The cleaning of the exterior of the buildings and property.           

Grant Amount: $585       

Grant totals would be $6,661.03 total leaving a balance of $3,338.97 in FY24 with no remaining grant cycles left in the fiscal year.  

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



City of Lowell

Regular City Council Meeting Memorandum

Prepared By: Scott Attaway

Resolutions for Approval of (1) the Inter Local Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the

Gaston County Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Ordinance; and (2) for the Inter Local Agreement with

Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance

Meeting

Tuesday, April 9, 2024, 6:00 PM

Agenda Group

New Business Item: 6F

Reference File Presented By

Attachments

SEC Interlocal to be SIGNED.pdf

RS 05-2024 To Adopt Interlocal Agreement for Soil and Erosion Control.pdf

To: Scott Attaway, City Manager

From: Jamie Watkins, Stormwater Administrator

Date: 4-3-2024

Re: Resolutions for Approval of (1) the Inter Local Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of 

the Gaston County Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Ordinance; and (2) for the Inter Local Agreement 

with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance

Staff is requesting approval of the updated Inter Local Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the 

Gaston County Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Ordinance.

Through this agreement, Minimum Measure #4 of the City of Lowell's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System, 

(NPDES), Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit NCS000444 will be fulfilled.

Staff is also requesting approval of the updated Inter Local Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the 

Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance. Through this agreement, Minimum Measure #5 of the City of Lowell's National 

Pollutant Discharge Elimination System, (NPDES), Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit NCS000444 will be 

fulfilled.

RECOMMENDATION

It is therefore recommended that:

(1) the updated Inter Local Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the Gaston County Soil Erosion & 

Sedimentation Control Ordinance be approved.

(2) the updated Inter Local Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the Gaston County Stormwater 

Ordinance be approved.

146



SW Interlocal to be SIGNED.pdf

RS 06-2024 To Approve the Interlocal Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the Gaston

County Stormwater Ordinance.pdf

147



 

NORTH CAROLINA 
GASTON COUNTY 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR ENFORCEMENT SERVICES  
OF THE GASTON COUNTY SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION  

CONTROL ORDINANCE 
 
 

 This agreement made and entered into on the _____ day of __________, 2024 by and 
between GASTON COUNTY, a corporate and political body and a subdivision of the State of North 
Carolina, hereinafter referred to as “County”, and the City of Lowell, a municipal corporation having a 
charter granted by the State of North Carolina, hereinafter referred to as “Municipality”. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes authorizes the 
contractual exercise by one unit of local government for one or more other units of any administrative or 
governmental power, function, public enterprise, right, privilege, or immunity of local government; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Article 6 of Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statues authorizes the 
governing board of any City to permit any ordinance adopted by a County to be applicable within the 
City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Municipality has requested that the County provide enforcement services 
within the corporate boundaries of the Municipality for the Gaston County Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Ordinance; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen Stat. Chapter 160A, Article 20 upon official request of the 
governing body of any municipality within the County, the Gaston County Board of Commissioners 
may by agreement exercise enforcement powers within said municipality and upon such direction may 
do so until such time as the Municipal governing body officially withdraws its request; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Gaston County Board of Commissioners upon approval of a resolution, and 
with written notice, may withdraw the offering of the service to the Municipality. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lowell, NC, City Council, upon approval of a resolution, and with 
written notice, may withdraw the offering of the services from the County. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed by the parties hereto that the County through the Gaston 
County Department of Natural Resources will provide enforcement services for Gaston County Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance in the corporate limits of the Municipality on the terms 
and conditions set forth below: 
 
 1.  Purpose.  The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions for the 
Municipality to contract with the County for enforcement services for Gaston County Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control Ordinance inside its corporate limits and to confer to the County the necessary 
geographical and subject matter jurisdiction to carry out the intent of this Agreement. 

148



 

1.  2.  Term.  The term of this Agreement is for one year, from____________, 2024 through 
_____________, 2025. This Agreement shall automatically renew each year thereafter, on 
the anniversary of adoption, for successive one (1) year terms unless terminated as provided 
herein. 

 
 3.  Responsibilities. 
 
 A. Municipality.  The Municipality agrees to: 
 

(1) allow the County to retain any fees or fines collected in accordance with the 
Gaston County Fees Schedule, and in accordance with the law; 

 
(2) perform a preliminary submittal review before allowing plans to be submitted to 

County. Preliminary review will be to ensure items of concern to the Municipality 
or otherwise regulated by Municipal Ordinance (example: Driveway, tree save, 
etc.) are addressed prior to issuance of permit.  

 
(3) any erosion control measures that are added as part of conditions from a 

Conditional Rezoning, that are outside of the scope of the adopted Gaston County 
Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance will be the sole responsibility of the 
Municipality to enforce and maintain. 

 
(4) defend all claims against it and its employees for incidents related to the 

enforcement activities to be conducted pursuant to this Agreement that occur prior 
to the date of this Agreement and indemnify and hold the County harmless from 
any judgments against it and said employees.  The County agrees to defend all 
claims against the Municipality arising out of like incidents that occur from and 
after the date of this Agreement, and further agrees to indemnify and hold the 
Municipality harmless from any judgments against the Municipality resulting 
therefrom, unless the claims or liability arise solely from the actions of the 
Municipality; 

 
 B. County.  The County through the County Department of Natural Resources agrees to: 
 

(1) review plans submitted pursuant to the Gaston County Soil Erosion and Sediment 
Control Ordinance for compliance therewith and issue permits for those plans 
found to be in compliance. 
 

 
(2) ensure that all construction activities disturbing one acre or more and are subject 

to the scope of the Gaston County Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance, 
obtain an NCDEQ required NCG01 Permit for the construction activity. During 
scheduled erosion control inspections, monitor project site for NCG01 Permit 
compliance and report reoccurring non-compliance issues to NCDEQ and 
Municipality. 

 
(3) provide adequate enforcement staff to be able to effectively enforce the Gaston 

County Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance within the 
Municipality’s corporate limits; this includes responding to citizen and municipal 

149



 

complaints within a 48-hour window of time from the receipt of the complaint; 
 

(4) seek civil and criminal enforcement of the law when necessary in the County's 
discretion. 

 
 
 4.  Geographic and Subject Matter Jurisdiction.     To the fullest extent permitted by the laws 
of the State of North Carolina and the United States, the Municipality hereby grants to the County the 
authority to perform the herein described services and, to that extent, to enforce the County Stormwater 
Management Ordinance as it now exists, or may be amended from time to time, and the County accepts 
the authority herein granted and agrees fully and faithfully to perform the duties and responsibilities 
implied by the acceptance of this grant subject to the terms and conditions of this agreement. 
 
 5.  Amendment.  This Agreement may only be amended in writing upon the signature of both 
parties.  No oral agreements or resolutions shall have any effect. 
 
 6.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement is the only agreement between the parties and contains 
all the terms agreed upon and replaces any previous agreements regarding the subject matter.  This 
Agreement has no effect upon enforcement of codes or ordinances not specifically mentioned.  If any 
part of this Agreement is held invalid such decision shall not render the document invalid. 
 
 7.  Governing Law & Forum: 
 
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made in the State of North Carolina, and its validity, 
construction and effect shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  The parties hereto 
agree that any action brought by either party to enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be filed in the 
Superior Court of Gaston County, State of North Carolina. 
 
Dispute Resolution. In addition to and prior to litigation, the parties shall endeavor to settle disputes first 
by negotiation between the parties, and, if negotiation is unsuccessful, then by non-binding mediation. 
Demand for mediation shall be filed in writing with the other party to this Agreement. A demand for 
mediation shall be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute or other matter in question has 
arisen. In no event shall the demand for mediation be made after the date when institution of legal or 
equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the 
applicable statute of repose or limitations. Each party hereto submits to the exclusive jurisdiction in the 
state and federal courts having jurisdiction in Gaston County, North Carolina and irrevocably waives 
any defenses to such venue including any defense based upon the principles of forum non conveniens. 
 
  

150



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in duplicate 
for themselves for their duly authorized officers of the day and year first above written. 
 
     GASTON COUNTY 
 
By: ___________________________________________________                                                                        
            County Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________      
Clerk to the Board 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________________                                                                       
County Attorney 
 

(NAME OF MUNICIPALITY) 
 
     By: ____________________________________________                                                                           
      Mayor Larry Simonds 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________                                                                      
Clerk Cheryl Ramsey       File: IntlocAgreeSoilEros&SedContOrd.mw 

151



 
 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH GASTON COUNTY FOR 
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES OF THE GASTON COUNTY SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION 

CONTROL ORDINANCE 
 

RESOLUTION 05-2024  

WHEREAS,  Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes authorizes the 
contractual exercise by one unit of local government for one or more other units 
of any administrative or governmental power, function, public enterprise, right, 
privilege, or immunity of local government; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  Article 6 of Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statues authorizes the 

governing board of any City to permit any ordinance adopted by a County to be 
applicable within the City; and, 

 
WHEREAS,    the City of Lowell has requested that Gaston County provide enforcement services 

within the corporate boundaries of the City of Lowell for the Gaston County Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen Stat. Chapter 160A, Article 20 upon official request of the 

governing body of any municipality within the County, the Gaston County Board 
of Commissioners may by agreement exercise enforcement powers within said 
municipality and upon such direction may do so until such time as the Municipal 
governing body officially withdraws its request; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the Gaston County Board of Commissioners, upon approval of a resolution, and 

with written notice, may withdraw the offering of the service to City of Lowell 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lowell, City Council upon approval of a resolution, and with written 

notice, may withdraw the offering of the service from Gaston County 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOWELL: 
 
That it is agreed by the parties hereto that the County, through the Gaston County Department of Natural 
Resources, will provide enforcement services of the Gaston County Soil Erosion and Sedimentation 
Control Ordinance, within the corporate limits of the City of Lowell, on the terms and conditions set 
forth below:

152



Adopted this the_____________________, day of ____________________________at City of Lowell, North Carolina. 
 
         
        __________________________________ 
        Larry Simonds, Mayor  
 
 
 
 
Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 
 

153



 
NORTH CAROLINA 
GASTON COUNTY 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR ENFORCEMENT SERVICES  
OF THE GASTON COUNTY STORMWATER ORDINANCE 

 
This agreement made and entered into on the ______ day of __________, 2024 by and between 

GASTON COUNTY, a corporate and political body and a subdivision of the State of North Carolina, 
hereinafter referred to as “County”, and the City of Lowell, a municipal corporation having a charter granted 
by the State of North Carolina, hereinafter referred to as “Municipality”. 

  
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statures authorizes the 

contractual exercise by one unit of local government for one or more other units of any administrative or 
governmental power, function, public enterprise, right, privilege, or immunity of local government; and 

 
WHEREAS, Article 6 of Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statues authorizes the governing 

board of any City to permit any ordinance adopted by a County to be applicable within the City; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Municipality has requested that the County provide plan review and permitting within 

the corporate boundaries of the Municipality for the post-construction portion of the Gaston County 
Stormwater Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. General Stature Chapter 160A, Article 20, upon official request of the 

governing body of any municipality within the County, the Gaston County Board of Commissioners may 
through agreement exercise enforcement powers within said municipality and upon such direction may do so 
until such time as the Municipal governing body officially withdraws its request; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Gaston County Board of Commissioners, upon approval of a resolution, and with 

written notice, may withdraw the offering of the services to the Municipality. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lowell, NC, City Council, upon approval of a resolution, and with written 

notice, may withdraw the offering of the services from the County. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed by the parties hereto that the County through the Gaston County 

Department of Natural Resources will provide plan review and permitting for post-construction stormwater 
portion of the Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance in the corporate limits of the Municipality on the terms 
and conditions set forth below: 

 
1. Purpose.  The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions for the 

Municipality to contract with the County for plan review, permitting, and enforcement services for 
the Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance inside its corporate limits and to confer to the County 
the necessary geographical and subject matter jurisdiction to carry out the intent of this Agreement. 
 

2. Term.    The term of this Agreement is one year from____________, 2024 through 
_____________, 2025. This Agreement shall automatically renew each year thereafter, on the 
anniversary of adoption, for successive one (1) year terms unless terminated as provided herein. 

154



 
3. Responsibilities.  
 

A. Municipality.   The Municipality agrees to: 
 

(1) allow the County to retain any plan review and Permitting fees for Post-Construction 
Stormwater per the County Fees Schedule;  
 

(2) defend all claims against it and its employees for incidents that occur prior to the date of 
this Agreement and indemnify and hold the County harmless from any judgements against 
it and said employees.  The County agrees to defend all claims against the Municipality 
arising out of like incidents that occur from and after the date of this Agreement and further 
agrees to indemnify and hold the Municipality harmless from any judgements against the 
Municipality resulting therefrom, unless the claims or liability arise solely from the actions 
of the Municipality. 

 
(3) withhold applicable permits and approvals, including but not limited to zoning permits and 

final plat approvals, until notified of compliance with the Stormwater Ordinance;  
 

(4) obtain performance surety bonds on all proposed Stormwater Control Measures. These 
bonds shall be held until all final documentation for completed Stormwater Control 
Measures have been received by the County;  

 
(5) any Stormwater Control measures that are added as part of conditions from a conditional 

rezoning, that are outside of the scope of the adopted Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance 
will be the sole responsibility of the municipality to enforce; 

 
(6) administer the Municipality’s Stormwater Management Program including programs 

addressing the Six Minimum Measures of the Municipality’s NPDES MS4 Permit;  
a) Public Involvement and Participation,  
b) Public Education and Outreach,  
c) Construction Site Runoff: County is responsible for plan review, permitting, inspection, 

and enforcement of Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Ordinance on all land 
disturbance activities (minor / major subdivisions and single lot permits) via the 
respective Soil Erosion & Sedimentation Control Ordinance Interlocal Agreement.  

d) Post-Construction Site Runoff: County is responsible for only the responsibilities listed 
below in Part 3.B of this Interlocal Agreement. The Municipality is responsible for all 
remaining NPDES MS4 Permit Post-Construction Runoff requirements.  

e) Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination, 
f) Good Housekeeping Pollution Prevention 
g) any applicable Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDLs) requirements 

 
B. County.   The County, through the Gaston County Department of Natural Resources, agrees 

to: 
 

(1) review plans submitted pursuant to the Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance for 
compliance therewith and issue permits for those plans found to be in compliance;  

a. coordinate with Municipality on final review of plan submittals to verify acceptance 
of proposed proprietary Stormwater Control Measure(s) by Municipality.  

155



 
(2) inspect construction sites, and monitor Stormwater Control Measure(s) to completion of 

construction, to determine compliance with approved and permitted stormwater 
management plans;  
 

(3) notify Municipality of any violations of the Stormwater Ordinance during, and to the 
completion of, the construction process and the final design engineer certification; 

 
(4) collect all final Stormwater Control Measure(s) documentation; As part of this process, 

Gaston County will coordinate with Municipality for the release of any bonds for such 
infrastructure;  

 
(5) convey all final Stormwater Control Measure(s) documentation as outlined in the Gaston 

County Stormwater Control Measure Close Out Report to Municipality for record keeping 
and the Municipality’s continuing enforcement of the post-construction portion of the 
Stormwater Management Ordinance per the Municipality’s NPDES MS4 Permit;  

 
(6) Seek Civil and Criminal enforcement of the law in the mutual discretion of the County and 

the Municipality. 
 
4. Geographic and Subject Matter Jurisdiction.     To the fullest extent permitted by the laws of 

the State of North Carolina and the United States, the Municipality hereby grants to the County the 
authority to perform the herein described services and, to that extent, to enforce the County 
Stormwater Management Ordinance as it now exists, or may be amended from time to time, and 
the County accepts the authority herein granted and agrees fully and faithfully to perform the duties 
and responsibilities implied by the acceptance of this grant subject to the terms and conditions of 
this agreement. 
 

5. Amendment.    This Agreement may only be amended in writing upon the signature of both parties. 
No oral agreements or resolutions shall have any effect. 

 
6. Entire Agreement.     This Agreement is the only agreement between the parties, contains all the 

terms agreed upon, and replaces any previous agreements regarding the subject matter. This 
Agreement has no effect upon enforcement of codes or ordinances not specifically mentioned. If 
any part of this Agreement is held invalid, such decision shall not render the document invalid. 

 
7. Governing Law & Forum: 
 
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been made in the State of North Carolina, and its validity, 
construction and effect shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  The parties hereto 
agree that any action brought by either party to enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be filed in 
the Superior Court of Gaston County, State of North Carolina. 
 
Dispute Resolution. In addition to and prior to litigation, the parties shall endeavor to settle disputes 
first by negotiation between the parties, and, if negotiation is unsuccessful, then by non-binding 
mediation. Demand for mediation shall be filed in writing with the other party to this Agreement. A 
demand for mediation shall be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute or other matter 
in question has arisen. In no event shall the demand for mediation be made after the date when 
institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute or other matter in question 

156



 
would be barred by the applicable statute of repose or limitations. Each party hereto submits to the 
exclusive jurisdiction in the state and federal courts having jurisdiction in Gaston County, North 
Carolina and irrevocably waives any defenses to such venue including any defense based upon the 
principles of forum non conveniens. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in 
duplicate for themselves for their duly authorized officers of the day and year first above written. 

 
 

     GASTON COUNTY 
 

By: ___________________________________________________                                                                        
            County Manager 
 

ATTEST: 
 

_______________________________________      
Clerk to the Board 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
_______________________________________                                                                       
County Attorney 

 
(NAME OF MUNICIPALITY) 

 
     By: _________________________________________________                                                                           
      Mayor Larry Simonds 

ATTEST: 
 

______________________________________                                                                      
Clerk Cheryl Ramsey           File: IntlocAgreeSoilEros&SedContOrd.mw 

 

157



 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH GASTON COUNTY FOR 
ENFORCEMENT SERVICES OF THE GASTON COUNTY STORMWATER ORDINANCE 

 
RESOLUTION 06-2024 

WHEREAS,  Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes authorizes the 
contractual exercise by one unit of local government for one or more other units 
of any administrative or governmental power, function, public enterprise, right, 
privilege, or immunity of local government; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  Article 6 of Chapter 153A of the North Carolina General Statues authorizes the 

governing board of any City to permit any ordinance adopted by a County to be 
applicable within the City; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Lowell has requested that Gaston County provide plan review and 

permitting within the corporate boundaries of the Municipality for the post-
construction portion of the Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen Stat. Chapter 160A, Article 20 upon official request of the 

governing body of any municipality within the County, the Gaston County Board 
of Commissioners may by agreement exercise enforcement powers within said 
municipality and upon such direction may do so until such time as the Municipal 
governing body officially withdraws its request; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  the Gaston County Board of Commissioners, upon approval of a resolution, and             
                            with written notice, may withdraw the offering of the service to City of Lowell 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Lowell, City Council upon approval of a resolution, and with written 

notice, may withdraw the offering of the service from Gaston County 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOWELL: 
 
That it is agreed by the parties hereto that the County, through the Gaston County Department of Natural 
Resources, will provide plan review and permitting for the post-construction stormwater portion of the 
Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance, within the corporate limits of the City of Lowell, on the terms 
and conditions set forth below:

158



Adopted this the,___________________ day of _________________________at City of Lowell, North Carolina. 
 
         
        __________________________________ 
        Larry Simonds, Mayor  
 
 
 
 
Cheryl Ramsey, City Clerk 
 

159


	RegularCityCouncilMeeting-2024-04-09.pdf
	February 28, 2024 - City Council Special Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	Regular-City-Council-Meeting-03-12-2024-minutesdraft.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	02-29-2024 Dashboard.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	March 24 CC Meeting Material - Sign Regualtions.pdf
	Statements of Consistency.pdf
	01-2024 Amending the LDO - Article 17 Sign Regulations.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Spencer Ridge - Development Agreement v5.pdf
	Version 2.0 202022-08-30 - Spencer Mountain - Rezoning Plan.pdf
	Development Agreement Guide.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Town of Lowell_20240328_100850.pdf
	Rezoning_ChoiceUSABeverageINC_2024March28.pdf
	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	Interlocal Water Agreement Lowell Elementary Waterline_4_5_24.pdf
	Program Income Memo.pdf
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	RS04-2024 Resolution to Designate Police Chief to Make Recommendations to the NC Acoholic Beverage Control Commission.pdf
	RESOLUTION #04-2024

	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	FG2024 - 4322 Wilkinson Blvd  Shops.pdf
	FG2024 - Beauty Shop.pdf
	FG2024 - Back of the Moon.pdf
	FG2024 York Properties.pdf
	Town of Lowell_20240404_093110
	Town of Lowell_20240404_093206
	Town of Lowell_20240404_093110

	horizon_agendalink_app.pdf
	SEC Interlocal to be SIGNED.pdf
	NORTH CAROLINA
	GASTON COUNTY

	RS 05-2024 To Adopt Interlocal Agreement for Soil and Erosion Control.pdf
	SW Interlocal to be SIGNED.pdf
	NORTH CAROLINA
	GASTON COUNTY

	RS 06-2024 To Approve the Interlocal Agreement with Gaston County for Enforcement Services of the Gaston County Stormwater Ordinance.pdf



